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A Venezuelan boy pushes a wheelbarrow full 
of metal parts. The Carter Center observed 
the country’s 2024 elections and found they 
did not meet international standards.
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The bond of our common humanity is stronger 
than the divisiveness of our fears and prejudices. 
God gives us the capacity for choice. We can 
choose to alleviate suffering. We can choose to 
work together for peace. We can make these 
changes — and we must. 

— Jimmy Carter Nobel Lecture, 2002

Please visit www.jimmycartertribute.org to see condolence 
messages from people around the world, read his biography, 
and view photos from his life and funeral events.

On Dec. 29, 2024, the Carter Center family lost its 
beloved founder, former U.S. President Jimmy Carter. He 
passed away peacefully at age 100, surrounded by loved 
ones at the home in Plains, Georgia, that he had shared 
with his beloved wife, Rosalynn, from 1961 until her 
death in November 2023.

President Carter believed in giving every effort, as 
broadly as possible, to make a positive difference in the 
world. His legacy will remain an ongoing inspiration to 
us at The Carter Center and to everyone who believes in 
compassion, justice, and human rights.

We at The Carter Center continue to look to President 
and Mrs. Carter as guiding lights for our ongoing work 
to wage peace, fight disease, and build hope around 
the world.

In Memoriam

Carter Center founders Jimmy and 
Rosalynn Carter in Nigeria
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Jimmy Carter
1924–2024
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Misna Francois lives in the Dominican Republic, 
where The Carter Center has been working to 
eliminate lymphatic filariasis and malaria. 
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At A Glance
Overview

The Carter Center was founded by former U.S. 
President Jimmy Carter and his wife, Rosalynn, 
in 1982. A nongovernmental organization, 
the Center has helped to advance peace 
and health in more than 85 countries.

Key Accomplishments
• �Leading an eradication campaign that has reduced 

incidence of Guinea worm disease from an estimated  
3.5 million human cases a year in 1986 to just 15 in 2024

• �Observing 125 full and limited observation missions in  
40 countries and three Native American nations

• �Furthering avenues to peace in Ethiopia, Eritrea, Nepal, 
Liberia, Sudan, South Sudan, Uganda, Mali, the Korean 
Peninsula, Haiti, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Syria, and the 
Middle East

• �Strengthening international standards for human rights 
and the voices of individuals defending those rights in 
their communities worldwide

• �Pioneering new public health approaches to 
preventing or controlling devastating neglected 
tropical diseases in Africa and Latin America, including 
establishing village-based health interventions 
in thousands of communities across Africa

• �Advancing efforts to improve mental health care and 
diminish stigma against people with mental illnesses in 
the United States and globally

Donations
The Center received $350 million in cash, pledges, and 
in-kind gifts in 2023–2024. The Center is a 501(c)(3) 
charitable organization, financed by private donations 
from individuals, foundations, corporations, governments, 
and international development assistance agencies. 
Contributions by U.S. citizens and companies are tax-
deductible as allowed by law.

Staff
Approximately 300 employees at Atlanta headquarters 
and more than 3,400 in country offices around the world

The Carter Center
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A woman in the Democratic Republic of the 
Congo looks through a slag heap, made up 
of refuse from a local mine, for material she 
can sell. The Carter Center has been working 
for equity in the country’s extractive industry.
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Our Mission
The Carter Center is guided by the principles 
of our founders, Jimmy and Rosalynn Carter. 
Founded, in partnership with Emory University, 
on a fundamental commitment to human rights 
and the alleviation of human suffering, the 
Center seeks to prevent and resolve conflicts, 
enhance freedom and democracy, and improve 
health.

The Center believes that people can improve their own lives 
when provided with the necessary skills, knowledge, and 
access to resources.

The Center emphasizes action and measurable results in the 
lives of the people it seeks to help.

The Center values the courage to break new ground, fill 
vacuums, and address the most difficult problems in the most 
difficult situations.

The Center recognizes that solving difficult problems requires 
careful analysis, relentless persistence, and the recognition 
that failure is an acceptable risk.

The Center is nonpartisan, and it seeks to work collaboratively 
with other organizations from the highest levels of government 
to local communities.
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In a year full of momentous events for us, one stood apart from all others: the Dec. 29 
passing of our co-founder Jimmy Carter.

His death is an enormous loss to the Carter family, The Carter Center, and the world.
We received tens of thousands of heartfelt messages in the official condolence book at 

jimmycartertribute.org. Thank you. They were a tremendous comfort to the family and the 
Carter Center staff.

Jimmy Carter was many things to many people: former president; Nobel Peace Prize 
winner; human rights defender; grandfather; inspirational figure; and so much more. His 

departure from this life is a blow to all of us.
But there is work to be done, and we are going about it with the vigor 

and persistence he instilled in us. Pursuing President and Mrs. Carter’s 
vision, we will eradicate Guinea worm disease, support fragile and fledgling 
democracies, and empower women with information to improve their own 
lives. We will eliminate river blindness, trachoma, and lymphatic filariasis 
from wide swaths of the world. We will work to resolve conflicts and seek 
to avert political violence in the United States. We will strive to eliminate 
discrimination against people with mental health challenges. 

In short, we will continue to work to make this world a better place.
It won’t be easy, but it never has been. With Jimmy Carter’s toughness and determina-

tion, we will pursue all these goals and new ones that come along.
President and Mrs. Carter have not only left us a strong moral legacy; they have left us a 

solid, stable, financially sound organization that is doing great things.
We are counting on you to keep partnering with us and supporting this work the way 

you always have. In these uncertain times, we must stick together. The importance of this 
work transcends one person’s — or one couple’s — lifetime. Thank you for your kindness 
and for your ongoing partnership in our mission.

Jason Carter 	 Paige Alexander 
Chair	 Chief Executive Officer 
Board of Trustees

Jason Carter

Paige Alexander

From the Chair & CEO

The Carter Center 
Looks Ahead
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Paige Alexander serves as a 
nonpartisan election observer in 
Fulton County, Georgia, for the 
Nov. 5, 2024, elections.

Jason Carter addresses 
participants at the Center’s Human 
Rights Defenders Forum in 2024.
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Pictured are a few of 
the many participants 
in the Center’s Human 
Rights Defenders 
Forum, held in Atlanta 
in May 2024.

Peace Programs
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Conflict Resolution 
Program
For the U.S. general election, Carter 
Center-organized Democracy Resilience 
Networks in Arizona, Florida, 
Georgia, Michigan, North Carolina, 
and Wisconsin established rapid 
response teams to address violence and 
information integrity and produced 
messaging about election processes. 
In Israel-Palestine, the Center worked 
to support a permanent ceasefire and 
facilitated efforts fostering consensus 
and unity and conversations about 
the path forward. The Center also 
facilitated peacebuilding efforts, orga-
nizing discussions about the future 
of education in Syria. Also in Syria, 

Democracy 
Program
The Carter Center observed 
Venezuela’s presidential election in 
July, issuing a statement that the 
election did not meet international 
standards and could not be considered 
democratic. Around the November 
2024 U.S. elections, the Center 
supported cross-partisan networks 
of trained citizen observers in New 
Mexico and Montana to monitor 
election processes and provide 
trusted information. Also, the Center 
deployed observers to monitor elec-
tions in Fulton County, Georgia. In 
total, more than 400 observers were 
deployed across the three states. The 

Carter Center continued long-term 
citizen observation efforts in the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo 
and Liberia and supported reform 
efforts in Zimbabwe and Sudan, as well 
as capacity building for civil society 
organizations to improve participatory 
rights for women and youth in Zambia. 
Carter Center experts worked with 
local partners in Sri Lanka to combat 
digital threats to democracy and 
mitigate violence during presidential 
and parliamentary elections. A report 
created with international partners on 
Model Commitments for Advancing 
Genuine and Credible Elections, a 
resource laying out steps to strengthen 
democracy and elections, was 
published in September.
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ELECTION OBSERVATION SUCCESS  
IN MONTANA
Although The Carter Center has been observing elections around the 
globe since 1989, independent election observation is not common in the 
United States — in fact, it’s illegal in some places. Montana law allows it, 
but it had never been done before in a large, organized way. 

For the 2024 elections, The Carter Center partnered with the Montana 
Election Observation Initiative, a nonpartisan network seeking to increase 
trust in the state’s elections. 

The Carter Center and MTEOI piloted observation in Missoula County’s 
June 2024 primaries by training observers, building observer kits, and 
finally deploying volunteer observers. After that effort proved successful, 
the project ballooned to 15 counties across the vast state for the 
November general election. The Center trained and sent more than 150 
observers to the polls and worked out of a data center for 36 hours during 
the election period. 

MTEOI’s final report concluded that “Montana’s 2024 elections were 
secure, transparent, and well-managed, reflecting the state’s strong civic 
participation and commitment to democratic integrity.”

While every state’s rules are different, the Center looks forward to 
working with local partners to do more election observation in the United 
States, ensuring free, fair, and honest elections for all.  

the mapping of unexploded ordnance 
assisted the work of international 
demining organizations. Meanwhile, 
the Mali Peace through Health 
Initiative worked to build trust and 
cooperation, resulting in a significant 
decrease in violence and increased 
access to health-related benefits for 
hundreds of thousands of people. 
In the Sahel, the Center worked to 
prevent conflict related to climate 
extremes and increase resilience. 
Amid ongoing conflict, Sudan’s Youth 
Citizen Observer Network maintained 
an inclusive, grassroots observer corps 
and provided critical information 
to stakeholders, including ceasefire 
negotiators, facilitated by the Center’s 
technical support.

The Carter Center worked with a Montana 
partner to conduct nonpartisan election 
observation in November.
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Human Rights Program
In May, The Carter Center convened more than 60 attendees for the 13th 
Human Rights Defenders Forum, themed “Unchanging Principles for 
Changing Times,” and launched ACCELERATE, which provides financial 
and technical support to human rights defenders. In the Democratic Republic 
of the Congo, the Center launched the Climate and Environmental Justice 
Initiative to ensure that mineral extraction benefits the Congolese people and 
continued human rights monitoring amid growing unrest. The Center supported 
Indigenous and women environmental rights defenders and commemorated 
the 10th anniversary of President Carter’s book “A Call to Action,” including 
by advocating during the U.N. General Assembly for an optional protocol to 
reduce violence against women. In the U.S., the Center partnered with local 
human rights commissions to promote global human rights norms and addressed 
racial inequity through community-driven racial repair initiatives in former 
Confederate states. In response to the devastation in Gaza, the Center provided 
financial support to Palestinian and Israeli human rights groups and convened 
key partners, including The Elders, to foster solidarity and consensus.

Rule of Law Program
The Carter Center supported The Gambia Ministry of Justice and Bar 
Association to raise awareness about the growing democracy’s transitional justice 
process. In Sierra Leone, the Center helped people in the justice sector imple-
ment the Gender Equality and Women’s Empowerment Act by assessing gender 
biases in courts, drafting policy guidance, and conducting outreach campaigns. 
Strengthening its commitment to data-driven advocacy and collaboration 
between government and civil society, the Center assisted gender-based-violence 
first responders in Sierra Leone to harmonize their data collection and manage-
ment practices. In Costa Rica, the Center trained 21 law enforcement personnel 
to teach a new mandatory training course on gender-sensitive policing, which 
they subsequently delivered to 120 police cadets. Amid political upheaval in 
Bangladesh, the Center engaged commissions to prioritize marginalized voices 
in the reform process and ensure equitable access to information throughout 
the transition. A joint Rule of Law and Mental Health programs survey of more 
than 1,300 people in the Atlanta area found that 76% support having someone 
other than police respond to calls involving people experiencing homelessness or 
mental health issues.

A new bridge helps 
Patrice Maloba 
safely reach his 
maize field.
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A BRIDGE TO PROSPERITY 
In Kilongo, Democratic Republic of the Congo, pastor 
and farmer Patrice Maloba uses a strong, modern 
bridge to safely cross the river to get to his maize 
field, while others use it to reach markets, school, and 
jobs. But it wasn’t always that way.  

Before the bridge was built, people had to use a 
dangerous makeshift footbridge that was frequently 
overwhelmed during the rainy season. Goods and even 
people were often swept away by the rushing waters.  

The dominant economic force in the area is a 
massive cobalt mine. While the valuable minerals 
within enriched the mine’s owners, the surrounding 
community received little or nothing.  

That began to change when The Carter Center 
helped advocate for legislation requiring mining 
companies to use some of their revenue to benefit 
their host communities. The Center also advised the 
people on how to negotiate with mining companies 
to get the resources they’re entitled to and to ensure 
that the money funds projects that meet their commu-
nities’ biggest needs. 

Kilongo used some of its revenue to build a new 
bridge that is less vulnerable to flooding. People can 
now safely and easily cross the river.

“This bridge is really, really helpful for us,” 
Maloba said. 
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SMALL BAKERY RISES
Petralina Babirye’s little bakery in Kampala, Uganda, 
wasn’t making the kind of dough she needed to make 
a good living. She lived in a small space and made 
doughnuts in an even smaller space. Her business 
needed a boost, but Babirye didn’t know where it 
would come from.

Then a friend told her about an announcement on 
the radio promoting the city government’s Women 
Entrepreneurship Program, which offers female busi-
ness owners interest-free loans and financial training. 

That radio spot was made possible in part by 
Kampala’s participation in the Carter Center’s Inform 
Women, Transform Lives project. Through this initiative, 

the Center partners with cities around the world to 
make women aware of city services they might not 
otherwise know about. 

Babirye used her newfound knowledge to get a 
loan to buy equipment and ingredients and expand her 
business. The bakery is now thriving, providing festive 
cakes for weddings, birthdays, and other special occa-
sions. Babirye wants to pass her good fortune along 
to others.

“My hope and my dream,” she said, “would be to 
help ladies, girls out there — the young generation, 
single mothers.” 

Now she has the scratch to do it. 

Petralina Babirye’s (far 
right) bakery in Uganda 
grew with the support 
of a local program for 
women entrepreneurs.
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Other Initiatives
China Focus
The inaugural Jimmy Carter Forum was convened in January to commemorate 
the 45th anniversary of the normalization of U.S.-China relations. American 
and Chinese experts participated in panel discussions on different dimensions 
of the U.S.-China diplomatic, military, and economic relationship. The Ninth 
Young Scholars Forum on U.S.-China Relations was held in May in San Diego 
in cooperation with the University of California San Diego’s 21st Century China 
Center. The Carter Center published “Modernizing Sino-U.S. Confidence-
Building Measures: Cold War Case Studies and Chinese Perspectives,” part 
of a series that examines how rising Sino-American tensions have prompted 
widespread discussion of a “New Cold War.” Analysts increasingly worry that 
flashpoints in the relationship could trigger conventional war that could escalate 
to the nuclear domain. The Center’s U.S.-China Perception Monitor websites, in 
both English and Chinese, continue to attract wide readership.

Inform Women, Transform Lives
Through this campaign, The Carter Center partners with city leaders around 
the globe to help cities provide women with information about beneficial city 
services. In 2024, the Center continued to support 35 cities that have received 
grants. As some cities completed implementation of services, they reported 
the impact of the campaign. For example, in Montevideo, Uruguay, 5,000 
women received services related to gender-based violence. Staff in Birmingham, 
England, created a video to raise awareness of available domestic violence 
services, resulting in a 36% increase in visits to their website. Finally, in Bogota, 
Colombia, the city focused on municipal services available for women care-
givers. The city provided services to 2,400 new women caregivers and increased 
awareness of their available services from 20% of the target population to more 
than 50%.

Latin America and Caribbean Focus
The Carter Center continued support for the implementation of Colombia’s 
2016 peace accord with a technical secretariat of expertise for the High 
Commissioner of Peace and the Minister of the Interior. A Carter Center staff 
member spoke at an United Nations General Assembly sidebar on the “Urgent 
Situation in Venezuela,” convened by U.S. Secretary of State Antony Blinken on 
the Center’s technical election observation mission in July 2024. Fifty countries 
signed a joint resolution calling for the Maduro government to release the official 
results of the July 28 presidential election. 
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Village chief Fabien Oguama with his wife, Pascaline, and 
their sons and daughter live in Enugu state, Nigeria. The 
Carter Center is working to control or eliminate several 
neglected tropical diseases in the country.

Health Programs
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ETHIOPIA CLOSES IN
The year 2024 marked the second consecutive one 
in Ethiopia with no known human cases of Guinea 
worm disease. The country reported a small handful of 
animal infections, around five.

Four years ago, Ethiopia faced 11 human cases after 
a small Guinea worm outbreak at a farm. The country 
reported 15 animal infections that year.

The key to continuing this downward trend? 
Surveillance, surveillance, surveillance. “The 
teams in Ethiopia must remain vigilant,” said Adam 
Weiss, director of the Carter Center’s Guinea Worm 
Eradication Program. “Every potential Guinea 

worm — whether human case or animal infection — must 
be reported, monitored, and tested to ensure the coun-
try’s numbers reach zero.”

The international Guinea worm eradication 
campaign has reduced the human cases of the disease 
by 99.99% since 1986 — with no vaccine or medicine. 
Community-based behavior change and local mobili-
zation continue to be the drivers of success.

With such low numbers, the international commu-
nity is watching Ethiopia, hoping it becomes the next 
country to make Guinea worm part of its past.
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Guinea Worm  
Eradication Program
The march toward eradication of Guinea worm disease 
advanced in 2024 as just 15 human cases were reported 
worldwide, holding almost steady when compared to the 
14 cases reported in 2023. Cases once were counted in the 
millions. Nine of the 15 human cases reported in 2024 
occurred in Chad; the other six were in South Sudan. No 
human cases were reported in Angola, Cameroon, Ethiopia, 
or Mali. In these six African countries, reported infections 
in animals declined 25%, from 887 in 2023 to 664 in 2024. 
Chad reduced animal infections by 43% — from 496 to 
281 — its fifth consecutive year of improvement.

Lymphatic Filariasis 
Elimination Program
The Carter Center works to eliminate transmission of 
lymphatic filariasis, a disease that causes swelling of the 
limbs and genitals and, in severe cases, causes elephantiasis. 
Transmission can be interrupted with annual treatments in 
at-risk communities of Mectizan® plus albendazole (donated 
by Merck & Co, Inc., and GSK, respectively). In 2024, The 
Carter Center assisted with the distribution of 2.5 million 
treatments for lymphatic filariasis in three countries. 
Thanks to years of effective communitywide treatments, 
28 million people no longer need treatment. The Center 
also continued a pilot program to integrate mental health 
services with its lymphatic filariasis work in Ebonyi state, 
Nigeria, where baseline assessments revealed high rates of 
depressive symptoms in persons with lymphatic filariasis. 
The program, in collaboration with the Center’s Mental 
Health Program, enhanced training of health personnel 
to provide mental health services for individuals suffering 
from chronic disease.

In 2020, an 11-year-
old girl strains pond 
water through a 
household filter 
near her home in 
Gog, Ethiopia, to 
prevent Guinea worm 
disease.
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River Blindness  
Elimination Program
The Carter Center works with national ministries of 
health in Africa and the Americas to eliminate river 
blindness, the second-leading cause of infectious 
blindness worldwide, through mass distribution of 
the medication Mectizan® (donated by Merck & Co, 
Inc.). In 2024, The Carter Center assisted with the 
distribution of approximately 28.2 million Mectizan 
treatments in six countries. Since the program began 
in 1996, nearly 32 million people are no longer at risk 
of infection in Carter Center-assisted areas, including 
four countries in the Americas — Colombia, Mexico, 
Ecuador, and Guatemala — that have been verified by 
the World Health Organization as having eliminated 
river blindness transmission. Carter Center CEO 
Paige Alexander led a Carter Center delegation to 
Brazil in August to meet with Brazilian and U.S. 
officials to promote awareness of and high-level 
commitment to river blindness elimination. The 
last reservoir of river blindness transmission in the 
Americas lies along the border of Brazil and Venezuela 
in an Amazon Rainforest region populated by migra-
tory Yanomami people and other Indigenous groups.

Schistosomiasis  
Control Program
Schistosomiasis is a parasitic disease acquired from 
contact with bodies of fresh water inhabited by 
infected snails. It can cause blood in urine and stool, 
damage to internal organs, and stunted growth in 
children. Alongside the Federal Ministry of Health 
of Nigeria, The Carter Center assists schistosomiasis 
programs in nine Nigerian states, with 32.8 million 
treatments given by teachers or community drug 
distributors since 1999. Historically, schistosomiasis 
treatments were integrated with those given for 
river blindness and lymphatic filariasis. Now that 
treatments are no longer needed for river blindness 
or lymphatic filariasis in five of the nine states, a 
transition to full government implementation of 
schistosomiasis programs has begun. The aim is 
to integrate schistosomiasis treatment into other 
existing school-based preventative health programs 
for children.

RIVER BLINDNESS’ 
FOE: UGANDA
In October 2024, Sani Kiri 
visited each household in 
his southwestern Ugandan 
community to deliver — one 
last time — the drug that 
prevents river blindness, 
a parasitic eye disease. 
Combined with health 
education, the drug distribu-
tion campaign has been so 
successful over the years that 
transmission of the disease 
has been halted in this area, 
known as Lhubiriha for river 
blindness tracking purposes.

It’s a success story that has 
been repeated in communities 
across Uganda. Back in 2007, 
the country declared its intent 
to eliminate river blindness — a 
radical statement at the time, 
because the scientific commu-
nity believed the disease to 
be so pervasive that only the 
lesser standard of control 
was possible in most African 
countries. The Carter Center 
pledged its support for 
Uganda and has provided 
assistance and partnership 
year after year.

Fast forward to today: 
15 of 17 areas identified 
in 2007 have eliminated 
the disease, according to 
standards set by the World 
Health Organization. And no 
active disease transmission is 
thought to be occurring in the 
remaining two areas, including 
Lhubiriha, which now enters a 
period of surveillance.

As a distributor for the 
medicine that prevents river 
blindness, Sani Kiri is working 
himself out of a job in Uganda. 
We’re happy to see it.

22



Sani Kiri prepares to 
begin his door-to-door 
community distribution 
of the medicine that 
prevents and treats river 
blindness.
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FROM DESPAIR TO HOPE IN THE BLINK OF AN EYE
“I would sometimes scratch my eye all night long 
without sleeping,” said Rahina, who lives with her 
husband, Noura, and three small children in a rural 
village in Niger’s Maradi region. “It was so painful that 
it became difficult for me to take care of my household 
chores, fetch water, and cook for my family.”

Trachoma is a bacterial infection transmitted by flies, 
hands, and clothing contaminated by the infection. 
Repeated infections can lead to scarring of the eyelid, 
causing the eyelashes to turn inward and scratch 
the eyeball. The scarring could eventually result 
in blindness.

Despite Rahina’s suffering, her family couldn’t afford 
to travel to a far-away health center for treatment. 

Her condition continued to worsen, and she began to 
lose hope.

But then a surgery team funded by The Carter 
Center visited her village.

“I was examined,” Rahina said, “and they performed 
an operation on my eyelid and put a bandage on it, 
which they removed the next day, giving me medica-
tion free of charge.”

Rahina shifted from pain and despair to health 
and hope.

“Since then, I am happy to be in my home, taking 
good care of my three children and my home,” 
she said.
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Trachoma Control Program
Working in some of Africa’s most challenging regions, 
The Carter Center maintains its commitment to eliminate 
trachoma as a public health problem in Ethiopia, Niger, 
South Sudan, and Sudan — countries where this blinding 
disease remains highly prevalent. In 2024, the Center 
worked alongside the national ministries of health to iden-
tify the blinding form of the disease, called trachomatous 
trichiasis, or TT. A total of 769,214 people were screened. 
Of these, TT surgery was provided to 10,641. Women 
represented 65% of patients, or 6,953 people, highlighting 
the program’s success at reaching particularly vulnerable 
populations. More than 4.5 million doses of antibiotics 
were distributed through community mass drug administra-
tion in Ethiopia and South Sudan. An additional 236,739 
doses were provided to children during unique child-focused 
drug administration efforts in the highly endemic Amhara 
region of Ethiopia. The Center provided health education 
to assist disease prevention alongside the surgical and drug 
administration activities.

Hispaniola Initiative
The Carter Center partners with the health ministries of 
Haiti and the Dominican Republic to eliminate malaria 
and lymphatic filariasis from their shared island. Lymphatic 
filariasis transmission assessment surveys were completed in 
eight districts in the East focus of the Dominican Republic 
and 30 districts across Grand’Anse, Sud, and Camp Perrin 
regions of southern Haiti. All areas passed the assessment, 
indicating that they have successfully interrupted lymphatic 
filariasis transmission. In addition, a nationwide integrated 
remapping survey for lymphatic filariasis was completed in 
the Dominican Republic. Tests found no active filariasis 
cases and only one malaria case from over 16,000 partic-
ipants. Training on an advanced blood test technique 
for diagnosing malaria was conducted at the molecular 
surveillance laboratory in the Dominican Republic. Of the 
more than 4,000 blood samples that initially tested negative 
for malaria, 1.1% were positive using the advanced blood 
testing. Provisionally, 38,714 cases of malaria were reported 
in 2024 on Hispaniola — 37,481 in Haiti and 1,233 in the 
Dominican Republic. This represents a 163% increase in 
total cases compared to 2023 (14,708).

Rahina Zabeirou 
received treatment for 
advanced trachoma 
thanks to a mobile 
surgical camp. 
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JOURNALIST REFRAMES STORIES ON SCHIZOPHRENIA
In Ireland, young people experiencing psychosis or 
schizophrenia often lack access to services, which 
can prevent their ability to recover and lead full lives, 
journalist Órla Ryan discovered while writing a series 
of stories called “Falling Through the Cracks.” 

Ryan received a Rosalynn Carter Fellowship for 
Mental Health Journalism from The Carter Center, 
awarded to members of the press in the U.S. and select 
countries who report on topics of mental health. Ryan is 
a correspondent for Irish news site TheJournal.ie.

“Very often if a person is experiencing psychosis but 
is also autistic or maybe has cognitive issues or other 
health issues, they’re often passed from one team to 

another,” Ryan said. “Early intervention is so important, 
but when they’re passed from team to team, access to 
care is delayed.”

One of Ryan’s goals was to change how people 
think about psychosis and schizophrenia. Instead of 
the diseases being mentioned in relation to crime, 
she wanted to show how access to timely care leads 
to recovery.

“It’s been a real honor to be involved in the 
fellowship,” she said. “I know for me, personally, this 
was not a one-year thing. I will keep writing mental 
health stories.” 
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Mental Health 
Program
In February 2024, The Carter Center 
hosted the first Mental Health Parity 
Day at the Georgia State Capitol, 
providing an update on its monitoring 
of the Georgia Mental Health Parity 
Act implementation. During that 
event, the Center announced the 
results of its Savannah and Albany 
parity law campaign, which raised 
public awareness regarding legal 
rights to coverage. The Carter Center 
Newsroom Parity Collaborative is 
working with 21 U.S. newsrooms and 
has begun monitoring parity legis-
lation implementation in Montana. 
The Center released its Journalism 
Resource Guide for Mental Health 
Reporting, providing guidance on how 
to report on mental health issues accu-
rately and sensitively. Journalists from 
the United States, Ireland, and the 
United Arab Emirates were awarded 
Rosalynn Carter Fellowships for 
Mental Health Journalism. Journalism 
fellows from Burundi and Uganda 
will be reporting on the intersection 
of mental health and climate change. 
Building on its successful mental 
health systems strengthening work in 
Liberia, the Center launched policy 
and workforce development efforts in 
Sierra Leone, Uganda, and Nigeria.

Irish journalist Órla Ryan 
received a fellowship 
to investigate gaps in 
assistance for people 
with mental illnesses. 
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These Chadian citizens will be among the last in 
their country to know about Guinea worm disease. 
Just nine human cases were reported there in 2024. 

Philanthropy
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As a not-for-profit organization, The Carter Center’s impact 
is driven by the generosity and commitment of individuals, 
foundations, corporations, and governments working together 
to wage peace, fight disease, and build hope. A total of 95,352 
donors contributed $350 million in cash, pledges, and in-kind 
gifts in 2023–2024 to further the Center’s mission.

At the heart of the Carter Center’s work are strategic 
partnerships that unite diverse stakeholders to address the 
world’s most pressing challenges. These collaborations amplify 
the Center’s efforts, driving innovation and expanding its 
global reach.

This year, the Carter Center’s initiatives highlighted the 
power of these alliances. The Center is a key coordinating 
partner in the expansion of the Reaching the Last Mile Fund, 
a seven-year, multipartner coalition dedicated to eliminating 
river blindness and lymphatic filariasis across 39 countries in 
Africa and Yemen. Launched at the 2023 Reaching the Last 
Mile Forum by His Highness Sheikh Mohamed bin Zayed Al 
Nahyan, president of the United Arab Emirates, and the Gates 
Foundation, the fund has committed $500 million to improve 
the lives of more than 400 million people. This collaboration 
unites governments, health organizations, and pharmaceutical 
companies, pooling resources and expertise to tackle these 
debilitating diseases. With support from this fund, The Carter 
Center will strengthen local health systems and accelerate the 
progress toward the elimination of these diseases in seven 
countries, in partnership with the other key coordinating 
partners, Sightsavers and The END Fund.

Collaboration is also central to the Carter Center’s 
efforts in governance and human rights, including 
Women’s Voice and Leadership, a Global Affairs 
Canada-supported initiative to empower women in the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo. The Center works 
to strengthen local women’s rights organizations by 
providing technical training, financial resources, and 
mentorship to expand their reach and sustainability. 
With these new tools, organizations will implement 
innovative approaches to challenge harmful sociocultural 
norms, increase women’s participation in governance, 
and expand access to income-generating opportuni-
ties — key steps toward reducing poverty and promoting 
economic growth. The initiative fosters inclusive, 
systemic change that empowers women and girls to lead 
and advocate for their rights at local, national, and inter-
national levels.

Our collaborative efforts drive large-scale change, but 
none of it would be possible without the unwavering 
support of individual donors. “Over the past 10 years, 
my wife and I have become more dedicated contributors 
to the Carter Center’s ongoing battle against global 
human suffering, whether it’s increasing awareness 
about mental illness, combating disease, or monitoring 
elections and promoting democracy,” said David Baker, 
a Legacy Circle and Ambassador Circle member. “We 
encourage and challenge anyone to find a more proactive 
organization to donate to. The Carter Center is most 
assuredly a worthy cause in our book.”

Sources of Support 
Fiscal Year 2023–2024

Total Expenses 
Fiscal Year 2023–2024

AdministrationFundraising

3% 5%

Programs

92%

Governments 
(U.S. and 
foreign)

Individuals

Foundations

7%

15%

8%

Other

3%

Corporations 
(includes 

in-kind gifts)

67%

About Our Donors
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Some 98 volunteers in the Atlanta area 

donated 4,685 hours of service in FY 2024. 

Their energy and devotion help the Center achieve much 

more with the resources it receives from its financial 

contributors. We thank these volunteers for their support.

Volunteers
The Carter Center appreciates the support of its 
many donors. Although we are able to list only those 
gifts that totaled $1,000 or more from Sept. 1, 2023, 
through Aug. 31, 2024, we are grateful for each gift 
that helps to support the vital work of The Carter 
Center. Every effort has been made for accuracy. 
Should there be any omission or error, we apologize 
and ask that it be brought to our attention.

A Note to Donors

These women belong to a Zambian 
community where The Carter Center is raising 
awareness about climate change and finding 
ways to counter its impact.
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Election observer Brett Jones speaks with early voters in Albuquerque, New Mexico, on 
Oct. 27, 2024. The Carter Center helped train more than 500 volunteers in three states to 
serve as nonpartisan observers for the November general election.
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Luccene Desir, the Carter Center’s senior country representative for Hispaniola, talks to a Dominican woman about 
lymphatic filariasis, a parasitic disease that causes severe swelling of a person’s limbs. 
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Rev. Dr. James Speed
Bethany D Spencer
Ms. Lana Grace Spraker
Mrs. Christine M. Stone

Mr. Trasbin Lee Stoner II
Ms. Elizabeth Strickland
Stephanie J Stringos
Dr. Robert A. Stull
Mr. Leo T. Surla
Mr. Woodruff Sutton
Mrs. Mangal Swaminathan
Mr. John W. Swinney
Estate of Edward Tanner
Janice Tarrant
Mr. William Tausig
David V. N. Taylor Foundation
Nancy J. Taylor
Thomas R. Terry
Mr. Curt Terwilliger
George Allen Tindol Jr.
Ms. Lorraine Toly
Josephine S. Trubek
Ms. Cynthia H. Trutanic, J. D.
Olimpo Mayen Tuazon
Ms. Charlene E. Twente
Dr. Jane Valentine
Estate of Donna Van Wechel
Ms. Mary C. Vanderschaaf
Mr. James Albert Vandeurzen
Regina B. Veatch
Village Delmar Apartments
Suzann W. Voigt
Ms. Marlene R. Vuitel
Karen Wagener
Mr. Fred C Wagner
Ms. Priscilla Walter
Estate of Lois and Jimmy Waltrip
Yongmei Wang
Diane D Warfield
Ms. Amy Zakrzewski Watson
Joanna Watson
Dr. Susan E. Webb
Arthur M. Webb
Ms. Carol K. Weiss
Mr. and Mrs. W. Harrison 

Wellford
Claire E. Welsh
WePartner Group
Mr. William J. Westlake
Ms. Leslie Weston
The Westport Fund
Mr. Peter A. Wilhelm
Mrs. Faye M. Wilson
Ms. Pamela K. Wilson
Dr. David Witt
Mr. Kenneth P. Wolford
Mr. David C. Woolman
Neil Yarnell
Mr. William H. Yerkes Jr.
Charles Young
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Cabinet 10,000+
Anonymous (16)
Mr. and Mrs. Gaby A. Ajram
The Ajram Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Aldrich
Dr. F. Towne Allen
Dr. Neil H. Allen
Mr. Edward E. Altemus
Barry W. and Debra L. Anderson
Mr. Brian Arbogast and Ms. 

Valerie Tarico
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill Jr.
Mr. Mushtaq Azad and  

Dr. Manik Husain
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Mrs. Laurie D. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. David Max Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Karl E. Bakhtiari
Karl Erik Bakhtiari Revocable 

Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen D. Balsamo
The Balsamo Family Foundation 

Inc.
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mr. James E. Barefoot and  

Ms. Wendy Miller
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Barker
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Barrow 

III
Dr. and Mrs. Richard A. Barry
Richard Allan Barry Family 

Charitable Foundation
Russ and E. Cordy Beckstead
Beightler Squires Charitable Trust
Brad and Mary Frances Benton
Ms. Susan E. Bevington
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Blackman
Robert and Joan Blackman Family 

Foundation
Dr. David F. Blake and  

Dr. Carol Ann Stratford
Dr. Peter C. Block and  

Mrs. Elizabeth H. Block
Mrs. Linda E. Bodnar
Dr. and Mrs. Joshua Boger
Boger Family Foundation Inc.
Mr. Philip P. Bolton
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Joseph Braverman Donor Fund
Mr. Richard Brems and  

Ms. Katy Hu
Mr. Arthur Brenneke
Ms. Jan W. Briscoe
Ms. Katherine K. Brobeck
Mrs. Martha Finn Brooks and  

Mr. Toby Brooks
Ms. Donna Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence J. Brown
Alvin I. & Peggy S. Brown Family 

Charitable Foundation
Ms. Terri D. Bullock

Mrs. Carol G. Burmeister
C3 Presents LLC
Ms. Kathleen Cafaro
Ms. Susan A. Cahoon
Mr. Christopher A. Calhoun
Dr. and Mrs. George H. Callcott
Mr. Simon F. Capper
Thalia & Michael C. Carlos 

Foundation Inc.
Mr. Andrew T. Cathy
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas W. Caves
Mr. John K. Chalmers
Ms. Diane M. Chesnut
Mr. and Mrs. Peter H. S. Chiang
Chick-fil-A Inc.
Ms. Cheryl Ching
Ms. Karen M. Clark
Mr. John R. Clifford
Dr. and Mrs. W. Randall Cline
Mr. Peter D. Conlon
Mr. and Mrs. Ross M. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Costello
Dr. Arnold R. Cowan and  

Rev. ChristineAnne C. Cowan
Drs. Frank and Ann Critz
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Culver
Dr. Woody Cunningham and  

Ms. Jessie Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Curry
Mrs. Jacqueline Dana
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Ms. Paula Davidson
Mr. Alan Davis and  

Mrs. Mary Lou Dauray
Ms. Barbara M. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn R. Davis
Ms. Nancy Davis
Nancy L. F. Davis Foundation
Ms. C. Maury Devine
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Dillard
The Dillard Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter
Carolyn and Keith Donnelly
Ms. Anneliese H. Duncan
Harry F. Duncan Foundation Inc.
Mr. Douglas Dunn and  

Mrs. Donna Gaab
DVJ Partnership
Mr. Walter Eberspacher
Mrs. Mary Eccles
The Eccles Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Paul B. Edgerley
The Edgerley Family Foundation
The Ellis Foundation Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Engelke
Engelke Family Foundation
Ms. Elizabeth A. English
Ms. Jessica Epperson
Ms. Jill Ericsson

Mr. Paul S. Fan and  
Ms. Lai-Sang Young

Mr. Michael G. Feinstein and  
Ms. Denise Waldron

Finn Brooks Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Fiorillo
Mr. Austin Fite
Fite Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Flora Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Foster
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Foszcz
The Honorable William Wyche 

Fowler Jr.
Ms. Mary Ann Francis
Mr. John H. Franks
Ms. Susan W. Fraysse
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew S. Frazier
Mr. and Mrs. Charles French
Dr. and Mrs. Richard Oliver 

Friday
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Friess
Mr. and Mrs. Milton S. Fujii
Full Circle Foundation
Ms. Joanna Fuller
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Funk
Mr. J. Rex Fuqua
Robert E. Gallagher Charitable 

Trust
Mr. William Gee and  

Ms. Susan Crothers
Dr. Paul W. Gerke
Mr. and Mrs. Praveen Ghanta
Ms. Amy L. Gibbs
Brenda and Roger Gibson
Roger and Brenda Gibson Family 

Foundation
Ms. Joanne G. Gimbel
Mr. and Mrs. Verlin L. Gingerich
Mr. Robert L. Glass and  

Ms. Iris Vessey
Mr. Michael Goodrich
Mr. and Mrs. Donald G. 

Goodwin
The Donald G and Ellen 

Goodwin Family Foundation, 
Inc

Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Gorman
M. Green Family Fund
Dr. Jeffrey Greve and  

Dr. Janis Kahn
Mr. and Mrs. Donal Grogan
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey B. Grossman
Mr. and Mrs. R. T. Hagemeyer
Mr. Ralph L. Hamilton
Mr. Mark P. Hampton
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

Hampton
Mr. John B. Hardman
The Dot & Lam Hardman Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris Jr.

Reverend Miriam L. Hathaway
Dr. and Mrs. Roger Tim Haug
Haug 1999 Alaska Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Haviland
Mr. and Mrs. Norman M. Hayes
Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
Mr. Gordy F. Hellenbrand
Mrs. Edigna Herold
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Ho
James and Anna Hoag Fund
Dr. Jeanne Hoch
William R. Hoch Family 

Foundation Inc
Dr. Donald Hopkins and  

Dr. Ernestine Hopkins
Dr. Marla S. Howard and  

Dr. Howard Foster
Mr. Thomas Karpinski and  

Ms. Christine M. Hrib-Karpinski
Ms. Susan McKee Hughes
John C. & Karyl Kay Hughes 

Foundation
Mr. Bruce Hull
Mr. and Mrs. Mark R. Humphrey
D. Jared Family Fund
Dr. Jin Jin
Mr. Joseph N. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen D. 

Johnston
Mr. Chris Jones and  

Mrs. Barb Jones
Dr. Geoffry Scott Jones and  

Dr. Shannon Beth Radke
Mr. Mark E. Kalmansohn
Mr. John W. Kapouch Jr.
Mr. Philip D. Kearns and  

Ms. Grace E. Ray
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher A. 

Keenan
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Kerns
Mrs. Lyn B. Kirkland
Mr. and Mrs. David F. Kirkpatrick
Dr. and Mrs. David A. Knauft
Mr. David L. Knierim
Mr. Thomas E. Koenig
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Dr. Wayne A. Kradjan and  

Mrs. Carolyn L. Kradjan
Mrs. Donna Krulitz
Drs. Mark and Diana Kudes
Ms. Cassandra Kwoh
Kwoh & Pong Foundation
Frank S. and Julia M. Ladner 

Family Foundation
The Robert and Vivian Lamb 

Fund
Mrs. Joan Lamonica
Dr. James T. Langland and  

Dr. Penny I. Langland
Ms. Sherry Lansing
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Mr. and Mrs. George W. Lattimer
Mr. and Mrs. Edward E. Lawson
Mr. Phillip O. Lawson
Ms. MaryAnn Leak
Mrs. Judith C. Lee
Ms. Elizabeth A. Liebman
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred R. Light
Mr. and Mrs. Norman Linnell
Mr. and Mrs. Russell S. Lyon
Dr. Stephen A. Maas
Ms. M. Joann Macey
Ms. Penelope J. Maddy
Mr. Edward Magarian
Dr. Peter C. Magrath and  

Rev. Susan Thon
Manaaki Foundation
Stuart Mannon, M.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Fred T. McGregor
Jeffrey and Karen McHenry
Mr. and Mrs. James M. McKinney
Ms. Martha McMahon
Ms. Susanne O. McMillan
Mr. and Mrs. Jim McNamara
Dr. Burrelle S. Meeks
Ms. Cynthia Merman
Mrs. Paula Merritt
Mr. Charles R. Miller
The Isobal and James T. Mills Jr. 

Family Fund
Misty Meadows Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Tyler C. Montague
Mr. Andrew Montgomery and  

Dr. Elizabeth Lawrence
Ms. Dorothy J. Moore
Ms. Sharron M. Morrow
Kristina and Patrick Morton
Mr. and Mrs. Michael E. Motes
Mrs. Catherine A. Mullins
Ms. Lee Ann Myers
Mr. Douglas W. Nelson
Ms. Teresa A. Nicholl and  

Mr. Peter T. Nicholl
Nicholl Family Foundation Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Nichols Jr.
Mrs. Judith A. Norman
Mr. James Norris
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Mr. Steven E. Nothern
Ms. Carol L. Nugent
Mr. Kenneth Olivier and  

Ms. Angela Nomellini
Dr. Gilbert S. Omenn and  

Ms. Martha A. Darling
Mr. Duane J. Oot
Dolores J. Oot Trust
Ms. Lisa Orberg
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Ostrander
Mr. Robert W. Page Jr.
Ms. F. Taylor Pape and  

Mr. Haddon Hufford

Mr. Chang K. Park
Mr. and Mrs. Sunny K. Park
Ms. Judith A. Petroski
Mr. Robert Pew and  

Ms. Susan Taylor
Rudy & Alice Ramsey 

Foundation
Rock Paper Scissors Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt N. Rathjen
Mr. Wendell S. Reilly and  

Ms. Mary Laney Reilly
Ms. Kimberly J. Rendleman
Ms. Anne Martin Reynolds and 

Mr. David Reynolds
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Rogers
Rogers Family Foundation Inc.
Ms. Cathi Roy
Dr. Selma H. Rutenburg
Mrs. Carol E. Saunders
Mr. and Mrs. David W. Scheible
The D & M Scheible Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Schiferl
Mr. and Mrs. John Schreiber
Drs. Evelyn and Craig Scott
Mr. John M. Scully
Dr. Ajeet Shankar and  

Ms. Rebekah Sexton
Mr. Hugo X. Shong/IDG Capital 

Partners
Mr. and Mrs. Steven J. Simmons
The Simmons Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory R. Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Smith
Ms. Cherida C. Smith
Mr. David C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P. Smith
Mr. Stanley P. Smith
Richard O. and June C. Smith 

Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Smith-

Dewey
Dr. Orlando Carter Snead III
Mr. and Mrs. John Robert 

Southall
Mr. Joel Spolsky and  

Mr. Jared Samet
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Squires
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires
Mrs. Mary Ellen Stachnik
Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard
Ms. Nancy R. Starr
Mr. Wray M. Stephens
Mr. Edward Stern and  

Ms. Claudia Hearn
The Claudia Hearn and  

Edward Stern Foundation
Ms. Linda R. Stoll
Linda R. Stoll Revocable Trust

James M. and Cathleen D. Stone 
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. John Strange
Mr. and Mrs. Sidney V. Suggs
Suggs Family Foundation
Ms. Anne E. Swenson
Mr. and Mrs. Chade-Meng Tan
Tan Teo Charitable Foundation
Ms. Lynn M. Tarrant
Ms. Judy M. Taylor
Ms. Suzanne K. Taylor
Ms. Dona E. Teplitz
Dr. Samuel T. Test
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick C. 

Teutsch
Andrew Tobias
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Turner
Two or More Foundation
Ms. Martha L. Vaughan
Mr. David R. Virden
Mr. Paul E. von Kuster III
Dr. Mark von Zastrow
Mr. Steven C. Voorhees
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald K. 

Wackowski
Ms. Carolyn Walker
Commander Peter W. Ward and 

Mrs. Jennifer R. Dunson
Ms. Donna M. Warnken-Brill
Dr. Jack Webb and  

Ms. Nancy Allen
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Weber
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. 

Weinholtz
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Welch
Ms. Lynn Wentworth

Mr. Michael J. Wetherbee
Sarah R. Wetherbee Charitable 

Trust
Dr. Patricia Wheeler and  

Dr. Stephen Wheeler
Mr. J. Stewart White
Mr. Robert M. White
Mr. John F. Wieland
Ms. Mary K. Williams and  

Mr. Michael Sayre
C. Snead M. Williams Family 

Trust
Ms. Susan Williamson
The Willow Springs Foundation
Melody Wilder and David Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Edward J. Wilson
The Wilson Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Branson L. Wood 

III
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth M. 

Woodworth
Mr. and Mrs. Todd Yankee
Dr. Ellen H. Yankellow and  

Mr. William E. Chapman
Dr. and Mrs. Cary Yeh
Dr. Clarice M. Yentsch
Ms. Martha C. Zuniga

Diplomat $5,000–
$9,999
Anonymous (8)
Ms. Denise Abrams
William B. Ackerman Foundation
Ms. Sally Adams and  

Mr. Louis Richard
Mr. and Mrs. Miles Alexander

A street vendor sells apples and pears in Caracas, 
Venezuela, where The Carter Center observed flawed 
elections in 2024.
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Ms. Toni W. Alexander
Mr. and Mrs. Silvio P. Alfeo
Mr. Steve M. Alpers
Ms. Anita M. Anderson
Ms. Kim M. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Andreen
Arbor Rouge Foundation
The Arches Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce H. Armstrong
Ms. Claire Lewis Arnold and  

Mr. H. Ross Arnold II
Mrs. Patricia K. AtLee
The AtLee Family Foundation 

Inc.
Ms. Gayle Baker
Dr. Ronald L. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Jon W. Balke
Mr. Peter Bannon and  

Ms. Maura Considine
Mr. Thomas Bapu
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd J. Baroody
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Barta
Mr. Robert Baumler
Mr. Ian Bavey
Ms. Catherine Cupolo Bawa
Dr. Jean D. Bayless
Dr. Robert A. Berenson
Ms. Mary Bergman
Mr. Richard E. Berkins and  

Ms. Tomoko Takami
Mr. Charles S. Biehn Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. David F. Bishop
Mr. Thomas C. Bishop
Dr. Tallis Blalack and Ms. 

Katherine Weller
Mr. Lawrence Blaskopf
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Blesso Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Norman Bliss
Mr. Wayne Blythe and  

Dr. Cheryl Blythe
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Boddy
Mr. Geoffrey Bond
Dr. and Mrs. Gordon S. Bonham
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Boone 

Jr.
Ms. Roseann Bove
Ms. Molly E. Boyle
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Braband
Mr. Jeffrey P. Breckel
Mr. and Mrs. J. Christopher 

Brown
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Brown
John & Rosemary Brown Family 

Foundation
Bruce Family Limited Partnership
Ms. Connie Buchanan
Dr. Robert Burton and  

Ms. Wendy Robinson
The Cappa Family

Dr. Louis Centofanti and  
Ms. Wanda Rachels

Mr. Marc A. Chary
Dr. and Mrs. Chee W. Chow
The Ciervo Foundation
Ms. Marge Coahran
Mr. Edward B. Cohen and 

Ambassador Charlene 
Barshefsky

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph V. Cohen
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Dr. and Mrs. J. Richard Collins
Dr. Pamela Y. Collins
Mr. Robert A. Cook
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin C. Cooper
Ms. Ellen Covairt and  

Mr. Bernard R. Kalscheuer
Dr. and Mrs. Charles Cowan
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Crain
Dr. Gary Cromer and  

Ms. Judy K. Porter
Mr. and Mrs. Alex Crumbley
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas 

Cunningham
Dr. Roy Curtiss III
Ms. Renu Daga
The Honorable and Mrs. John H. 

Dalton
Dr. and Mrs. Sita K. Dash
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Dr. Joanne De Phillips
Mr. and Mrs. Wynand C. DePuy
Mr. Mark Dickinson
The Dickinson-Stanghellini Trust
Dinneen Charitable Giving Fund
Ms. Joan E. Donnelly
Ms. Anne Dougherty
The Dougin Family Foundation
Dove Givings Foundation II
Mr. Douglas O. Drake
Ms. Julie Dretzin
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and  

Dr. Janice Duke
Ms. Kimberly A. Edwards
Mr. Gregory N. Eppler
Mr. Byron Escue
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Everly
Ms. Barbara Faga and  

Mr. Paul C. Kulinski
Mr. and Mrs. L. Reade Fahs
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Fantuzzi
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Farese
Professor and Mrs. Joseph Farrell
The Reverend Dr. Leroy Fassett
The Honorable and Mrs. R. 

Keegan Federal Jr.
Ms. Ann B. Fegan
Ms. Patricia S. Ferlic
Mrs. Scott Ferris
Ms. Carolina Ficarrotta

Ms. Sara I. Figueroa de Toledo
Mr. Kevin P. Filter and  

Ms. Sandra Tazelaar
Ms. Jean H. Fisher
Ms. Judith A. Fitz
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron H. Fowler
Dr. Nicole Frahm
FThree Foundation
Ms. Elaine S. Furlow
Mr. and Mrs. William Gagen
Mr. James F. Gammill Jr. and  

Ms. Susan H. Alexander
Mr. Frank Gerace
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence D. Gilson
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Giordano
Global Sun Investments
Mr. Thomas Glowacki
Dr. Richard H. Goldberg
Mr. and Mrs. George Googasian
Googasian Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Goulston
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Graves
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and  

Ms. D. Clark Griffin-Eddings
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Grose
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Grzedzinski
The Gumbo Foundation
Carroll Joseph Haas Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Habig
The Hale Foundation
Ms. Mary J. Hamilton
Mr. Richard Hamilton and  

Mr. Leo Motivans
Ms. Karen A. Hammerstrom
Ms. Elizabeth Hardie
Ms. Beth O. Harrell
Mr. and Mrs. David P. 

Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. Peter V. Harris
Dr. Nabil Hatoum
Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Hauser
Mrs. Judith Hays
Ms. Vivian J. Headings
Dr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Heller
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Heneghan
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Henzel
Mr. Frederick C. Herzog III and 

Ms. Marla J. Mercer
Ms. Susan A. Heule
Ms. Mary Emily Hogan
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis D. 

Hollingsworth
Dr. Thomas R. Holmes and  

Dr. Grace D. Holmes
Dr. Don Holmgren and  

Dr. Jennifer Holmgren
Mr. Forest Honl
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelius Houston

Ms. Rita Hovakimian and  
Dr. Robert Weinberg

Mrs. Janet M. Howle
Dr. Matthew and Linda Hulbert
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen A. Hulsizer
Mr. and Mrs. Phillip Hurt
Ms. Crista Carrell and  

Mr. Rick Huszagh
The Rick Hutcheson and Rob 

Kincaid Charitable Giving Fund 
at The Community Foundation, 
Strengthening Inland 
Southern California through 
Philanthrophy

Ms. Margaret M. Hyatt
ILLUME Advising
Ms. Henna Inam
Dr. S. Rubina Inamdar and  

Mr. Kayyum Mansoor
Mr. and Mrs. Bahman M. Irvani
Ms. Sara Irvani
Mr. Keith Ito
Jalima Holdings LTD.
Dr. Attigupam R. Jayaram
Mr. Robert Jecmen and  

Ms. Diane Reiko Fujii
Rev. Dr. Riley E. Jensen
Dr. Kelley Rae Jewett and  

Ms. Kristi Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Alan H. Jobe
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce E. Johnsen
Ms. Marjory J. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Johnson
Dr. Shawn P. Jorgensen and  

Dr. Stephanie E. Jorgensen
Ms. Fredericka B. Jura
Dr. Julian Leonard Kadish
Mr. Steven Kallio Jr.
Mr. Walid H. Kattan
Mr. Edward Keiderling
Ms. Rosemary M. Kessler
The Key Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. David Khoo
Mrs. Mary Pat Killian
Dr. and Mrs. Sung-Hou Kim
Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Kireker
Mr. Douglas Klaucke and  

Ms. Natalie Moses
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan B. Kluger
Mr. Robert N. Knight Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Hendrik C. 

Knipscheer
Knopf Family Foundation
Ms. Kristin L. Koblish
Mr. Ronald Krisch
Mr. and Mrs. Louis R. Kroll
Mr. and Mrs. William Kent 

Krueger
Mr. Woodrow A. Krugel
Mrs. Dulcie A. Kugelman
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Kugelman Family Foundation
Mr. James G. Kulleck
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Labowsky
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis R. Lacroix
Rev. and Mrs. Gary R. LaCroix
Dr. Susan M. Laing
Mr. and Mrs. Henry G. Landau
Ms. Robin J. Lasko
Ms. Nancy Latner
Dr. and Mrs. Sean Lavine
Dr. Thomas Learch
Mr. Joseph Robert Lentini and 

Ms. Sandra J. Piech
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Mr. Ronald M. Libby and  

Ms. Janene Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Limbach
Ms. Sylvia F. Linke
Ms. Sharon Liu
Ms. Margaret J. Livingston
Ms. Alicia Loo and  

Mr. Guy Miller
Mr. Christopher W. Love
Ms. Kathryn Lynn
Ms. Helen A. Lyons
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Lyttle
Dr. James T. MacGregor and  

Dr. Judith MacGregor
Mr. Carl Malcolm and  

Dr. Jessica Link-Malcolm
Ms. Diane Malone
Ms. Pamela J. Mansfield
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis A. Martinek
Mrs. Kayanne Massey
The John J. and Maryanne T. 

Mauriel Family Foundation
Mr. John W. Maynard and  

Ms. Judith P. Snyder
Ms. Kerrie McCaffrey
Ms. Margaret M. McCarthy
Ms. Margaret McClamroch
Mrs. Lynne R. McClendon
Mr. and Mrs. David P. McElroy
Dr. Mary Jo McGee-Brown
Ms. Sharon McGregor
Mr. Gary McGuire
Ms. Patricia Ann McGuire
Ms. Anne McKenzie
Anne McKenzie Charitable Trust
Ms. Maridelle McKesson
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas C. 

McLaughlin
Ms. Linda McMullen
Mr. James J. McQueeny
Mr. Charles A. Mecum
Dr. and Mrs. Kenneth J. Mello
Mr. and Mrs. Arvind Menon
Mr. Ron Meshberg
The Meshberg Foundation Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. Nick Meves

Ms. Laverna E. Meyer
Mr. and Mrs. Ivan Mikysa
Dr. Calvin Miller
Dr. and Mrs. Dayton Miller
Ms. Susan E. Miller-Tully and  

Mr. John L. Tully
Dr. Masakazu Miyagi and  

Dr. Mary Miyagi
Mr. Robert Miyashiro
Dr. and Mrs. Harvey 

Mohrenweiser
Dr. and Mrs. James W. Mold
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph C. 

Montgomery
Ms. Jane Moretz Edmisten
The Honorable Alfred H. Moses
Mr. Paul Mounts
Mr. Richard A. Muller
Dr. Somnath N. Naik
Ms. Sandhya Nandigum
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Nard
Ms. Linda Newborn
Dr. Ronald P. Ngayan and  

Ms. Sasha Gulati-Ngayan
NLH Charitable Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell E. Northrop 

III
Norwell Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Nygard
Ms. Dianne O’Connell
Ms. Leslie O’Loughlin
Mr. James M. O’Neill and  

Ms. Kathy Mosier
Mr. Lee A. Obenchain
The Camielle Ann Odom Trust
The Honorable Mary Margaret 

Oliver
Mr. Robert E. Oppenheimer
Dr. Gina Orton
Ms. Melinda T. Owens
Mr. Rusty Pace
Rusty and Connie Pace Family 

Foundation
Mrs. Dorothy B. Padgett
Ms. Noreen J. Parrett
Mr. Daniel K. Paulien
The Domenico Paulon 

Foundation
The Payne Fund
Mr. Edward A. Pearson
Dr. and Mrs. Theodore Petroulas
Poorman-Hoyt/Stratford 

Foundation
Mr. Jeffrey K. Postle
Mr. Michael Powers and  

Ms. Sallie Bryant
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Pozzi
Dr. and Mrs. Robert J. Puckett
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Ms. Anne L. Putnam
Mrs. Diana L. Putz

Ms. Sara R. Ransford
Mr. Paul G. Ravnikar
The Reidler Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Reinholt
Ms. Stephanie W. Renuart
Mr. Sung Rhee
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Rieck
Mr. Raymond Allan Ring and  

Ms. Joann M. Peeks
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ritchie
Dr. and Mrs. Gaylan Rockswold
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Romond
Mr. and Mrs. Philip R. 

Rosenberry
Ms. Heather L. Ross
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Rowe
Mr. George A. Rudeseal
Ms. Kathy A. Sandoval
Mrs. Joanne D. Sanger
Mr. Zachary B. Sank
The Sank Family Foundation
Ms. Janet F. Scharp
Mr. and Mrs. Taylor Schollmaier
Dr. Timothy H. Self and Dr. 

Melissa Matlock-Self
Mr. Collin Sexton
C. Sexton Management LLC
Ms. Carolyn Sue Sharpe
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Shaw
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory L. Sheehy
Mr. Robert A. Sherman

Robert A. Sherman & Gloria 
Sherman Family Foundation

Ms. Josephine Sherwood
Dr. Cynthia Shewan
Ms. Jane E. Shivers and  

Mr. William M. Sharp Sr.
Ms. Gail D. Shore
Ms. Mary M. Sies
The Sikand Foundation Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. Harry R. Silletti
Ms. Andrea L. Sjoreen
Ms. Margaret S. Smith
Mr. Mark C. Smith
Mr. Norman E. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Michael E. Sortum
Mr. Brent A. Sowers
Ms. Ann G. Stallard
Ms. Joyce M. Stearns
Mr. Kenneth A. Steiner
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mr. and Mrs. W. Rodney Stern
Mr. Robert Stets Jr. and  

Ms. Lena Lee
Mrs. Stefanie H. Stevenson
Rev. and Mrs. Glen J. Stewart
Ms. Judith A. Stewart
Ms. Alice L. Stoll
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Dr. Barbara S. Stowe
Strategic Growth and 

Transformation

Chol Nyapialy sits outside her home in Yuai, South Sudan, 
following surgery on both eyelids to reverse the effects 
of advanced trachoma, a bacterial eye disease. Her free 
surgery was supported by The Carter Center.
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Sutter Instrument Company
Mr. and Mrs. Chester L. Sutula
Ms. Amy Swanson
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald A. Swanson
Mr. Robert E. Swanton
Dr. Daniel Weaver and  

Dr. Beth L. Tanner
Dr. Kenneth Taylor and 

Ambassador Michèle Taylor
Ms. Barbara Teichert
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M. Treder
Mr. Robert B. Tripp
Mr. David Tyson
Ms. Corbin Vandemoer
Ms. Joan L. Visser
Mr. and Mrs. William A. Vogel
Vogel Family Foundation Inc.
Ms. Janet S. Walde
Mr. Dougin Walker and  

Ms. Elizabeth Bromley
Mr. and Mrs. Qaiser F. Waraich
Waraich Family 2016 Charitable 

Lead Trust
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Ward
The Ward Foundation
Warren Bull Charitable Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Watson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. E. Hunter Welles 

III
Mr. and Mrs. John E. Wells
Ms. Ann Rhodes White
Mrs. Neva Whybark
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm H. Wiener
Malcolm Hewitt Wiener 

Foundation
Mr. Peter D. Wildes and  

Dr. Julia W. Wildes
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Mary Beth Williams and  

Charles F. Williams, Rear 
Admiral, USN, Ret.

Mr. Larry B. Wiltse
Mr. Jim Winestock
Winestock Foundation Inc.
Dr. Jacqueline Wittmeyer and  

Dr. Christopher Hill
Mr. Daniel Woodard
Mr. and Mrs. James Douglas 

Workman
John R. Wright and Eloise 

Mountain Wright Foundation
Ms. Lynne E. Wrocklage
Wrocklage Family Charitable 

Foundation
Mr. Alexander C. Wu
Mr. Robert A. Yellowlees
Mr. and Mrs. Michael V. Yester
Dr. and Mrs. Richard W. Zurek
Dr. Sape A. Zylstra

Envoy $2,500–$4,999
Anonymous (17)
A Just Better Foundation
Ms. Frances Ackerman
Mr. Donald Adams and Ms. Ellen 

Maland
Mr. James F. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Aiken
Mr. John Aje
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph T. Alexander
Ms. Susan W. Almy
Mr. Joseph B. Alonso
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Alston Sr.
Ms. Elizabeth Anderson
Dr. Larry J. Anderson and  

Ms. Karen Torghele
Ms. and Mrs. Richard Andrews
Mr. and Mrs. Gavin S. Appleby
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick W. Asher
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Aweida
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory 

Ballentine
Ms. Janet M. Bartlett
Mr. Todd Barton and  

Ms. Mary Elizabeth Kreider
Mr. David W. Bartz and  

Ms. Margaret L. Johnson
Rev. and Mrs. Clayton Bates
Ms. Helen H. Baumann
Ms. Lyla B. Baumann
Mr. and Mrs. Bryan T. Bebb
Mrs. Darla J. Beck
The Beggs Family Foundation
Ms. Sandi Jo Behnken
Ms. Elaine Bellin
Mrs. Albert Bendich
Mr. Andrew J. Bergan
Mr. Barry D. Bergman and  

Ms. Susan Glick
Ms. Victoria BerkeMeyer and  

Mr. Seth BerkeMeyer
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Berry
Mr. Wayne Bert and  

Ms. Kerstin Jagerbo
Ms. Beth Bertelson
Ms. Elizabeth Biliske and  

Mr. Patrick Holmes
Ms. Patricia Bisset
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Bockmann
Ms. Myrtle Bohanan
Mr. Franz-Josef Boll
Ms. Victoria Bone
Ms. Linda K. Borgman
Mr. John S. Boyd
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Brainerd
Ms. Marion Elizabeth Brannon
Ms. Nancy E. Braun
Ms. Janice Brazil
Mr. Alan R. Bright
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Bristow

Ms. Barbara A. Bruner
Mr. Wesley Bryan and  

Ms. Terri Bryan-Zwick
Mr. Barry Bryant and  

Dr. Genevieve M. Lambert
Mr. and Mrs. John Bush
Ms. Susan Okie Bush
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Butcher
Chuck and Susan Buxton
Mr. and Mrs. Luca Cafiero
Ms. Mary Campbell
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Capella
Ms. Linda L. Carder
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. Cardozo
Mrs. Linda B. Carlyle
Mr. Brian Carman
Ms. Susan A. Carr
Mr. and Mrs. Kermon A. Carter
Mr. James G. Chamberlain and 

Ms. Diane B. Burrows
Edith and Anthony Chan
Mr. Kang Chan
Ms. Lynda P. Chesterton
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Chiang
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M. Christensen
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Cline
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey M. Cohen
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and  

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Ms. Courtney Collins
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Conn
Mr. Jack G. Conner
Mr. William Cook and Ms. 

Monika Mevenkamp
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan P. Cooper
Mr. James M. Copeland Jr. and 

Ms. Deborah E. McFarland
Mr. Philip Corliss
Ann and Jeff Cramer
Mrs. Pam Crockett
Mr. Kevin T. Cronin
Ms. Mary Karen Cronin
Ms. Molly E. Cullum
Ms. Julia Dancy
Rev. Bruce Davidson and  

Mr. Donald Barb
Dr. Guy D. Davis and  

Ms. Norma Hensler-Davis
Mr. Larry E. Davis and  

Ms. Paula J. Quell
Mr. Durfee Day
Mr. Justin De Graaf and  

Dr. Sumona De Graaf
Mr. P. De Villiers
Mr. William A. Deacon
Ms. Ann Marie Dechman
Ms. Irene Devine and  

Mr. Hal Schneider
Ms. Tina Devries
Ms. Pacia T. S. Dewald
Mr. George T. Dewey III

Ms. Enid Diamante
Nelson G. Dong, Esq.
Ms. Peggy N. Dougherty
Ms. Irene Dowdy
Ms. Christine Doyle and  

Mr. Michael Yessik
Dr. Lisa M. Dresner
Dr. Daniel K. Dugger
Mr. and Mrs. Peter B. Dunlap
Mr. Pierce Dunn and  

Ms. Lee Hoyt
Ms. Marcia F. Dunscomb
Ms. Patricia Dusenbury
Mr. J. Christopher Eagan
Eagan Family Foundation Inc.
Mr. Mitch Earle
Mr. M. Michael Egan
Mr. and Mrs. David Eggert
Dr. and Mrs. Bryon Ehlmann
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Eisenacher
Ms. Johanna W. Ellis-Reisinger
Mr. Joseph E. Ellovich
Dr. Antoinette S. Emch
Ms. Patricia H. Enmon
Mr. Thomas W. Evans
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Ms. Kathy Evitts
Dr. Paul G. Farnham
Ms. Ellen S. Feldman
Dr. R. Fenton-May
Ms. Susan S. Ferson
Mrs. Ruth A. Fingerson
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth W. Fischer
Ms. Nancy E. Fleischer
Mr. and Mrs. Annuel Forman
Ms. Helen Fosgate
Ms. Kristin Fossum
Ms. Jeanna French
Ms. Susanne Fritsche
Dr. Charles L. Fuller
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley A. Galanski
Ms. Alison Gallaway and  

Mr. Andy Carson
Ms. Barbara Garton
Carol and William Gay
Dr. Patricia I. Gillis
Ms. Elizabeth G. Ginsberg
Giving Liberally
Ms. Sabrina C. Glaser
Mr. Alan R. Goff
Mr. and Mrs. William Goldsmith
Mr. Jed M. Goldstein
Ms. Michele A. Goodman
Dr. Esther M. Goudsmit
Abe Graber Memorial Fund
Dr. Randal O. Graham
Dr. and Mrs. Samuel Graham
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Gray
Mr. Douglas Green
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Mr. and Mrs. Gary Green
Mr. Kevin F. Green
Mr. and Mrs. Peter G. Green
Gary & Jeannie Green Family 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Chesley M. Greene
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Gritman
Dr. and Mrs. James L. Groskreutz
Ms. Dianne E. Gruger
Ms. Adele S. Grunberg
Ms. Juanita E. Hallisey
Mr. Andrew Hallowell
Mr. David G. Halsema
Mr. Robert T. Hanley
The Robert T. Hanley 

Foundation
Mr. John B. Hanlon
Dr. and Mrs. M. Emdadul Haque
Mr. Jay Hariz
Ms. Margaret Harris
Ms. Janet L. Harshberger
Ms. Ann-Marie F. Hartline
Mrs. Kathleen J. Hasenohrl
Mr. and Mrs. Danny L. 

Haukedalen
Mr. William P. Hausdorff, Ph.D. 

and Ms. Wendell Hausdorff, 
Ph.D

Hans H. and Kathryn W. Heikel
Dr. Charles J. Helm
Ms. Babette Henagan
Robert and Norma Henderson
Mr. William O. Hendricks
Ms. Ann D. Herbert
Mr. Joseph E. Herbst
Ms. Debra K. Hernandez
Mr. Richard E. Herring
Mrs. Frances Marion Hibbard
Ms. Pamelia S. Hilty
Mr. Joseph Hingston and  

Ms. Theresa Gladek-Hingston
Dr. JoNell L. Hjelsand
Mr. and Mrs. Philip E. Holladay 

Jr.
Mr. Bob Hope
Mr. Earl D. Horman
Ms. Mary L. Hortin
Ms. Alice Houseknecht
Alice and Jaclyn Houseknecht 

Foundation
Mr. Robert C. Hoyler
Dr. Diana A. Hu and  

Mr. Stephen Holve
Ms. Esther B. Huber
Ms. Claudia N. Hughes
Ms. Cheryl Hunley
RJ Hutton Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. 

Iacolucci
Ms. Kazuko Ishida
Mr. David Iverson

Jana Foundation
Jason’s Getaway
Mr. Robert L. Jennings Jr. and 

Ms. Barbara H. Bott
Mr. and Mrs. Eric W. Johnson
Ms. Mary Ann Johnson
Ms. Kay B. Jones
Ms. Mi Young Joo and  

Mr. Michel Biard
Mr. Lawrence E. Jordan
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Jordan
Ms. Janice M. Jung and  

Mr. John Davis
Ms. Kris L. Kandler and  

Ms. Kim Kandler
Ms. Myra R. Kauffman and  

Mr. Michael R. McCartney
Mr. and Mrs. Peter G. Kelly
Dr. and Mrs. Dale J. Kempf
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Kick
Dr. and Mrs. William A. Kincaid
Mr. Michael R. King
Mr. John E. Kinikin
Dr. Stephen N. Kissinger
Ms. Kathleen N. Knepper
Mr. and Mrs. Gearold L. Knowles
Mrs. Susan Knowles
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Kobs
Mr. Eric K. Kocher
Mr. Kerry W. Kohnen
Ms. Cynthia Kosacz
Dr. Henry Kuharic
Mr. and Mrs. Phillips Kuhl
Dr. and Mrs. Ashok L. Kumar
Ms. Virginia L. Lacy
Mr. Michael LaHood and  

Ms. Elizabeth Pontikes
Ms. Leslie C. Lambert
Mr. and Mrs. Scott D. Lambros
Mr. and Mrs. William Laprade
Mr. and Mrs. James M. LaRowe
Ms. Marcia A. Lattimore
Ms. M. Jean Lauth
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley C. Lawson
Mr. Douglas Leal
Ms. Jessica Ledbetter and  

Ms. Ranee Barsanti
LeFort-Martin Fund of 

The Chicago Community 
Foundation

Mrs. Tecla J. Legge
Mr. Dale W. Leibach
Mr. and Mrs. L. Dave Lentz
Dr. Stephen Leppla
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond M. 

Leuthold
Mr. David R. Lewis
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
David R. Lewis Family 

Foundation
Anna and Rick Lide

Ms. Meredith Lilley
Ms. Elsa Limbach
Dr. Mark Lindborg and  

Ms. Laurie Parson
Ms. E. Kirsten Linker
Ms. Mary D. Linton
Ms. Angela M. Lo Re
Mr. Dennis Lockhart and  

Ms. Mary Taylor
Mr. Gregory Loek and  

Ms. Kathleen Rice
Mr. Joseph E. Logan
Ms. Jane R. Lubben
Ms. Phyllis Lucas and  

Mr. Odin D. Christensen
Lutes Family
Ms. Patricia A. Lutz
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph P. Lyons
Mr. and Mrs. D. Gordon 

MacLeod
Ms. Julia Maher
Mr. Iqbal G. Mamdani
The Iqbal & Shelby Mamdani 

Foundation
Dr. Mark Manasse and  

Dr. Janet Mohle-Boetani
Ms. Donna Manning
Mr. James F. Marchman III
Mr. David Marchosky
Ms. Joycelyn A. Martinez-Wade
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Maser
Mr. and Mrs. Richard T. Mason
Mr. Peter Mathis
Mr. William K. Mathison
Dr. Donald E. Maurer
Ms. Anna L. Mayne
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Alexander F. & Phyllis L. McCalla 

Revocable Trust
Ms. Clare McCamy and  

Mr. Harrison B. Miller
Ms. Janice McGarrah and  

Mr. Steven Williams
Ms. Christine M. McGarry
John Luther McLean and  

Isabelle Gray McLean Trust
McMahon Family Fund at  

The San Diego Foundation
Ms. Catherine McNamara
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan W. Mead
Dr. Nathaniel Griffith Means
Ms. Smita Mehta
Mr. William Meier
Mr. and Mrs. George Mejica
Ms. Ramona H. Merrifield
Ms. Ann G. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Miller
Mrs. Helen Probst Mills and  

Mr. Stuart Mills
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Mirsky
Ms. Mary Monroe-Rodman

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Morgan
Mr. Donald Morris and  

Ms. Joan Cartales
Mr. William R. Morris
Mr. Gary Morrison and  

Ms. Sari Mintz
Ms. Cheryl A. Mugno and  

Mr. William Trompeter
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Muirhead
Dr. Linda Mulka
Ms. Myra M. Munson
Dr. Robert Negrini and  

Ms. Jana McIntyre
Mr. Matthew Neiger
Ms. Doris W. Neilson
Dr. Diana F. Nelson
Mr. Michael Nelson and  

Ms. Louise Durocher
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. 

Netherland
Ms. Roberta Newell and  

Mr. Charles Heffernan
Ms. Claudia Nickel
Ms. Suzanne K. Nieman
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Noonan
Mr. and Mrs. Richard S. Novack
Mr. Adam H. Noyes
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher R. 

O’Dea
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel E. O’Neill
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. 

O’Riordan
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Obey
The Ozma Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Paul H. Page
Mr. William A. Parker
Mr. and Mrs. James Patton
Ms. Jane Paxson
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Peabody
Ms. Irene Pecuszok
The Irene A. Pecuszok Living 

Trust
Dr. Deborah S. Lee and  

Mr. John W. Peifer
Mr. William Kanarek and  

Ms. Deborah Perry
Mr. Norman John Peterson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Joe Pfaff
Mr. and Mrs. Guy D. Pfeiffer
Mr. and Mrs. David P. G. Phillips
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Pieper
Mr. Larry W. Pittman
Pittman Plants
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan Poag
Ms. Velma W. Pressly
Ms. Margaret F. Pryatel
Psychological Assessment 

Resources Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Quinn
Dr. and Mrs. Donald J. Raithel
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Mr. Wade A. Rakes and  

Mr. Nicholas T. Miller
Dr. Wendy Rashidi
Ms. Rebecca L. Rawls
Dr. Angela G. Ray
Mr. and Mrs. D. Paul Regan
Mr. Michael J. Repass
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Reppun
Mr. Lee Allen Reynolds
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Dr. and Mrs. Jason Rich
Mr. Kirk Rich
Mr. David A. Rieck
Mr. and Mrs. Randy 

Rinderknecht
Dr. and Mrs. Paul F. Rizza
Mr. Lake Robertson III
Ms. Marilyn A. Robertson
Ms. Janessa R. Robinson
Dr. Daniel Rodeheaver and  

Dr. Denise Rodeheaver
Ms. Florence Rogers and  

Ms. Janet Ainsworth
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald M. Rohan
Mr. Paul Romano
Mr. Murray Rosenblatt
Dr. Colleen Beecken Rye and  

Mr. Brian Rye
Mr. and Mrs. Gary R. Sager
Ms. Carol S. Samuelson
Mr. Alan M. Scheider
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Schentrup

Ms. Anne Schlagenhaft
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Schlake
Mr. Robert L. Schmerker
Mrs. Charlotte H. Schmidt
Mr. Philip E. Schoene and  

Ms. Amy Bolton
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Scholpp
Ms. Kathryn Schultz
Mr. and Mrs. William 

Schumacher
Mr. Kirk A. Scott
Ms. Patricia M. Scott
The Honorable Leah Sears and 

Mr. Haskell Ward
Ms. Ellen Segar
Ms. Carole A. Seger
Dr. Mridu Sekhar and  

Dr. Chandra Sekhar
Mr. Charles R. Sellers
Dr. Ramesh Shah and  

Ms. Nita Varia
Dr. A. Richey Sharrett
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Shavlik
The Sheth Family Foundation 

Inc.
Ms. Ruth Shults and Mr. Charles 

Bradley
Mr. John R. Shutt
Mr. Fahim Siddiqui
Dr. Murali Sivarajan and  

Dr. Gouri Sivarajan
Mr. and Mrs. Gary F. Skinner

Bruce R. and Jane Scharding 
Smedley

Ms. Alicia Woolston Smith
Ms. Barbara Smith and  

Mr. Larry Sampler
Mrs. Patricia K. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. R. Bob Smith III
Mr. Valton D. Smith
Mr. William H. Smith
Smith Family Benevolent Fund
Mr. David S. Smoak and  

Ms. Charity A. Townsend
Dr. David A. Snow and  

Dr. Roberta Lessor
Ms. Elizabeth Sorber
Mr. Frederick S. Spangler
Mr. Edwin C. Sparks
Mr. Jim Spearman
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey Spencer
Mr. Michael Spiegelman
Mr. Joseph Spinden
Drs. Joseph Jez and  

Courtney Starks
Ms. Mary Stenbeck
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Stensrud
Mr. Panos Stephens and  

Dr. Natalie Stephens
Mr. Steven Stockman
Mr. David B. Stoppelman
Ms. Margaret A. Strahl
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Stripe
Mr. and Mrs. Barry P. Stuart
Mrs. Irene Stuart

Ms. Patricia M. Sullivan
Mr. and Mrs. Paul D. Sullivan
Ms. Elizabeth C. Sussman
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan M. Szanto
Mr. Richard Szeliski and  

Ms. Lyn McCoy
Ms. Gail C. Szenes
Mr. Douglas Szperka and  

Dr. Christina Szperka
Ms. Leigh F. Tate
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Tausz
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Taylor
Ms. Jane E. Thompson
Ms. Rita Lee Thompson
Mr. Robert Thompson
Jon and Susie Throop
Mr. and Mrs. Charles J. Torian Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Roland D. Trietsch
Mrs. Phyllis J. Troyer
Dr. Carolyn Trunca and  

Mr. David Moriarty
Ms. Carol L. Tucker-Foreman
Turner Foundation Inc.
Mr. James R. Uber and Ms. Jean 

E. Marcy
Ms. Phyllis L. Van Winkle
Mr. Brian K. Vaughan and  

Ms. Ruth McKee
Vaughan McKee Family Trust
Ms. Kathryn Lynn Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Warren
Ms. Nancy A. Watson
Ms. Alecia L. Wawrzynski
Ms. Sharon V. Weeks and  

Ms. Mary Weeks
Mr. George L. Weir
Mr. Robert D. Wells
Mr. Max W. Wendell
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Wendt
Mr. Tyler Wiegert
Mr. Roger C. Wiest
John and Marcia Wilkinson
Ms. Emily E. Wirth
Mrs. Susan L. Woo
Ms. Marion Woodfield and  

Mr. Marc Weinberg
Ms. Kathleen Worley
Dr. and Mrs. Harold Yoon
Mr. and Mrs. Peter M. Yungbluth
Dr. David Zamierowski and  

Dr. Marilyn Zamierowski
Mr. and Mrs. C. Nick Zeller
Mr. Song Zhu
Dr. Susan Zimicki
Ms. Marilyn R. Zitterkopf
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Zitzman

Emissary $1,000–$2,499
Anonymous (31)
Mr. M. Eugene Aaron

Members of Georgia organizations across the political spectrum gathered at The Carter 
Center in August 2024 to be recognized for their work fostering trust in the state’s electoral 
system. The reception was sponsored by the Georgia Democracy Resilience Network, 
supported by The Carter Center. 
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Mr. Dwight L. Aarons
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Abel
Ms. Tamara Abell
Dr. John R. Abelson and  

Ms. Kendall Rafter
Mr. Thomas Duncan Abernathy
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Mr. and Mrs. Paul N. Abraham
Mr. Alan R. Abrams
Mr. Daniel J. Abrams
Abrams Foundation, Inc
Mr. and Mrs. Daryl Ackerman
Dr. Alan A. Adams and  

Ms. Kathryn A. Lyons
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Adams
Mrs. Roberta Adamson
Mr. Albert F. Adcock
Mr. Tom E. Aderhold
Mr. Arthur R. Adie
Mrs. Gaby Adriaenssens
Mr. John Affleck and  

Dr. Jessica Ancker
Dr. and Mrs. Ravinder Agarwal
Mr. and Mrs. David Aha
Ms. Cathleen Ahearn
Mr. James W. Aikman
Dr. Gillian Air
Mr. and Mrs. Greg Aitkens
Dr. Oluade A. Ajayi
Ms. Pamela S. Akins
Dr. Paul B. Albee and  

Dr. Laura A. Campbell
Ms. Karen Albers
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Alberts
Mr. Joseph Alexander and  

Ms. Janine Clayton
Dr. Mary B. Alexander
Drs. Bradley and Lindsay Alger
Mr. and Mrs. H. Inman Allen
Ms. Janice M. Allen and  

Mr. Ken W. Brinkman
Mr. Richard C. Allen
Mrs. Tricia Allen
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Allison
Mr. and Mrs. David Allman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Alonzo
Ms. Miriam R. Alper
Ms. Sally K. Alt
Ms. Patricia L. Amend and  

Mr. Stephen Dean
Dr. Sam Amirfar and  

Dr. Vibhuti Arya
Mrs. Rosalie Amos
Dr. Jessica Ancker
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Anclien
Mr. Joseph T. Anderer and  

Ms. Virginia Benz
The Andersen Charitable Trust
Dr. Cris J. Anderson
Mr. David R. Anderson

Mr. and Mrs. Edward C. 
Anderson

Chaplain Col. Jack N. Anderson
Joan Brownell Anderson, Ph.D.
Mr. Karl D. Anderson
Mr. Larry W. Anderson and  

Mr. Michael Bernard Boulas
Mrs. Nancy E. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul H. Anderson
Mr. Robert R. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Roger J. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Scott W. Anderson
The Anderson Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A. Andrews
Ms. Diane L. Andrews
Mr. John R. Andrews
Mr. Richard Andrews
Ms. Priscilla J. Angelo
Mr. Stephen F. Ankner
Dr. Nazir A. Ansari
The Nazir and Mary Ansari 

Foundation
Mr. Ed Anson
Mr. Glen Y. Arakawa and  

Mr. Arthur W. Selly
Ms. Miriam N. Arbelo
Ms. Laura Arcidiacono
Mr. Triantafilos D. Argyropoulos 

and Ms. Margaret Schroeder
Ms. Sheila M. Armstrong
Mr. Ronald Arnholm
Ms. Patricia I. Arnold
Ms. Susan Arnold and  

Mr. David Waldrep
Dr. Michael A. Arrow
Mr. Kevin W. Arthur
Ms. Joanne S. Arvid
Ms. Margarete P. Ashmore
Ms. Ann M. Ashton
Associates in Endodontics LLC
Ms. Sharon B. Atack
Mr. and Mrs. A. Clay Atkins
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Atkins
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Atkins
Mr. Roger Atkinson and  

Ms. Janet Arey
Mr. Bernard Attal and  

Ms. Gerluze Santana
Dr. Jeffery S. Atwater
Mr. Larry G. Atwood
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Augsburger
Dr. Sharon Aukerman
Allan and Anne Aunspaugh
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Austin
Ms. Marilyn M. Ayres
Ms. Tammy L. Ayyoub
Dr. and Mrs. Richard J. Babaian
Ms. Nancy Back
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Bader

Dr. and Mrs. Karl G. Baer
Mr. Bruce H. Bailey and  

Ms. Monica McGuire
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff C. Bailey
Dr. Virginia R. Bailey
Bailey-Thompson Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Damon W. Baker
Dr. and Mrs. David J. Baker
Mr. Gareth D. Baker
Ms. Glenda L. Baker
Dr. Juanita N. Baker and  

Mr. Richard Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Norman Baker
Mr. Thomas B. Baker and  

Ms. Mary Hocken
Mrs. Lloyd B. Baldwin
Dr. John Ball and Ms. Jean Dillon
Mr. and Mrs. W. Thomas 

Ballantine
Ms. Jacqueline Ballester
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Ballot
Ms. Laurie L. Balmuth
Ms. Carol Balousek
Mr. and Mrs. Parmanand Balsaver
Dr. Richard N. Baney
Mrs. Lisa H. Bankoff
Mr. Harry G. Banks
Mr. Robert Bansen
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory T. Baranco
Mr. and Mrs. Mal L. Barasch
Ms. Dolores J. Barber
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Bardin
Ms. Jan C. Barlow
Ms. Anne Barnett
Ms. Beverly A. Barnett
Dr. Linda C. Barr
Mr. Robert Barr
Ms. Kathy Barrett
Ms. Roberta M. Barrett
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Barringer
Mr. W. Frank Barron Jr.
Dr. Joseph Barry
Mr. Ronald F. Barta
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Barton
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Barton
Mr. Albert Bartridge Jr.
Mr. Darrel Bateman
Mr. and Mrs. Gene B. Bates
Mr. Stephen Bates
Mr. Michael Batte and  

Ms. Wanda Kile
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Bauder
Mr. S. Christopher Bauer
Mr. and Mrs. Robert T. Baumel
Mr. Alexander Bautista
Dr. Prudence Baxter
Ms. Rebecca M. Baybrook
Patti and Owen Baynham
Mr. Barton A. Beach

Beacham & Company LLC
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff Beal
Mr. and Mrs. David Bean
Dr. David Bear and  

Dr. Laurie Hammer Bear
Bear Sontz Family Foundation
Ms. Janis Beaver
Ms. Barbara Beck
Dr. Jonathan Becker and  

Ms. Danielle Wilson
Mary Conroy Fund of The 

Minneapolis Foundation
K. B. Beckwith
Ms. Rosalind Bedell
Ms. Susan N. Beem
Rev. Lance Beizer
Ms. Linda Belfus
Mr. William C. Belknap
Ms. Janet Bellusci
Mr. Jonathan W. Bender
Ms. Barbara Benedict
Mr. John E. K. Benfer
Mr. Richard E. Benfield
Mr. and Mrs. John Benjamin
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Benner
Mr. David L. Bennett
Dr. Susan R. Benoit
Dr. Sarah Benor
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Bente III
Mr. James S. Berdou
Ms. Robin Michelle Bergen and 

Ms. Janine Hackett
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Berger
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Bernados
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Berry
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Beschta
Jim and Kim Betz
Mrs. Victoria E. Beynon
Ms. Georgia A. Biesterveld
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Biggs
Ms. Suzanne Binder and  

Mr. Jeffrey Sacks
Mr. and Mrs. Robert R. Binns
Dr. and Mrs. Ashley R. Bird
Jane Nichols Bishop
Dr. Joyce M. Bisso
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Bitterling
Ms. Brenda J. Black
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Black
Ms. Jean M. Blair and  

Mr. Robert Christianson
The Honorable James J. 

Blanchard
Dr. Kendall Blanchard and  

Dr. Connie Blanchard
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Blanchard
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. Bland
Mr. Harry E. Blevins Jr.
Ms. Nonie J. Bliss
Dr. Carl Blobel
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Dr. Lynn Z. Bloom
Ms. Barbara D. Blum
Mr. Jonathan D. Blum
Mr. and Mrs. Glendon W. Blume
Mr. Joshua S. Blume
Ms. Susan F. Blumenberg
Ms. Samia Boctor
Ms. Dinah K. Bodkin
Sue and Tom Boehlke
Mr. and Mrs. Scott R. Boerke
Dr. Carol Boerner
Mr. Elijah Bogart
Mrs. Robert C. Bogenpohl
Mr. Scott Boggess
Dr. and Mrs. John K. Boitnott
Ms. Opal E. Bolick
Mr. and Mrs. Ross N. Bolton
Ms. Deborah Bombard
Mr. John Bomgardner
Ms. Rosalynn June Bonamusa
Mr. Bruce G. Borglum
Mr. Arne M. Borgnes
Ms. Lyn Borisof
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas H. 

Bornemann
Ms. Phyllis Borner
Mr. Robert B. Borsos
Ms. Kathryn Bosler
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Bottge
Drs. Ken and Karen Boudreau
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Boudreaux
Mr. Christian W. Bouker
Mr. Chris Boulton
Ms. Margaret Bourg
Ms. Kathleen Bovid
Mr. and Mrs. Scott L. Bowen Jr.
Mr. Dennis H. Bower
Dr. William D. Bowers
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Bowie
Mr. Jeffrey T. Bowman
Dr. Adam Boxer
Ms. Deborah Boyce
Ms. Helen Boyce
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Boyd
Dr. Myles G. Boylan Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Boyse
Mr. Henry H. Boyter Jr.
Mr. Todd C. Bradbury
John and Kristine Bradley
Ms. Ann Bradshaw
Mr. Charles R. Brainard
Ms. Kimberly A. Brandt
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Mr. Lewis M. Branscomb
Branscomb Family Foundation
Mrs. Benjie H. Branson
Branson Living Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Alan J. Brattesani
Ms. Joanne Bratush

Mr. Brad Braufman
Mr. Miguel Bray
Ms. Evelyn M. Breakstone
Ms. Vivian O. Breed
Mrs. Rose Marie Brehm
Mr. Edward G. Brekke
Mr. Sean M. Brennan
Drs. John and Carol Brewer
Mr. and Mrs. Peter V. Breysse
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Brien
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Briggs
Ms. Elise M. Bright
Mr. William Jeff Bright
Ms. Jeanetta Britt
Ms. Jo Ann Brittain
Ms. Lori Britton
Ms. Ginger L. Brookover
Leigh W. Brooks, Ph.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Brooks
Mr. Guido Brosio
Mr. and Mrs. Reade Brower
Mr. Aaron B. Brown
Ms. Allison Brown
Mr. Cecil Brown
Dr. and Mrs. Cecil H. Brown
Mr. Douglas Brown II
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Brown
Ms. Kellie R. Brown
Mr. Mike Brown
Ms. Richard L. Brown
Mr. Richard R. Brown and  

Ms. Sandra Jean Zaremba
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart H. Brown
The Brown Family Foundation
Mr. Robert K. Bruining
Dr. David Brunco and  

Ms. Anna Lee
Ms. Kathy Bruneske
Dr. C. Hal Brunt
Mr. Robert Bryant and  

Mr. Reymundo A. Garcia
Mr. Scott Bryson
Mr. Ian J. Brzezinski
The Brzezinski Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Buckley
Ms. Margaret Buckley
Dr. Robert E. Budin and  

Dr. Diane A. Lowe
Mr. and Mrs. Peter D. Bullard
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne L. 

Bullaughey
Mrs. Regina Buls
Ms. Josie B. Bumgarner
Rev. Dearl L. Bunce
Ms. Mary Catherine Bunting
Dr. Bruce N. Burdick
Ms. Carol F. Burgess
Ms. Treava W. Burgess
Ms. Mary Stewart Burgher

Dr. Kathleen M. Burke
Mr. Michael W. Burke
Dr. Merrikay Oleen Burkey
C M Burkhardt Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Harry S. Burnett
Mr. and Mrs. James Burnis
Mr. James Burns
Mrs. Janet M. Burns
Ms. Judith S. Burns
Ms. Rita J. Burns
Dr. Robert A. Burri
Dr. Annie Hunt Burriss
Mr. Charles E. Burton
Ms. Marilyn J. Burysz
Mr. Jonathan Busch
Dr. David M. Butler
Dr. and Mrs. Leon E. Butler
Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Byers 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry M. Byrd
Dr. Sherryl A. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Byrne
Ms. Sandra Cable and  

Mr. Edwin Cable
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Cable
Ms. Patricia Cabot
Ms. Elizabeth W. Cady
Ms. Cindy Calbaum
Mr. Charles Caldwell
Mr. and Mrs. Duke M. Caldwell
Mr. Gordon R. Caldwell
Mr. and Mrs. Edward G. Cale
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff Call
Mr. James Callanan and  

Ms. Elke Adler
Ms. Patricia M. Cameron
Ms. Sandra R. Camley
Ms. Connie Campbell
Ms. Jane E. Campbell
Ms. Janet W. Campbell
Mr. Phil W. Campbell
Ms. Regan C. Campbell
Mr. David Bass Canady
Mr. and Mrs. David Canfield
Dr. Cecilia H. Cantrell
Ms. Catherine Capriles
Ms. Pamela A. Cardoza
Ms. Carole M. Carey
Ms. Statia Carey
Mr. Gerow M. Carlson
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. Bertram W. Carp and  

Ms. Lynn McReynolds
Mr. Jeffery A. Carpenter
Mr. Robert E. Carr
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Carrano 

II

Mr. Robert D. Carreker
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Carriere
W.M. and K.A. Carriere Family 

Trust
Mr. Terrance M. Carroll and  

Ms. Linda M. Dardarian
Mrs. Anne H. Carson
Mr. Brandon W. Carson
Mr. Charles W. Carson Jr.
Dr. Jean Carter and Mr. Michael 

P. Carter
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Carter
Ms. Sandra M. Carter
Ms. Victoria P. Carver
Mr. Daniel Casey and  

Ms. Dolores Connolly
Ms. Eva Casey
Mr. Roger D. Cash
Ms. Sharon L. Cassidy
Ms. Cecily L. Cassum
Mr. and Mrs. John Casteel
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley D. Casto
Mr. Joseph S. Catanzaro
Ms. Theresa Catino
Mr. and Mrs. Richard E. 

Cavanagh
Mr. Richard A. Cavanaugh
Dr. Roy Caviglia
The Cedars Foundation Inc.
The Center for Connection
Mr. and Mrs. Sy Chaba
Ms. Collette Chabbott
Mr. Mathieu Chabert
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas I. Chacko
Mr. Ronald W. Chaffee
Ms. Rebecca Chambers
Mr. Kelvin Chan
Mr. Ramaswamy Chandrashekar
Ms. Cordelia Chang
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. Chanin
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Chapman
Ms. Margaret A. Chapman
Ms. Miriam D. Chapman
Ms. Nancy E. Charkes
Ms. Eileen Chase and  

Mr. William T. Shefchik
Ms. Helen L. Chase
Dr. Michael D. Chase and  

Dr. Patricia Sato
Mr. and Mrs. Peter R. Chase
Mr. David Chasson
Ms. Karen S. Chatham
Mr. Eng-Aun Cheng
Mrs. Anne A. Chew
Mr. Daniel M. Chew
Ms. Helen Chew and  

Mr. Mark Henderson
Mr. Albert Chiang and  

Ms. Janet Yang
Mr. James J. Childre Jr.
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Dr. and Mrs. Lance Chilton
Mr. and Mrs. Philip S. Chordas
Mr. Henry Chou
Ms. Marianne R. Christiano
Mr. William I. Christopher
The Christopher Family 

Foundation
Robert and Bobbé 

Christopherson
Ms. Norma J. Chruscielski
Mr. Karl Cishek
Mrs. Gaile Civiletti
Mrs. Nancy M. Cladel
Ms. Cameron R. Clark
Ms. Carolyn M. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. David Clark III
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn R. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Terry M. Clark
Ms. Judith Clarkson
Ms. Marilyn Clary
Dr. Jaclynn R. Clasen
Mr. Russell K. Clayton
Ms. Peggy Cleveland
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Cloutier
Ms. Donna Cobelli
Ms. Pamela Cobey and  

Ms. Beth Rosen
Mr. David Coburn
Ms. Michele C. Cocco
Ms. Susan C. Cockfield
Mr. Alan M. Cody and  

Ms. Edith-Cody Moricz
Ms. Mary Cody
Mr. Edward M. Cohen and  

Ms. Anne Bakstad
Ms. Nancy Cohen and  

Mr. Michael Cohen
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Cohen
Mr. Steven J. Cok
Dr. and Mrs. Xerxes R. Colah
Ms. Maryann F. Cole
Mr. Donald Coley
Mr. Ronald T. Colley
Ms. Sandy Collier
Mrs. Beverly R. Collins
Mrs. John Collins
Dr. Margaret H. Collins
Ms. Ramona Collins
Mr. Dale T. Collura
Mr. and Mrs. Harry T. Colter
Mr. and Mrs. Ryan Colvin
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Colyar
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Comer
Mr. and Mrs. Michael 

Concannon
Mr. James Congo
Mr. and Mrs. K. Paul Conner
Ms. Andrea Connolly
Mr. Gerald R. Connor
Dr. K. T. Connor

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Conradi
Mrs. Beverly Cook
Ms. Helen Cook
Ms. Alison M. Cooper
Dr. and Mrs. Max D. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Cooper
Ms. Susan K. Cooper
Mr. Troy L. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Warren N. 

Coppedge
The Honorable Samuel G. 

Coppersmith
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Corbin
Ms. Alyse Lucas Corcoran and 

Mr. John L. Morrison
Mrs. Lucia Corcoran
Ms. Ellyn Corey and  

Mr. Thomas Sartor
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Corkery
Dr. Lourdes C. Corman
Ms. Jill Cornwell and  

Mr. Barry Nelson
Mr. Rod Corvo
Dr. and Mrs. Michael F. Coscia
Dr. Sandra Cottingham and  

Mr. Steve Cline
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Cotton
Ms. Peggy M. Couch
Ms. Christina M. Coulourides
Mr. and Mrs. William M. Coulter
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Couric
Mr. Glenn R. Courtney
Ms. Judith Cox

Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Cox
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney B. Cox
Ms. Susan K. Cox-Stouffer
Ms. Joan Marie Coyne and  

Mr. David M. Kaffine
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Craighead
Mr. Erik Crank and  

Mrs. Laura Arbilla
Dr. Marion V. Creekmore
Ms. Lisa M. Cremin and  

Mr. W. Bruce Harlan
Dr. Melinda D. Crenshaw
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Crenshaw
Dr. Kathy Crispell
Ms. Anna Crist
Ms. Laura L. Crites
Ms. Emily Cronin
Dr. Catherine Cross
Ms. Donnielle Crossman
Mrs. Anne S. Crowder
Areta Crowell
Mrs. Betty McGarvie Crowley
Ms. Judy M. Culbreath
Dr. Donna Culhane and  

Dr. Wayne M. Eberenz
Mr. and Mrs. J. Bart Culver
Culver Family Foundation
Mr. Willson Cummer and  

Ms. Michelle Breidenbach
Mr. John F. Cummings
Ms. Deborah Cunningham
Mr. Robert A. Cunningham

Mr. Daniel J. Curran
Mrs. Carleton E. Curran
Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert Curry Jr.
Ms. Susan Jane Curtis
Ms. Kristin A. Cutler
Mr. and Mrs. W. Bowman Cutter
Ms. Jean Cypher
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Czarnecki
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Czarnezki
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D’Adamo
Ms. Nancy J. D’Amico
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K. Dace-

Smith
Dr. Mark Joseph Dalle Ave
Ms. Linda T. Dalton
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Dalton
Ms. Colleen Daly
Ms. Mary E. Daly
Ms. Lynette C. Daniel
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S. 

Danielsen
Ms. Ann Dannenberg and  

Mr. Glenn D. Rosen
Dr. M. Betsy Darken
Dr. Carol F. Daron
Mr. Marcus J. Dash
Dr. Alison E. Davis
Mr. Charles Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Dr. and Mrs. Dwight Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Erroll B. Davis Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Frank T. Davis Jr.

Gideon Abraham (right), who attends school in Enugu state, Nigeria, plays football with a 
friend after receiving drug treatment for schistosomiasis, a parasitic disease. The Carter 
Center helps support drug distribution.
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Mr. and Mrs. Gary R. Davis
Ms. Glorianne M. Davis
Mr. James L. Davis
Ms. Katherine W. Davis
Ms. Nancy B. Davis
Davis Foundation
Dr. Billie Day
Mr. and Mrs. David L. De Ford
Mr. Matthew De Galan
Mrs. Lillian Bozak De Leo
Mr. Walter De Treux III
Dr. Philip Dean and  

Dr. Linda Church
Ms. Kathleen DeBeer
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. 

DeBenedittis
Dr. Patricia L. Dedert and  

Dr. Michiel E. Ultee
Mr. David J. Deffinbaugh
Mr. and Mrs. Michael L. Dehm
Mr. Derek Deitz
Ms. Catherine Del Tito
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Delgado
Ms. Kathleen Delsanter
Mr. Patrick Demasco
Ms. Françoise E. Denis
Mr. George Timothy Denley
Mr. Daniel W. Dennison
Mr. John P. Densmore
The John P. Densmore Living 

Trust
Ms. Marsha Desaussure
Mr. Thomas M. Dethlefs
Ms. Patricia L. Devaney
Ms. Andrea R. Devereux
Mr. and Mrs. Roger DeVries
Rev. and Mrs. Donald N. Dial
Mr. Mark J. Diaz
Mr. and Mrs. Pedro M. Diaz
Mr. Timothy Diaz
Ms. Bonita V. DiCarlo
Dr. Claudia C. Dickerson and 

Mr. Wayne Grinstead
Mr. Harry A. Dickerson
Ms. Barbara H. Dickinson
Dr. and Mrs. W. Reed Dickinson
Dickson Family Fund
Ms. Marlene G. Dickson
Ms. Marion Diener
Ms. Rachel Dieter
Ms. Jean Marie Dillon
Mr. and Mrs. Lucien A. Dimino
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Dinsmore
Mr. and Mrs. Brian A. Dionne
Ms. Carol Dirks
Ms. Sue Ellen Dobie
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas Docter
Mr. Michael Dodd
Dr. Virginia M. Dodd and  

Ms. Fan Watson

Ms. Mary Jane Dodson
Mr. William Doerrer
Mr. Joseph P. Dominguez and 

Mr. Robert Burkholder
Ms. Nancy Donaldson
Mr. Ronald Doney and  

Mr. Michael Allard
Mr. Victor Donnay
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Dooley
Mr. Duane Dorscheid
Dr. Razak A. Dosani
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn R. Doshay
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Doty
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Douglas 

Sr.
Ms. Jennifer Douglass
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Dowd
Mr. F. Andrew Dowdy and  

Ms. Jeanne M. Maloney
Ms. Moira Dowell
Dr. Deborah D. Downs and  

Dr. Rami R. Razouk
Ms. Jane Downs
Ms. Janine M. Doyle
Mr. John F. Doyle
Dr. Diane E. Dreher
Ms. Janice Dreiling
Ms. Carole J. Drew
Dr. Joseph D. Driskill and  

Ms. Leslie Bryant
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelis J. Drost
Mrs. Faye S. Drummond
Dr. and Ms. Thomas DuBose
Mr. Robert W. Ducsay
Ms. Maureen Dudley
Ms. Alice E. Duerr
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Duggan
Dr. Lissa Dulany
Ms. Lisa A. Dunavin
Ms. Joy W. Duncan
Ms. Kaye S. Duncan
Ms. Vicki L. Duncan
Ms. Deborah Dunevant
Ms. Martha Durham
Mr. William K. Dustin
Ms. Bertha B. Duvernay
Dr. David E. Dwyer and  

Dr. Heidi Lindroth
Ms. Judy A. Dwyer
Dr. Brad Dyke and  

Dr. Sarah Cookinham
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Dykstra
East Coast Stainless Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. Martin J. Eble
Ms. Kathryn Edgecomb
Edgecomb Trust
Mrs. Marilyn P. Edington
Dr. Brenda K. Edwards
Ms. Carol Edwards

Col (Ret.) Ronald A. and  
Shirley J. Edwards

Ms. Roxanne T. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Edwinson
Ms. Dimitra Efstathiou
Mr. Edmond Eger
Ms. Laura M. Egger
Mark J. Ehlers, Esq.
Ms. Irene A. Ehret
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ekman
Ms. Karen Elias
Mr. and Mrs. Eldon Eller
Mr. Rene-Didier G. Emch and 

Ms. Karen E. Feulner
Dr. Delvin Scott Endsley
Ms. Kathryn Engholm and  

Mr. Jeffrey Earls
Dr. Mary Jane England
Dr. Carol Entwistle and  

Mr. Fred Entwistle
Dr. Brigitte M. Erbe
Ms. Sherma R. Erholm
Mr. Ronald O. Erickson and  

Ms. Lisa A. Doerr
Dr. and Mrs. Trent Erney
Ms. Jennifer Esch
Ms. Evelyne M. Eshelman
Mr. Daniel Esrey
Dr. Clarissa Estep
The Eureka Foundation Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. David Evans
Mr. Joseph W. Evans
Dr. and Mrs. Martin E. Evans
Ms. Sandra L. Evans
Evans Insulation Company
Mr. Michael K. Ewert
Dr. David L. Ewing and  

Dr. June Ewing
Dr. and Mrs. Edward Ewing
Mrs. Susan Ewing
Mr. and Mrs. Dieter H. Faber
Dr. William Michael Fagen and 

Ms. Elizabeth McCleary
Mr. and Mrs. Michael P. Fahey
Ms. Patricia M. Fair and  

Mr. Randy Arnold
Fairy Godmother Society
Ms. Martha N. Faith
Mr. and Mrs. Keith A. Falasco
Dr. Neil A. Falk and  

Dr. Janet MacDonell
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Fallows
Dr. Abraham Farivari
Ms. Penelope Farley
Ms. Jansie S. Farris
Dr. and Mrs. Neil Farris
Mr. Dean Farwood
Ms. Jennifer Fass
Dr. Catherine A. Faver
Ms. Jo D. Federspiel

Mr. and Mrs. Michael T. Feeney
Mr. and Mrs. William S. 

Fehsenfeld
Ms. Elaine J. Felde
Hyman & Susan Feldman Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Henry David 

Fellows Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Felt
Mr. and Mrs. Michael F. Feno
Ms. Laura M. Ferenc
Ms. Susan M. Ferguson
Mr. Johnny Ferlita
Mr. and Mrs. Robert P. Ferrell
Mr. Charles D. Ferris
Mr. Raymond Ferry
Mr. Raul Field-Escandon
Ms. Lynda Fife
Mr. Daniel A. Figg
Mr. Thomas Fillion
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Finger
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory K. Finn
First Presbyterian Church
Mr. Christian Fischer
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Fisher
Ms. Catherine Fissell
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Fite
Ms. Sara J. Fitzgerald
Mr. Christophe Flament
Mr. and Mrs. William Flanagan
Mr. Robert G. Fleagle
Mr. David Fleming
Ms. Ruthann Marie Fleming
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Fletcher
Ms. Rhonda F. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice R. Fliess
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Flood
Ms. Carmen Flores
Ms. Janine Flory
Ms. Anne Flosi
Ms. Sarah L. Flosi
Ms. Patricia M. Flowers
Ms. Mary Jane Fogle
Mr. and Mrs. William Foley
Ms. Pegi Follachio
Follachio & Associates Inc.
Mr. Andrew Foreman
Mr. Guy Formichella
Mr. John S. Forrer
Ms. Mary Beth E. Forrest
Ms. Sumarie Bass Forrester
Ms. Jennifer Fortenberry
Dr. Patricia G. Foschi
The Honorable Leslie G. Foschio
Dr. Jane E. Fossum
Ms. Dorothy P. Foster
Ms. Martha Ann Foster
Ms. Karen S. Fouad
Mr. James F. Fournier
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Dr. John L. Fowlkes
Mr. and Mrs. Dale Fox Jr.
Mr. Paul Fox
Mr. Michael Francini and  

Ms. Alys Milner
Mr. Ralph C. Francis
Mr. Paul R. Frank
A. J. Frank Family Foundation
Mr. Matthew Franklin
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Freeborn
Ms. Deborah F. Freeman
Ms. Ronna A. Freiberg and  

Mr. William M. Wise
Ms. Phyllis B. French
Ms. Yvonne R. Freund
Mr. Charles Frey
Ms. Mary Caroline Frey
Mr. Matthew Frick and  

Ms. Hannalori Bates Frick
R. Friedberg, Ph.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Friederich
Mr. John Fries
Ms. Norma A. Fritsche
Dr. Max L. Fritzler and  

Ms. Gayle Haugen
Mr. Markus Fromherz and  

Ms. Heike Schmitz
Mr. Stephen Frost
Mr. Frank J. Fuchs III
Dr. Colony Fugate
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Fuller
Ms. S. Marce Fuller
Gregory L. and Carol H. 

Fullerton
Ms. Marilyn B. Funderburk
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Furlong
G.I.M. PLLC
Ms. Mary P. Gabay
Mr. and Mrs. David Gaffron
Ms. Julie Galbraith
Ms. Kyle R. Galbraith
Mr. Thomas J. Gallagher
Mr. Tracy Gallagher
Ms. Theresa M. Gallant
Ms. Sherry Gandee
Ms. Evelyn Garcia
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Gard
Dr. Cynthia Gardner
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Gardner
Mr. John N. Gardner
Gardner Institute
Ms. Elizabeth Garrett
Ms. Marcia E. Garrett
Mr. and Mrs. Lester L. Garrison
Mr. Dennis A. Gatchell
Gatchell Family Foundation
Mrs. Karen B. Gatewood
Mr. and Mrs. Jimmy Gaudreau
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Gaupp
Ms. Diane Gayles

Mr. Paul C. Gearen
Mr. and Mrs. Robert T. 

Geesaman
Mr. and Mrs. Philip R. Gehman
Dr. and Mrs. Ranier Gehres
Ms. Patricia F. Geis
Dr. Shari E. Gelber and Dr. 

Adam Ratner
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. Gelling
General Atomics
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. 

Geoghegan
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Georges
Mr. Bengt G. Gerborg
Gerborg Family Foundation
Ms. Carola Gerigk
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Gerleit
Ms. Liliane V. Gersh
Mrs. Will R. Getz
GHR Foundation
Mr. Eric M. Gibber
Mrs. Mary H. Gibbons
Mr. Wayne Gibson
Mr. Peter A. Gilbert and  

Ms. Cynthia Char
Mr. Keith T. Gillen
Mr. Hank Gillette
Mr. Douglas Gillingham and  

Ms. Dana L. Friehauf
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Gilmartin
Ms. Patricia F. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Steven D. Gilmore
Mr. Allen Gimenez
Mr. Dale B. Giulieri
Ms. Jean F. Givens and  

Mr. Carter G. Hackney
Mr. and Mrs. William W. Givens
Ms. Clevie E. Gladney Covington
Ms. Cheryl Ann Glaser
Dr. James F. Glockner
Mr. Justin Godfrey
Mr. and Mrs. Nitin Godiwala
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Goeddeke
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Goergen
The Walter Goga Fund
Ms. Leslie F. Gold
Mr. Judd Goldberg
Mr. James Goldenberg
Ms. Nancy E. Goldsmith
Mr. and Mrs. Geraldo Gomes
Dr. Kathryn Gonzalez
Ms. Susan A. Gonzalez
Ms. Katherine E. Goodpasture
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Goodwin
Dr. Mary K. Goodwin
Mr. Robert M. Gorbould
Dr. Andrew C. Gordon
Mr. and Mrs. Joel K. Gordon
Dr. and Mrs. Kenneth W. Gore
Mr. Milton Gore

Mr. and Mrs. Hal Goree
Mr. James C. Gorman and  

Ms. Jeanne E. Ekhaml
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Gorzek
Mrs. Julia Goss
Ms. Mary K. Graf
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Graham
Mr. James Grahn
Dr. Cherlyn S. Granrose
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Grant
Mrs. Jane Grant
Mr. and Mrs. Rex L. Granum
Ms. Judith Grassilli
Ms. Paula Grasso
Dr. Sherryl B. Graves
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Gray
Mr. Dennis E. Gray and  

Ms. Kay R. Cameron
Dr. Paul N. Gray
Mr. and Mrs. Erik H. Green
Dr. and Mrs. Garrett Green
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Green
Ms. Laura M. Green
Mr. Bob Greene and  

Ms. Leslie Ellen Brown
Dr. and Mrs. Alan S. Greenglass
Ms. Sarah Greenhaw
Dr. and Mrs. James F. Greenleaf
Mr. E. Alex Gregory
Dr. Jean L. Grem
Ms. Tilly M. Grey
Ms. Sharon M. Grier
Mr. and Mrs. Gene Griffin
Joanne and Tim Griffin
Dr. Patricia Griffin
Ms. Susan Griffith and  

Mr. Drew C. Fillipo
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Grigg
Mr. Dennis E. Grimes
Mr. and Mrs. J. D. Grimsbo
Mr. John E. Grimsley
Mr. and Mrs. William A. Gross
Ms. Jacqueline T. Grosse
Dr. and Mrs. Mark Grove
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Mr. Kirk H. Gruber
Mr. Richard A. Gruen
Ms. Georgia Grummon
Mr. Perviz Guard and  

Ms. Nargis Perviz
Mrs. Susan Gurney
Mrs. Barbara Gurtler
Ms. Brenna Guthrie
Mr. Michael B. Guthrie and  

Dr. Jeff J. Welser
Ginnie and Peter Haas Jr. Fund
Ms. Candace Haber
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Hackett
Mr. Steven R. Hackett

Mr. Stephen Hadler and  
Ms. Claudia Fedarko

Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Hagen
Mr. Ray Hagrman
Dr. Emily S. Haight
Mr. and Mrs. Emmett M. Hale
Mr. and Mrs. F. Sheffield Hale
Mr. Robert P. Hale
Ms. Nancy G. Hall
Ms. Alice Hallaran
Ms. Margaret C. Hallenbeck
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Halliday
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Halstead
Mr. Frederick C. Hamic
Mrs. Kathleen C. Hamilton
Ms. Florence B. Hamlin
Mr. Roy Hamlin
Mr. Paul B. Hammond and  

Ms. Tracee Laing
Mr. and Mrs. Derek Hampson
Mr. and Mrs. Talmadge A. Hanes
Mrs. Rhonda K. Hanna
Dr. David G. Hannay
Mr. and Mrs. Chuck Hanner
Mr. and Mrs. John Hansen
Ms. Karen Hardiman
Mr. Stephen Harding and  

Ms. Deena Burke
Mr. Hilliard B. Hardman
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Hardman
Mr. William T. Hardy
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Hargraves
Ms. Lexi M. Harlow and  

Mr. Jonathan Kamrath
Rev. and Mrs. William K. 

Harman
Mr. and Mrs. Roger W. Harms
Ms. Sally L. Harms
Ms. Judith C. Harper
Ms. Barbara C. Harris
Ms. Carolyn L. Harris
Harris Family Trust
Ms. Gayle Harrison
Ms. Kathleen J. Harrison
Dr. Carol S. Hart
Ms. Katherine H. Harter
Mr. Stephen Hartnett
Mr. and Mrs. George E. Hartz III
Ms. Teresa D. Hastings
Mr. Stephen R. Hatcher and  

Ms. Sharon Joyce Ellis
Ms. Alice Hatter
Ms. Judith J. Havens
Dr. Harry W. Haverkos
Mrs. Elaine J. Hawley
Dr. Konrad Hayashi and  

Ms. Jannah Goodell
Ms. Faye A. Hayden
Dr. Marlit Hayslett
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Dr. Robert A. Hazel and  

Ms. Wendy E. Hoover
Ms. Barbara W. Hazelett
Ms. Andrea H. Hazlitt
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Healey
Trish and Christopher Healy
Dr. Patrick Hearing and  

Dr. Janet Hearing
Mr. George Heavner
Mr. Greg K. Hecht
Hecht Walker Jordan, P.C.
Mr. Christopher C. Heck
Ms. Autumn Heep
Mr. Robert B. Heinemann
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Heleine
Helen’s Best
Dr. and Mrs. Gerard L. Helinek
Mr. and Ms. Frank Hellwig
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory Hempen
Mrs. Ilze S. Henderson
Mr. James A. Henderson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Larry L. Henderson
Ms. Laurel E. Henderson
Mr. and Mrs. Sammy Henderson
Ms. Sarah A. Henderson
Ms. Meg Hendricks
Ms. Leslie K. Hendrix
Leslie Kipp Hendrix Revocable 

Trust
Dr. and Mrs. Michael G. Henk
Mr. John P. Hennessey

Dr. Louis Henry and  
Dr. Judi Henry

The Honorable Alexis M. 
Herman

Ellen S. and Jay R. Herman
Mrs. Dorene M. Herrmann
Mr. John B. Hervey
James P. and Mary Ann Hesla
Dr. and Mrs. B. Mark Hess
Ms. Sylvia Hess
Ms. Linda A. Hesse
Mrs. Ann E. Hestand
Dr. Kenneth R. Hey and  

Ms. Colleen Walsh
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Heywood
Dr. and Mrs. Carlton T. Hicks
Highway & City Trans Inc.
Ms. Susan M. Hileman
Mrs. Jesse Hill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. B. Harvey Hill Jr.
Dr. Tracey Hill and Mr. Dale Hill
Ms. Vicki L. Hill
Mr. E. M. Himsworth
Thomas and Linda Hines
Ms. Susan E. Hipp
Ms. Linda Hirsch
Armin and Esther Hirsch 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. William Hirt
Mrs. Rachel F. Hoblin
Ms. Rebecca S. Hoblin

Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 
Hochstetler

Dr. and Mrs. James E. Hodder
Mr. Bert Hodges
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Hoeprich
Mr. Richard L. Hoffman
Mr. and Mrs. David D. 

Hofmeister
Ms. Beth Hogan
Mr. Paul Hogben
Mr. John Hogg
Ms. Lillian Hohmann
Mr. Rick Holden
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Holder 

Jr.
Mr. Steven Hollingsworth and 

Ms. Daidee Springer
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Holm
Mr. Neal S. Holtzer
Pui-Jane Hon
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. 

Honigfort
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Hoogendyk
Dr. Dorothea M. Hoover
Mr. Donald A. Hopkins
Mrs. Horace B. Hord
Ms. Kathy E. Horner
Mr. Richard Hornung
Dr. Vittorio G. Hosle
Dr. and Mrs. Leslie and  

Sharon Hough
Ms. Sharon L. House
Mrs. Shirley D. Houston
Ms. Eileen Hout
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Houts
Ms. Jean E. Houvener
Mr. Ted Howe
Mr. William J. Howe
Mr. and Mrs. Lembhard G. 

Howell
Dr. Jeff Hubbell
Mr. and Mrs. H. Martin 

Huddleston
Dr. William Huddleston and  

Dr. Peggy Huddleston
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth B. Huesby
Ms. Claire Hugi
Mr. and Mrs. Ming C. Hui
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff Hull
Mr. Ralph Hull
Ms. Anne Humes
Mr. Joshua B. Humphries
Mr. and Mrs. William C. 

Humphries
Mr. Ray Hunder
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Hunn
Ms. Mary Hoffman Hunt
Ms. Mary Jane Hunt
Dr. and Mrs. Richard C. Hunt
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Hunt

Professor and Mrs. Howard O. 
Hunter

Mr. Michael Hunter
Ms. Sher Hurlburt
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Hurst
Mr. Elvin W. Hurst
Ms. Rebekah Huskamp
Rev. Mary Ann and Dr. Michael 

Huston
Mr. and Mrs. Terry L. 

Hutchinson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Huxley
Ms. Evelyn Hwang
Mr. and Mrs. John Hyde
Pamela S. Hyde, Esq.
Mr. James Iden and Ms. M. 

Evangeline Samora
Mr. and Mrs. Albert G. Ilg
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen Imbornoni
Ms. S. Reshma Inamdar
Dr. Devrie Intriligator
Ms. Stephanie R. Irene
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Irish
Mr. B. William Irlbeck
Mr. Jeffrey E. Irwin
Mr. Robert M. Isaacs
Ms. Adriene Iverson
Mr. John S. Iverson
Mr. Robert L. Ivey and  

Ms. Jill Bowman
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Jackon
Mr. and Mrs. Greg D. Jackson
Ms. Narvella Jackson
Ms. Omega A. Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Jacobs
The Jacobs Family Trust
Ms. Adelaide Jacobson
Mr. and Mrs. Barry L. Jagoda
Ms. Jenny James and  
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Stephen Orlins, president of the National Committee 
on U.S.-China Relations, speaks at The Carter Center 
in January 2024 at an event commemorating the 
normalization of diplomatic relations between China and 
the United States, an action taken by President Jimmy 
Carter in 1979.
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A member of the Yanomami, an Indigenous group living in the Amazon Rainforest, awaits 
treatment for river blindness and other diseases. This area is the last in the Americas with 
transmission of river blindness, a parasitic disease also known as onchocerciasis.
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River Rock Fund
Ms. Christina Lyn Cooley Rivers
Mr. and Mrs. David I. Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Roberts
Ms. Elizabeth H. Roberts
Mrs. Stanley Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Richard D. Roberts
Nora Roberts Family Foundation
Ms. Andrea Robertson
Ms. Arlene Robertson
Harry Robertson and Sarah Selig
Mr. and Mrs. John Barron 

Robertson
Ms. Loydel Robertson
Ms. Ellen Robinson
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Robinson
Mr. James Rochel
Mr. Larry Rockefeller
Ms. Beverly Rodgers
Mr. Gene Roehlkepartain
Mr. G. William Rogers Jr.
Mr. Gary N. Rogers and Ms. Jeri 

L. Lane
Dr. Michael P. Rogers
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Rogers
Ms. Wendy B. Rohman
Dr. Judith C. Rohrer
Ms. Jean R. Rollins and  

Mr. Ed Boatner
Dr. Paul M. Roman and  

Ms. Terry C. Blum
Ms. Marsha Rooks
Mr. Michael Y. Roos
Mike Roos & Company
Ms. Joan B. Rosenberg
Dr. Margaret A. Rosenthal
Ms. Peg Rosine
Dr. James A. Ross
Ms. Judy Ross
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence C. Ross
Mr. Maurice G. Ross
Mr. Stephen Ross
Ms. Mary Rossano
Mr. and Mrs. Rob Rosztoczy
Rotary Club of McKinney  

Sunrise Flag

Mr. Robert C. Rothhouse
Ms. Joan Rouse
Dr. Benoit Rousseau and Dr. Rie 

Ishii
Ms. Molly Rowan
Mr. James H. Rowe III
Ms. Lucy Rowland
Mrs. Luana D. Rubin
Ms. Sara L. Rugg
Mr. Armando Ruiz
Dr. Ernesto Ruiz-Tiben and Mrs. 

Emilia Ruiz
Dr. and Mrs. Jim Russ
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Russell
Mr. and Mrs. H. Jerome Russell 

Jr.
Dr. Robert W. Russell
Ms. Ann M. Rust
Dr. George S. Rust and Dr. 

Cynthia T. Rust
Mr. M. Duane Rutledge
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce D. Ryan
Mr. John E. Ryan
Mr. Kenneth Lewis Ryan
Ms. Alice Rysdon
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Sabin
Sacajawea Charitable Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Waqar Saleem
Mr. Vikram Salgaonkar
Ms. Dawn E. Salmons
Ms. Christine Samida and Mr. 

Michael MacGregor
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Sandberg-Larsen
Ms. Della D. Sanderson
Hon. William F. Sanderson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Carl W. Sandlin
Mr. and Mrs. Karl J. Sandstrom
Dr. and Mrs. John Santmann
Dr. Jonathon D. Saphier and  

Rev. Margaret K. Saphier
Mr. Golam Sarker
Dr. David Satcher
Mr. and Mrs. Brian E. Satre
Ms. Shirley Sauber
Ms. Sandra S. Sauder
Mr. and Mrs. John Saukaitis
Mrs. Dianne Saunders
Ms. Donna M. Saunders
Dr. John Savage
Mr. William P. Saviers Jr.
Mr. Gordon Saville
Dr. Shirley K. Sawai
Mr. and Mrs. Henry Sawyer
Mr. and Mrs. Wilson E. Sawyer
Dr. Yousuf Sayeed and  

Dr. Dilara Sayeed
Mr. Thomas F. Scanlan
Scenery First LLC
Ms. Barbara Schacht and  

Ms. Lillian Wiegel

Ms. Ann Schaefer
Ms. Grace K. Schafer
Ms. Judith A. Schaffenacker
Mr. Terry H. Schale
Ms. Carol E. Scharfer
Mr. and Mrs. Mel Schatz
Ms. Julie F. Schauer
Ms. Linda Schechterle
Dr. and Mrs. Bradley J. Scheel Jr.
Dr. Elinor A. Scheirer
Mr. Sanford H. Schenbart
Mr. and Mrs. George H. Schildge
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. 

Schmerker
Mr. and Mrs. Conrad S. Schmidt
Dr. Klaus Wilhelm Schmidt-Rohr
Ms. Elaine Schneider
Ms. Susan A. Schneider
Ms. Ann Schoenfeld
Ms. Lyn B. Schoenfeld
Ms. Anne-Marie Scholer
Mr. Eric J. Scholl
Mr. Robert J. Schott
The Murry & Florence Schott 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. and Ms. Lawrence B. Schrage
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Schreiber
Mr. and Mrs. Lee W. Schumann
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne H. Schut
Dr. Audrey L. Scollan and Dr. 

Neil J. Scollan
Ms. Donna Scott
Mr. and Mrs. Rick R. Scott
Mr. James Scotton
Mr. Anthony M. Sease and Dr. 

Lorraine Sease
Mr. Christopher Seay
Dale and J. L. Seborg
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen E. Seele
Dr. Narinder N. Sehgal
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth B. Seim
Ms. Deborah Selby
Mr. Mary Louise Seldenfleur
Ms. Martha Selfridge
Ms. Kathleen Sellman and  

Mr. William Carroll
Mr. and Mrs. Shanta Seneviratne
Ms. Wendy Sergeant-Clarke
Mr. and Mrs. Tommaso Serra
Ms. Ingrid Serrell
Mr. Prochy P. Sethna
Dr. and Mrs. Constantine G. 

Sevastopoulos
Mr. Michael F. Sexton
Ms. Elizabeth Sexton-Kennedy
Mr. and Mrs. John Seymour
Mr. and Mrs. Kirti B. Shah
Dr. Naveed Shams and  

Mrs. Seema N. Shams
Ms. Kay E. Shannon

Roy and Ann Shannon
Mr. Don Sharaf and Ms. Julie 

Mueller
Mr. Michael C. Sharp
Ms. Denise R. Shaw
Ms. Jan Marie Shaw-Flamm and 

Mr. Andrew Flamm
Ms. Charlotte Ann Shea
Mr. John E. Sheedy
Ms. E. Ann Sheehan
Mr. John P. Sheehan
Sheffield Harrold Charitable 

Trust
Ms. Martha N. Shehane
Mr. and Mrs. Paul M. Sheldon
Mr. Robert J. Shelton
Ambassador Sally A. Shelton-

Colby
Shawmei Shen
Ms. Deborah Sheperis
The Sheth Family Foundation Inc.
Mr. Richard L. Shewell Jr.
Mr. Richard Shields and Ms. 

Patricia Hillmann
Ms. Cynthia A. Shinkle
Dr. Mariko Shirazi
Dr. Lawrence H. Shirley
Mrs. Linda Shotwell
Ms. Suzanne Shull
Ms. Susanne Christopher Shutz
Mr. Manny Sian
Mr. Matthew Siber
Mr. and Mrs. Greg Sickal
Dr. and Mrs. David T. Sidney
Mr. Martin Sidwell and Mrs. 

Felicity Sidwell
Drs. Scott L. Siegal and Suzanne 

Shenk
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Siltanen
Ms. Rita Elaine Silver
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Simeone
Mr. Jerome E. Simmons
Dr. Richard Simmons
Hon. and Mrs. John F. Simon
Mr. Robert O. Simons
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Simpson
Ms. Linda J. Simpson
Ms. Janet E. Singer
Mr. and Mrs. Amar J. Singh
Mr. Sher G. Singh
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Sinnamon
Sino-US Friendship Center Inc.
Mr. Mark A. Sippel
Ms. Helen L. Sisk
Mr. Roger Siwak
Ms. Rochelle Sjolseth
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Skeffington
Ms. Shirley J. Skinner
Mr. Daniel L. Skret
Mr. Daniel F. Skully
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Mr. Steve Slater
Ms. Julie Slovin
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel B. Smart III
Mr. Joseph M. Smierciak
Mr. Harold U. Smiley Jr.
Ms. Catherine J. Smith
Ms. Cristina I. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. David Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas R. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Dwight D. Smith
Mr. Joe Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Joel F. Smith
Ms. Marie Smith
Ms. Marsha N. Smith and  

Ms. Laurel A. Bleak
Dr. Marshall S. Smith and  

Dr. Louise N. Smith
Ms. Martha F. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy G. Smith
Dr. Tresa V. Smith
Mr. Wilson P. Smith Jr.
Neal & Bea Smith Family 

Foundation
Ms. Karen S. Smith-Yoshimura
Mrs. Suzanne Smitherman
Ms. Sigrid Snider
Ms. Nancy Snustad and  

Mr. Michael Anderson
Ms. Peggy G. Snyder
Mr. Stephen C. Snyder
Mr. Richard M. Soehren
Mr. Francis X. Soen
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Soerens
Ms. Philippa H. Solomon
Mr. and Mrs. Mento A. Soponis
Mr. Jordan Sorensen
Ms. Mariko H. H. Soto
Mr. and Mrs. Sydney D. 

Southerland III
Ms. Ruth F. Souza
Mr. Tim Spagnoletti
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Spain
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Spalding
Ms. Janey Spangler
Ms. Jeanne M. Sparks and  

Mr. Kenneth Hough
Mr. Ron V. Speaker
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Spencer
Ms. Darlene Spillers
Ms. Norma N. Spivey
Ms. Carolyn Spolidoro
Mr. and Mrs. Albert R. Spottke
Mrs. John D. Spragins
Ms. Mary Gay Sprague
Ms. Joanne W. Springer
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Springman
Ms. Rosario O. Spruell
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Spruill

Dr. Jane P. Srinivasan
Ms. Christine T. St.Clare and  

Mr. Mark S. St.Clare
St.Clare Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Doug Staiger
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald K. Stair
Mrs. Brigitte Stanfill
Mr. Thomas D. Stanks
Mr. Robert E. Stanley
Mr. Paul E. Stapleton
Dr. Michael D. Stargel
Dr. and Mrs. John H. Starks Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David Starkweather
Dr. Thad Starner and  

Ms. Tavenner Hall
Ms. Aviva Starr and  

Ms. Sherry Samuels
Mr. and Mrs. Michael T. Starr
Staubus-Dodge Family Fund at 

Rancho Santa Fe Foundation
Dr. Janet Stavnezer
Mr. and Mrs. Frank M. Stearn
Lucy and Tom Stec
Mr. Edward M. Steele
Mr. and Mrs. John B. Steele
Steele Revocable Living Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Steffen
Dr. Marrilyn Stein
Mr. and Mrs. E. Andrew 

Steinbock III
Ms. Louise Steiner
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Sten
Ms. Samuel Stephens
Ms. Irene S. Sterns
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Stevens
Mr. John R. Stevens
Mr. and Mrs. Chris Stevenson
Mr. David Stewart and  

Ms. April Bruce-Stewart
Ms. Patricia M. Stewart
Mr. and Mrs. Steven G. Stirling
Ms. Elane Stock and  

Mr. Andrew J. Sullivan
Ms. Vicky Stockton and  

Mr. Jim Allen
Mr. Richard Stohlman
Ms. Sharon F. Stollings
Ms. Cynthia Stone
Mr. John B. Stone
Mr. Robert M. Stone and  

Ms. Diane E. Christensen
Mr. Dan Storper
The Storper Family Foundation
Dr. Frank E. Stratton
Rev. Laurice D. Streyffeler
Mr. and Ms. Keith Striggow
Ms. Patricia Strougal
Ms. Cynthia Jo Stuble
Mr. and Mrs. Talmadge Stuckey 

and Mr. Joey Stuckey

Mr. David Stump and  
Dr. Carly Kenkel

Ms. Anne M. Sturtevant
Mr. and Mrs. Richard P. Succa
Mr. Sidney K. Suggs
Ms. Helen Sullinger
Ms. Dorothy L. Sullivan
Ms. Eileen T. Sullivan
Ms. Michelle L. Sullivan
Mr. John Summerhays and  

Ms. Myrna Orenstein
Mr. Philip L. Swan
Dr. Constance Swank
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Swank
Ms. Kathleen J. Swanson
Ms. Jeanne Swartelé-Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Edward L. Sweeney
Ms. Jeanne Swen
Mr. Tad J. Swida
Mr. Dennis J. Swing
Ms. Kathleen M. Syme
Mr. and Mrs. James Szabo
Dr. Carol J. Szarko
Ms. Alice L. Szigethy
Ms. Genevieve M. Szuba
Ms. Fay Szwast
Ms. Laura Tagliani
Ms. Marylou T. Taito
Ms. Sharl K. Talan
Ms. Caroline Scott Talley and  

Mr. Mark Root
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Tamm
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Tamminga
Mr. Robert Tyree Tanner
Mrs. Ruth M. Tate
Ms. Barbara S. Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. Taylor
Mr. David V. N. Taylor
Mr. Fred W. Taylor Jr. and  

Ms. Marie Sweeney
Dr. Jean E. Taylor
Mr. Richard Taylor
Dr. Steven S. Taylor and  

Dr. Rosemary A. Taylor
Mr. Woody Taylor
Mrs. Jean E. Tedrick
Ms. Carol G. Teeter
Ms. Gillian M. Teichert
Telaka Foundation
Ms. Paula Temple
Ms. Marsha J. Terry
Mr. Patrick A. Terry
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Terzaken
Dr. Tina Tessina and  

Mr. Richard Sharrard
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Thayer
Ms. Leslie H. Thomas
Ms. Melinda M. Thomas
Ms. Patricia A. Thomas
Mr. Thomas B. Thomas

Dr. Sherrill Thomas-Dertke
Mr. Evan A. Thompson
Ms. Isabelle Thompson
Mr. Joshua L. Thompson
Ms. M. Melinda Thompson
Mr. Iain A. Thomson
Mr. and Mrs. John Thonet
Ms. Laurie Thornton
Mr. Charles E. Thornton-Kolbe
Dr. George R. Throop and  

Ms. Nancy M. Dunn
Ms. Mary E. Thurlow
Ms. Rosemary Thurston
Ms. Patricia Tidmarsh
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Tiggelaar
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Tillman Jr.
The Tom Fund
Ms. Mary Tooley
Ms. Lucy L. Tower
Mr. Jonathan Towne and  

Ms. Candy Martindale
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Townsend
Mr. and Mrs. J. Mark Tracy
Ms. Bettina Trautmann
Ms. Mary Treanor
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick Tresher
Ms. Annie Trevino
Dr. Phyllis Trible
Ms. Lori A. Triplett
Ms. Dari Tritt
Ms. Nancy S. Tritt
Straat-Truchard
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey Trullinger
Mr. Tony Truong
Mrs. Ruth Moody Tsu
Dr. and Mrs. Russ Tuck
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Tudor
Mr. James Tufenkian
The Tufenkian Foundation
Mr. David W. Tuffy
Mr. Michael J. Turner
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Ms. Lynn L. Tyson
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Uding
Mr. Harold W. Underhill
Mr. Jonathan M. Unger
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas R. 

Unnasch
Dr. Ruth Uphold and  

Ms. Mary Provencher
Mr. Richard H. Usher
Mr. and Mrs. Jody Usry
Ms. Mildred Vaccarella
Dr. and Mrs. P. Roy Vagelos
Dr. Rama Vaitla
Mr. and Mrs. Pablo Valencia
Mr. Robert C. Valentini
Valine Family Charitable Fund
Richard and Diane Van Grunsven 

Family Foundation
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Mr. and Mrs. Mark Van Sant
Ms. Phyllis D. Vance
Mr. Robert G. Vanecko
Mr. and Mrs. Richard 

VanGrunsven
Mr. Doug VanOrnum
Dr. Joseph Vargas and  

Mrs. Shannon Vargas
Robert Vaughn, Ph.D.
The Dr. Robert H. and Susan J. 

Vaughn Revocable Living Trust
Mr. and Mrs. William Vello
Ms. Ann S. Venable
Mr. Steven K. Vernon
Dr. and Mrs. William R. Vetter
Dr. and Mrs. Charles H. Veurink
Mr. Robert R. Viducich
Mr. and Mrs. John Viets
Mr. Gary W. Vig
Ms. Sarah S. Vigoda
Ms. Roberta A. Villarreal
Rev. Audrey Vincent
Dr. Dorothy Vaughn Vincent
Dr. and Mrs. Roger P. Vincent
Ms. Ilona Vinces
Ms. Janice M. Vint
Mr. Mark Voigt
Ms. Barbara K. Vold
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Volkema
Ms. Cecilia A. Vore and  

Mr. Carl Falco
Mr. Omer Waddles
Ms. Brenda J. Wade
Ms. J. Wade
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Wade
Ms. Sara Waggener and  

Mr. Nikolas Waggener
Ms. Santoshi Wagner-Anue
Mr. Douglas Wake
Ms. Rose Wakeman
Mr. Tom Waldinger
Ms. Judith C. Waldron
Rev. Martha E. Wallace and  

Mr. Dennis White
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Wallace
Mr. John T. Walsh
Ms. Lauren G. Walsh
Ms. May S. Wang
Mr. and Mrs. David Wangsness
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Warasila
Ms. Ruth Warbington
Mr. Albert J. Ward Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Edward W. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Travis Ward
The Ward Foundation Inc.
Mr. Roy Wardell
Dr. John P. Waring
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Warnes
Hon. Larry F. Warren
Ms. Cathryn A. Wasson

Mr. and Mrs. Gerald T. Watanabe
Mr. Richard D. Waterfield and 

Ms. Marni McKinney
Mr. John Waters
Dr. Karen Waters
Ms. Margaret B. Watkins
Ms. Annetta P. Watson
Mr. and Mrs. Craig R. Watson
Mr. Kenneth J. Watt and  

Mr. Victor J. Amburgy
Dr. and Mrs. Nelson B. Watts
Dr. Richard Waugaman
Ms. Margaret S. Weaver
Ms. Kathleen F. Webb
Ms. Loretta Webber
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Weber
Ms. Karen Weddle
Mr. Jonathan Weg
Mr. John F. Wehmiller and  

Rev. Paula L. Wehmiller
Dr. John Wehner and  

Dr. Asuncion Martinez-Wehner
Ms. Susen Wehner
Dr. Paul L. Weiden and  

Ms. Beverly L. Linkletter
Ms. Eleanor Weidenfeller
Ms. Phyllis Weih
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey C. Weil
Ms. Italia A. Weinand
Mr. Kenneth S. Weiner and  

Ms. Kathy Fletcher
Mr. Michael Weissert
Mr. Patrick Welch
Ms. Barbara A. Welcher
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Welle
Mr. and Ms. W. Harrison 

Wellford
Mrs. Robert C. Welter
Mr. Richard Werremeyer
Ms. Lisa C. Werth
Ms. Helen H. West
Dr. John Michael West
Mrs. Virginia West
Ms. Kathleen Westerholt and  

Ms. Gail Koser
Dr. and Mrs. W. Daniel 

Westerkam
Mr. James G. Wetrich
Mr. Eugene E. Weymouth
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Whalen
Ms. Gail J. Whatley
Mr. Thomas L. Whatley
Ms. Carolyn C. Wheeler
Dr. and Mrs. William Wheeler
Mr. John A. Whisler
Mr. and Mrs. David S. White
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas White
Ms. Eugenia White
Mr. and Mrs. Harry R. White Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas B. White

Mr. James D. Whitehouse
Mr. and Mrs. Franklyn S. 

Whitlock
Dr. David A. Wiebe
Dr. and Mrs. Lawrence Wieland
Mr. John Wierschem
Ms. Linda M. Wigington
Mr. Jeffrey Wihtol
Ms. Betty J. Wilberding
Mr. Mack Wilbourn
Mr. Fredric M. Wild
Ms. Charlotte R. Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Williams
Ms. Gaye Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Hamilton Williams
Hollis Williams
Mr. James Williams
Mr. Robert A. Williams
Ms. Sharon S. Williams
Mr. Timothy R. Williams
Dr. Valerie Williamson
Dr. John S. Willis and  

Dr. Judith H. Willis
Ms. Aletta T. Wilson
Ms. Bickley C. Wilson
Ms. Marianna Wilson
Mr. Paul A. Wilson
Dr. Robert Woodrow Wilson and 

Dr. Elizabeth S. Wilson
Ms. Veronica I. Wilson
Ms. Ursula M. Wilson-Booth
Ms. Gloria Wilt
Ms. Elizabeth Winchester
Ms. Margaret M. Wing
Dr. Hubert Winston
Mr. William Witcraft
Dr. Stephan Neil Witt and  

Ms. Jill C. Parker-Witt
Drs. Edward Witten and 

 Chiara Nappi
Ms. Cynthia Witting
Dr. Van M. Woeltz
Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. Wolf
Ms. Shirlee Wolf
Mr. Douglas MacLean and  

Ms. Susan Wolf
Mr. Mark A. Wollen
Mr. Peter M. Wolter
Lai Ying Wong and  

Chin Shing Wong
Ms. Nancy S. Wong
Dr. and Mrs. David Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Wood
Ms. Sarah K. Wood
Dr. Patricia A. Woodall
Ms. Grace Wooding
Mrs. Carolyn Woods
Mr. Richard D. Woods
Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin R. Woolf

Ms. Norris Wootton and  
Mr. David Shivers

Mr. and Mrs. Wesley Worden
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Wortman
Ms. Amy E. Wright
Ms. Deborah F. Wright
Mr. Eugene E. Wright
Dr. and Mrs. Kelly Wright
Ms. Nina A. Wright
Mr. Rex Wright
Dr. and Mrs. John Wroblewski
Dr. Dennis R. Wyant and  

Ms. Jane Feldman
Mr. Jim Xhema
Ms. Patricia Yacovone-Biagi and 

Mr. Bruce Biagi
Mr. Donald J. Yanulavich
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Yarbrough
Mr. and Mrs. Randall W. Yates
Ms. Jo Ellen Diehl Yeary
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Yingling
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Yoder
Dr. John-David Yoder
Mr. Peter Yoo and  

Ms. Julie Mulvahill
Dr. June Youatt and Dr. Charles 

Ballard
Dr. and Mrs. A. Stuart Young
Mr. and Mrs. John Young
Ms. Linda Young
Mr. Michael E. Young
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Younkin
The Honorable Marie 

Yovanovitch
Ms. Shirley L. Yu
Mr. Jing-Sheng Yue
Ms. Barbara Zahn
Ms. Jan H. Zahrly
Jean Schiro-Zavela and Vance 

Zavela
The JV Schiro Zavela Foundation
Mr. Stephen E. Zehr
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Zeiler
Mr. Feng Zhou
Mr. Christopher Zibert
Richard and Karen Ziegert
Dr. Phyllis Arn Zimmer
Mr. William S. Zimmerman
Mrs. Constance L. Zimpfer
Dr. Edward T. Zito
Mr. and Mrs. David Zoll
Ms. Deborah J. Zorn
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Zrimsek
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Zucker
Ms. Mary M. Zulack
Ms. Cheryl V. Zwirgzdas
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Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Ms. Margaret Ackerman
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Adamo
Ms. Edith E. Holiday and  

Mr. Terrence B. Adamson
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Ms. Portia Comenetia Allen
Ms. Carrie Amestoy
Ms. Deborah J. Anderson and  

Ms. Lori B. Lundell
Mr. and Mrs. Joel Anderson
Ms. Marion Anderson-Peat
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A. Andrews
Ms. Priscilla J. Angelo
Mr. Brian Anthony and  

Mr. Joseph Fitzpatrick
Mr. and Mrs. Gavin S. Appleby
Mr. and Mrs. Colin S. Archibald
Ms. Jane Ariail
Mr. Charles R. Arterburn
Dr. Kazuko K. Artus
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Auerbach
Ms. Jacqui Avila-Bell
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Babin
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Mr. William Badgley
Ms. Anne Baglini
Mrs. Laurie D. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. David Max Baker
Mrs. Mary Balfour
Dr. John Ball and Ms. Jean Dillon
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mrs. Cecilia T. Banulski
Mr. Howard Barfels
Mr. James F. Barksdale
Ms. Nancy E. Barnwell
Ms. Joy Barrett
Ms. Garnet Bass
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Beans
Dr. Christa-Maria Beardsley
Mr. Lon A. Beck
Mr. Jay Beck
Ms. Anne Behler
Mr. Robert N. Bell and  

Ms. Celia R. Denov
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory J. Bell
Ms. Michelle Benash and  

Mr. Kris Krohn
Ms. Cindy Benson
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Bercal
Ms. Diane R. Bergen
Mr. and Mrs. William S. Bickley 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James Biggs
Jane Nichols Bishop
Ms. Stephanie Biziewski
Mr. William G. G. Blakney
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mrs. Loretta Bober

Mrs. Jean M. Boddy
Ms. Esther Borg
Dr. Amy R. Boscov and  

Dr. Terence Ellen
Mr. John Bour
Mrs. Patricia B. Bourland
Ms. Caroline Bowdish
Dr. William D. Bowers
Mrs. Laura Jo Boyd
Ms. Olivia H. Bozik
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Ms. Bonnie D. Briscoe
Ms. Lee Britton Henkel
Rev. and Mrs. John L. Brown
Ms. Kathryn Brown
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Dr. William T. Browne and  

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Ms. Millicent Bruce
Ms. Barbara A. Bruner
Ms. Cynthia Rose Bryant
Mr. Mike R. Budzik and  

Ms. Sarah A. Tacoma
Ms. Virginia M. Bukowski
Mrs. Carol G. Burmeister
Ms. LuVella C. Burnett
Mr. Kenneth H. Burrows
Mr. Mark Byers and  

Ms. Lara Ferguson McNamara
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Byrne
Kathleen M. Byrne, Esq.
Ms. Barbara J. Cain
Mrs. Connie Calaway
Dr. David L. Camenga and  

Ms. Nora B. Arnold
Ms. Voradel M. Carey
The Reverend Dr. Forrest A. 

Carhartt
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. and Mrs. D. James Carson
Dr. Ronald D. Carter
Mr. Ulysses A. Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Kermon A. Carter
Ms. Suzanne Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Carter
Mr. George Carvalho
Mr. Sharron Cason
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey A. Cassens
Mr. and Mrs. Alvin Chaiken
Ms. Estrella Chan
Mrs. Leon H. Charney
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Chen
Ms. Jan Chesler
Dr. Stephen J. Chiulli
Ms. Nancy J. Christen
Mr. Walter D. Clare
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and  

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe

Ms. Barbara R. Cole and  
Mr. John L. Quigley Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Robert Boston Colgin
Mr. and Mrs. David S. Conant
Mr. James H. Conrad
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Conroy
The Honorable Frances D. Cook
Ms. Paula M. Cooke
Mr. Richard P. Coonan
Mr. and Mrs. Ross M. Cooper
Rev. Michael Corrigan
Mr. Rod Corvo
Mr. John A. Costa
Mr. Paul B. Costello and  

Ms. Rita Beamish
Mr. Stuart W. Couch
Ms. Ann Cox
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Crandall
Ms. Theresa Cromeans
Mrs. Claire L. Cross
Mrs. Anne S. Crowder
Mrs. Betty McGarvie Crowley
Ms. Peggy Cullinane
Ms. Joan R. Cummiskey
Ms. Judith A. D’Amico
Mr. Chris d’Eon
The Honorable and Mrs. John H. 

Dalton
Mr. Charles H. Dana Jr.
Ms. Lynette C. Daniel
Dr. M. Betsy Darken
Mr. Wayne C. Darnell
Mr. and Mrs. Victor R. Daub Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Brigadier General James J. David
Ms. Anne A. Davis
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Rev. and Mrs. David M. Davis
Rev. Dr. Betty Dawson
Dr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Hon. Spencer M. Dayton
Mr. David A. de Vries
Ms. Elizabeth A. Deane
Mr. Michael Dearing
Ms. Nancy Decker
Dr. Michiel E. Ultee and  

Dr. Patricia L. Dedert
Ms. Nancy A. Deering
Mr. and Mrs. John DeHarpporte
Mr. Daniel W. Dennison
Mrs. Betty D. Depietro
Laurence deQuay, Ph.D., P.E.
Mrs. Mimi Derthick
Mr. and Mrs. Benedict J. Di Salvo
Dr. Claudia C. Dickerson and 

Mr. Wayne Grinstead
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Dickson
Mr. Gurdev S. Dindral

Mr. Mark Dixon and  
Mrs. Sheryl Heitker Dixon

Dr. Virginia M. Dodd and  
Ms. Fan Watson

Mr. and Mrs. William H. Dodge
Dr. Diane E. Dreher
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley F. Drezek Jr.
Ms. Sue DuChanois
Dr. Kathleen M. Duerksen and 

Mr. Kevin M. Finnegan
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and  

Dr. Janice Duke
Mr. Ernest Dunbar
Ms. Deborah Durham
Mr. Kenneth P. Dutter
Mr. and Mrs. Donald C. Dybeck
Ms. Paula Dyer-Garrett
Dr. Brad Dyke and  

Dr. Sarah Cookinham
Ms. Marilyn K. Eaton
Mr. Gabriel H. Ebersole
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Edwards
Ms. Jennifer L. Eis
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Elmhorst
Ms. Gail M. Ervin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Mr. Jonathan C. Feaver
Mr. and Mrs. George Fee
Dr. and Mrs. Ricardo A. 

Fernandez
Mrs. Bette Finnigan
Ms. Sara J. Fitzgerald
Ms. Elsebeth Flarup
Ms. Nayan A. Fleenor
Ms. Yvette I. Fleming
Mrs. Eli M. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Folsom
Mr. Guy Formichella
Mrs. Sara E. Fors
David A. Fox and Marcia A. Fox
Ms. Margaret J. Francka
Mr. John M. Franz
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Free
Mr. Peter Ralph Fremgen
Ms. Mary E. Frieberg
Mr. Roy Frysinger
Ms. Nell Funk
Mr. Ladell J. Futch
Mr. Farley M. Galbraith
G & M Charitable Trust 

Remainder
Dr. Cherryl Garner
Mrs. Hugh A. Garnett
Ms. Rachael M. Garrity
Mr. W. F. Gasner and  

Ms. Lurlene Kyles
Mrs. Kathryn A. George
Mr. Gregory J. Gerhard
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Dr. Paul Gerke
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Harman
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Mr. William T. Harper and  
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Reverend Shaun Harrigan
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Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Hauser
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Ms. Barbara W. Hazelett
Trish and Christopher Healy
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Mrs. Ilze S. Henderson
Ms. Carol A. Henning
Ms. Linda S. Hensel
Ms. Joy Hewett
Mrs. Evelyn R. Hewett
Ms. Dana C. Hice
Mrs. Maria C. Higgins and  

Mr. Chester A. Higgins Sr.
Dr. and Mrs. Larry Hill
Ms. Penny M. Hill
Ms. Janet Hines
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Hochman
Mr. Kenneth Hochstedler
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 

Hochstetler
Mrs. Susan Hoeksema
Ms. Joanne Hoemberg
Ms. Carla E. Holder
Ms. R. Diane Holliday
Mr. Steven Hollingsworth and 

Ms. Daidee Springer
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Holstrom
Dr. and Mrs. Nelson Horseman
Ms. Carolyn Houghton and  

Mr. David Sodano
Ms. Alice Houseknecht
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Houts
Ms. Rita Hovakimian and  

Dr. Robert Weinberg
Mr. and Mrs. George G. Howard
Dr. Sue Howe
Ms. Margaret V. Hughes
Dr. John P. Hussman and  

Mrs. Theresa K. Hussman
Ms. Betsy M. Hutcheson
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III 

and Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
The Reverend and Mrs. Nicholas 

Inman
Mr. Robert A. Ipock Jr. and  

Dr. Kim Ipock
Mr. B. William Irlbeck
Dr. Marianne Jackson
Ms. M. Christine Jacobs
Ms. Diane S. Jacqmin
Mr. William R. James

Loree Ann and David Janusz
Mrs. J. Michelle Jenn
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Mr. Jason Jensen
Mr. Marvin D. Jensen
Dr. Robert C. Jespersen
Mr. Matthew Jewett
Ms. Barbara Ann Jezl
Ms. Linda O. Johnson
Ms. Susan F. Johnson
Mr. James S. Johnson
Dr. and Mrs. J. Timothy Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Johnson
Ms. Jennifer A. Johnson and  

Mr. Kenneth L. Grotewiel
Ms. Janet F. Johnson
Ms. Kristine Johnson
Ms. Janet L. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Ernest W. Johnson
Ms. Patricia A. Johnson
Ms. Laura L. Johnston
Ms. Janis N. Jones
Ms. Nancy L. Jones
Barb Jones and Chris Jones
Dr. and Mrs. Warren Jones
Mr. and Mrs. John Jopling
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Jorgensen
Mr. Suryaram R. Joshi
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Juntune
Mr. Steven Kale and  

Ms. Leah Hemelstrand
Ms. Lynne A. Kalustian
Ms. Marie J. Kane
Dr. Catherine H. Kannenberg
Mr. Vinod Kariat and  

Dr. Saila Kariat
Mr. George Karnoutsos
Mr. Timothy Karsten and  

Ms. Karinna Kittles-Karsten
Ms. Barbara A. Karwhite
Ms. Tanya Mujica Keenan and 

Mr. Jeffrey Keenan
Mr. Edward Keiderling
Ms. Nancy Kelly and  

Mr. James Enrietti
Ms. Judy Kieffer
Dr. Judith Kierstead
Mrs. Mary Pat Killian
Mr. Damon Kimber
Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Ms. Dorothy M. Kinney
Ms. Beth P. Kissling
Mr. Paul F. Knauth
Dr. Linda V. Knight
Mr. Bill L. Knowles
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Kobs
Ms. Sonja Laughlin Koenig
Ms. Margaret A. Kohnen
The Honorable Jimmy Kolker and 

Ms. Britt-Marie Forslund

Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Koppeis 
Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Mrs. Barbara G. Kortrey
Mr. and Mrs. Myron E. Kownacki
Dr. and Mrs. Gary A. Krasicky
Ms. Melissa A. R. Krause
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory G. Krisilas
Mr. Alex Kronstadt
Dr. Henry Kuharic
Mrs. Suman Kulkarni
Rev. and Mrs. Gary R. LaCroix
Mr. Greg Lafortune
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Lamb
Ms. Susan Landon
Ms. Marjorie V. Lane
Dr. Ann Lansing
Mr. Greg J. Laughlin
Mr. Douglas G. Laverne
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick T. Leahy
Ms. Marie J. Leblanc
Mrs. Bonnie S. Ledbetter
Ms. Tammye M. Lee
Mr. Ira L. Leitner
Ms. Rebecca Leo
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Larry N. Lesh
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn N. Lesniak
Mr. Jerry Lester
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
Dr. Peter R. Lewy
Mr. Albert L. Leyva
Ms. Peggy Lichter and  

Mr. David Didomenico
Mr. Howard B. Linden
Mr. Robert Linz
Mr. and Mrs. McAdory Lipscomb 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence R. 

Lockhart
Mr. Jim Loftis and  

Ms. Judith Billica
Ms. Beth Logan and  

Mr. Michael J. Koziel
Mr. Richard B. Logan III
Ms. Mona Logsdon
Dr. and Mrs. William B. Long
Ms. Diane M. Loucks
Dr. Barbara A. Luke
Mr. and Mrs. Russell S. Lyon
Mrs. Rose Ma
Ms. Jean MacDonald
Dr. Carole MacNeil and  

Mr. Michael Mancini
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Maddox
Mr. Lou Magnani
Dr. Peter C. Magrath and  

Rev. Susan Thon
Mrs. Janice Major
Ms. Melody Malouf
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Dr. Mark Manasse and  

Dr. Janet Mohle-Boetani
Mr. Legrand Maness
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Marshall
Ms. Marilyn Martin
Dr. D. Jeannette Martin
Dr. Molly Martin
Mr. and Mrs. Jose L. Martinez
Mr. and Mrs. W. Steve Maxwell
Ms. Tatiana L. Maxwell
Ms. Maria E. Maytorena
Dr. Peter McAlindon
Ms. Marty McCall
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Ms. Pamela McClune
Mrs. Jean D. McDow
Mr. Gregg L. McKee Jr.
Mrs. Lucile McKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. Wade F. McKenzie
Dr. Margaret McLean
Ms. Martha McMahon
Mr. William W. McMillan
Mr. Chris McMullan
Ms. Mary M. McPherson
Mr. Charles A. Mecum
Ms. MaryAnn E. Merendino
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Messersmith
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher 

Messina
Col. Virginia A. Metcalf
Ms. Jill M. Meuser and  

Dr. Gary L. McKown
Ms. Janice Miller
Ms. Paulina Miller
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas B. Miller
Ms. Lisa H. Miller and  

Mr. John T. Raible
Dr. and Mrs. Wayne Milloy
Dr. G. Irene Minor
Dr. Mary Miyagi and  

Dr. Masakazu Miyagi
Mr. John R. Mobley
Mr. and Mrs. T. R. Mock
Dr. and Mrs. Harvey 

Mohrenweiser
Estate of Richard L. Moody
Dr. Drema G. Moody
Dr. Willis H. A. Moore
Ms. Dorothy J. Moore
The Reverend L. Katherine 

Moore
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Moore
Ms. Tertia Moore
Mr. Donald Moore
Ms. Valerie Moore
Ms. Ruth Moorer
Mr. John J. Moores Sr.
Ms. Jane Moretz Edmisten

Ms. Sheila R. Morris and  
Ms. Teresa L. Williams

Mrs. Rea Moss
Mrs. Catherine A. Mullins
Mrs. Emily Mumma
Mrs. Barbara Brown Munford
Ms. Kersi F. Munshi
Ms. Pamela Munson
Mr. G. Davis Musser II
Mr. and Mrs. Lee A. Nascimento
Mrs. Besan H. Nash
Mr. Phil W. Nash
Mr. Anthony Nash
Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel H. Neff
Mr. James Neggerman
Dr. Diana F. Nelson
Dr. Joyce Neu
Ms. Joni Newcomer
Mr. and Mrs. Barry Nickelsberg
Mrs. Lillian B. Nicolson
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph H. Nicolson
Ms. Barbara R. Nielsen
Ms. Susan Layne Nielsen
Mr. Bob Norman
Mr. Samuel L. Norris
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Mr. Steven E. Nothern
Mr. Gary Nunn
Ms. H. Virginia Nye
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. 

O’Riordan
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph O’Sullivan
Ms. Carol A. Ogline
Ms. Ann M. Ohme
Mrs. Katharine L. Olah
Ms. Janet Oliver
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Ontso
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots
Mr. and Mrs. James Oppel Jr.
Ms. Mary G. Ormson
Mr. Thomas R. Osowski
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Ostrander
Dr. Harold E. Ott
Ms. Dena Page
Dr. Jill S. Pagels
Mrs. Coletta M. Pagenkopf
Mr. Richard Palmer
Ms. F. Taylor Pape and  

Mr. Haddon Hufford
Ms. Mary Kay Parham
Ms. Carole M. Park
Mr. Howard F. Park
Ms. Anna Maria Parker
Dr. Jann C. Pasler
Mr. Carl Passal and  

Ms. Karen St. John
Mrs. Katherine W. Paterson and 

Mr. John B. Paterson

Mr. and Mrs. Randy G. Paul
Dr. Brutus and Mrs. Ellen Pavitt
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Peabody
Mr. Kenneth J. Peters
Mr. and Mrs. Harold J. Peters
Anne and Dave Peterson
Dr. Susan Petro
Ms. Joyce Philen
Ms. Una Marie Pierce
Ms. Nancy A. Pitera
Ms. Rachel L. Pivnick
Drs. John and Marie Plakos
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Plum
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Pollack
Ms. Cheryl Pond
Mr. Jeffrey K. Postle
Mr. and Mrs. Jack R. Poteet
Mrs. Nan Powell
Ms. Lois Price
Mr. Chesley H. Prince and  

Ms. Catharine Summerfield Hana
Ms. Rose Prisko
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Ms. Kathleen Quinn and Mr. 

Michael McClain
Ms. Penelope Rahm
Mr. William L. Raiser and 

Madame Francoise Lamailloux
Dr. and Mrs. Vadrevu K. Raju
Ms. Claudia Ramisch
Mr. John A. Ramos and  

Ms. Mary Ann Cinowalt
Mr. and Mrs. Bertram Raphael
Ms. Elizabeth Raycroft
Mr. and Mrs. Donald W. Rea
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Rehfuss
Mr. Kurt A. Reichle
Ms. Stephanie Reith and  

Mr. Henry Werch
Ms. Frankie D. Reynolds
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Rhodes
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Dr. and Mrs. William L. Richter
Ms. Kendra M. Riden and  

Mr. James Edwin Hardy
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Riedesel
Ms. Michelle Riley
Ms. Joan M. Ritchie
Mrs. Susan Roach
Ms. Emily C. Robertson
Mr. Dennis M. Robertson
Ms. Vivien A. Rock
Ms. Nancy J. Rocker
Dr. and Mrs. Gaylan Rockswold
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Rodgers
Ms. Elfrieda M. Roque
Mr. Gerald A. Rosenthal
Ms. Cathi Roy
Ms. Joyce Roy and  

Mr. Raymond DePaola

Mr. and Mrs. William Rubley
Ms. Anna Lee Rucker
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald R. Rudolph
Mr. and Mrs. Conway Rulon-

Miller
Mr. Robert K. Russell Jr.
Dr. Oliver A. Ryder
Ms. Cynthia K. Sabin
Mr. Donald Sackett
Mr. Peter F. Said
Mr. and Mrs. James G. Sallen
Dr. Cheryl E. Samans
Ms. Dianne Sanborn
Mr. Michael L. Sanders
Mr. Robert A. Saritelli
Mrs. Mary Sarner
Mr. and Mrs. J. Neal Sasser Jr.
Mr. William P. Saviers Jr.
Ms. Barbara J. Schaefer
Mr. and Mrs. Paul David 

Schaeffer
Dr. and Mrs. Bradley J. Scheel Jr.
Mr. Alan M. Scheider
Ms. Vikki A. Schick and  

Mr. Elmer C. Kreisel Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Matt Schmidt
Dr. Frances Schoonmaker
Mr. Robert R. Schoos
Ms. Edna I. Schram
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Schrock
Lloyd F. Scott and Ann B. Scott
Ms. Trisha D. Scudder
Ms. Doris J. Seely
Mr. Niles Seldon
Sue Linville Shaffer Ed.D, MFT
Mr. Christopher R. Shantz
Dr. Bertram H. Shapiro
Dr. Jason W. Sheedy
Mr. and Mrs. Robert 

Shellenbarger
Ambassador Sally A.  

Shelton-Colby
Mr. David C. Sheppard
Ms. Ruth Shults and  

Mr. Charles Bradley
Ms. Fawn Simensen
Ms. Jane L. Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Singleton
Mr. R. Terry Singleton
Mr. Tommy W. Sink
Mr. Jerry W. Skidmore
Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Mrs. Elizabeth W. Slifer
Mr. William M. Sloan
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Smith
Mr. Glenn Smouse
Dr. Orlando Carter Snead III
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Snow
Mr. and Mrs. William Snyder Jr.
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Ms. Cheryl Snyder
Mr. Carroll South
Mr. and Mrs. Brent A. Sowers
Ms. Susan Spadinger
Mr. Irwin Spiegelman
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Spinelli
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Ms. Joanne W. Springer
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Spruill
Ms. Ann G. Stallard
Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard
Mr. Kenneth P. Stapp
Mr. and Mrs. Richard G. Steel
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mrs. Baird Stephens
Mrs. Stefanie H. Stevenson
Ms. Judith A. Stewart
Mrs. Milton D. Stewart
Mr. Duke S. Stewart
Ms. Peggy H. Stilwell
Ms. Misty M. Stone
Ms. Erika Stone
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Mr. and Mrs. Don Stoutt
Ms. Mary B. Strauss
Mrs. Joy Stukey
Mr. Thomas Stutzman
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Swaner
Dr. Constance Swank
The Reverend Grace Swensen
Mr. Anthony Swinton

Ms. Suzanne K. Taylor
Ms. Nancy J. Taylor
Mrs. Renate Taylor
Dr. and Mrs. Alva W. Taylor
Dr. Steven S. Taylor and  

Dr. Rosemary A. Taylor
Ms. Jo Ellen Teasdale
Tembrock Family Trust
Dr. Gail E. Thomas
Ms. Anne G. B. Thomas
Ms. Ellen M. Thompson
Ms. Gillann Thorndill
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Thorpe
Ms. Patricia Tidmarsh
Mr. and Mrs. Jon E. Tobiessen
Mr. Charles W. Tomlinson
Ms. Lori A. Torbenson
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Ms. Dari Tritt
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Ms. Charlene E. Twente
Mr. Lee Tyson
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Mr. Jeffrey M. Ulmer
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Mr. Azim S. Rawji
Mr. and Mrs. William T. 
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Ms. Maria C. Vasquez
Ms. Connie Venturini
Mr. Ernest C. Vickroy

Mr. Pong Vilaysane
Ms. Andrea S. Waas
Ms. Barbara Wadkins
Mr. Rick Wagner
Mrs. Margaret M. Wagner
Ms. Marie Sylvana Wall
Mrs. Glenda B. Wallace
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Walter
Mr. and Mrs. M. Denton Ward
Mr. William R. Warwick
Mr. Arthur G. Wasserman
Ms. Nancy S. Watkins
Ms. Anne L. Watson
Mrs. Kennith Webb
Mr. and Mrs. Leroy H. Webster
Ms. Karen Weddle
Mr. Brian Wegner and  

Ms. Cynthia Landes
Mr. Richard Weingarten
Mr. and Mrs. Knight Wells
Ms. Sarah Wells
Mr. W. Hall Wendel Jr.
Ms. Gertude Werner
Ms. Tammy Wert
Ms. Helen H. West
Dr. Patricia Wheeler and  

Dr. Stephen Wheeler
Dr. Betty Jo White
Ms. Karen Whitlow
Mr. Brian F. Whitworth
Ms. Cheryl Wilfong
Mrs. Coralie C. Williams

Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Dr. John S. Willis and  

Dr. Judith H. Willis
Ms. Bickley C. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Wilson
Mr. John C. Wilson
Mr. Thomas D. Wilson and  

Ms. Barbara Trofinoff
Ms. Patricia Wirth
Ms. Gabriele E. Wohlauer
Mr. and Mrs. Griff Wolf
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Wolff
Ms. Mary Elizabeth Wolter
Mr. Rick Wood
Mr. Daniel Woodard
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin R. Woolf
Mr. and Mrs. David C. Woolman
Ms. Norris Wootton and  

Mr. David Shivers
Mrs. Sylvia Xeras
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel J. Yates
Mrs. Madonna Yates
Col. Mary H. Yeakel
Mr. Aaron Yeargan
Dr. Clarice M. Yentsch
Mr. Hai Tee Young
Mr. and Mrs. Harry Zahoruk
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Zeak
Mr. and Mrs. C. Nick Zeller
Mr. James R. Ziegler
Ms. Nancy J. Zinner

Agha Hasan Abedi

Senator Hajime Akiyama

Ivan Allen III

Dwayne O. Andreas

Arthur and Diana Blank

Richard C. Blum

W. Michael Blumenthal

Edgar M. Bronfman Sr.

James C. and Connie Calaway

Mr. and Mrs. Michael C. Carlos

Anne Cox Chambers

Warren Christopher

Dominique de Menil

Charles W. Duncan Jr.

His Majesty King Fahd of 
Saudi Arabia

J. B. Fuqua

Roberto C. Goizueta

Walter and Elise Haas

Armand Hammer

Sidney Harman and Jane Frank 
Harman, Esq.

Governor and Mrs. W. Averell 
Harriman

Jess Hay

Christopher B. and Patricia K. 
Hemmeter

Philip M. and Ethel Klutznick

Mathilde and Arthur Krim

George P. Livanos

Fraydun Manocherian

G. William Miller

Guy W. Millner

George P. and Cynthia Mitchell

Set Charles Momjian

David Packard

George and Thelma Paraskevaides

Allen E. Paulson

Lamar and Frances Plunkett

John and Betty Pope

James D. Robinson III

Hasib J. Sabbagh

Deen Day Sanders

Ryoichi Sasakawa

Walter H. and Phyllis J. 
Shorenstein

Richard R. Swann

R. E. “Ted” Turner

Robert and Ann Utley

Edie and Lew Wasserman

Thomas J. Watson Jr.

Milton A. Wolf

Robert W. Woodruff

Tadao Yoshida

Erwin E. Zaban

The Carter Center and the 
Jimmy Carter Library and 
Museum were built in large 
measure thanks to the early 
leadership and financial 
support of the Carter Center 
founders.

Founders
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A woman waits outside a shop in Guatemala City. The 
Carter Center works in the country to assist women and 
young people in accessing government information.

Financial Information
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 
management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Center’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for one year after the date the consolidated 
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 

Independent Auditors’ Report
The Board of Trustees 
The Carter Center, Inc.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 
The Carter Center, Inc. and its subsidiary (the Center), 
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial 
position as of August 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related 
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consol-
idated financial position of the Center as of August 31, 
2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan-
dards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our respon-
sibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required 
to be independent of the Center and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-
priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, 
and certain internal control-related matters that we identi-
fied during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing 
Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we 
have also issued our report dated April 11, 2025, on our 
consideration of the Center’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agree-
ments and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effective-
ness of the Center’s internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Center’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance.

Atlanta, Georgia 
April 11, 2025

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substan-
tial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards, we:

• �Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit.

• �Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include exam-
ining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• �Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Center’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed.

• �Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

• �Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substan-
tial doubt about the Center’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2024 and 2023

		  2024	 2023

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents		  $     66,898,568	 74,117,222

Accounts receivable:

	 Due from conditional agreements		  12,985,745	 16,494,168

	 Other		  732,819	 376,995

		  Total accounts receivable		  13,718,564	 16,871,163

Contributions receivable, net (note 3)		  9,222,577	 510,351

Inventory (notes 4, 9, and 15)		  3,321,362	 6,331,911

Operating lease right-of-use assets (note 8)		  605,092	 780,337

Investments (notes 5, 7, and 10)		  1,117,059,446	 1,053,658,214

Property, plant, and equipment, net (note 6)		  5,210,709	 4,988,913

Artwork			  2,419,165	 2,436,465

Other assets		  295,549	 401,565

		  Total assets		  $1,218,751,032	 1,160,096,141

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

	 Accounts payable and accrued expenses		  $     13,662,462	 11,350,439

	 Lease liabilities (note 8)		  605,092	 780,337

	 Deferred revenue		  5,033,096	 7,300,146

	 Annuity obligations (note 7)		  6,142,709	 6,249,963

		  Total liabilities		  25,443,359	 25,680,885

Net assets (note 11):

	 Without donor restrictions		  434,139,963	 421,297,749

	 With donor restrictions		  759,167,710	 713,117,507

		  Total net assets		  1,193,307,673	 1,134,415,256

Commitments and contingencies (notes 7, 8, and 16	)

		  Total liabilities and net assets		  $1,218,751,032	 1,160,096,141

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended August 31, 2024 (with comparative totals for 2023)

			   Without donor	 With donor		  Totals
			   restrictions	 restrictions	 2024		  2023

Revenue and Support
	Contributions and grants:

	Operating			  $  42,970,806	 —	 42,970,806	 37,336,091

	Programs:

			  Health			   —	 52,480,183	 52,480,183	 56,244,502

			  Peace			   —	 19,270,279	 19,270,279	 19,930,381

			  Cross-program			   —	 —	 —	 218,299

	 In-kind gifts (note 9):

			  Health			   —	 235,296,040	 235,296,040	 265,344,619

	Endowment			   —	 9,734	 9,734	 761,913

					   Total contributions and grants		  42,970,806	 307,056,236	 350,027,042	 379,835,805

	Endowment fund earnings		  16,808,289	 29,826,218	 46,634,507	 37,762,413

	Appreciation of endowment investments, net		  20,109,802	 35,493,174	 55,602,976	 (5,856,130)

	Facilities use income		  290,749	 —	 290,749	 298,790

	 Interest and investment income		  1,878,753	 12,469	 1,891,222	 1,571,643

	Net assets released from restrictions:

			  Health			   306,286,483	 (306,286,483) 	 —	 —

			  Peace			   19,777,527	 (19,777,527) 	 —	 —

			  Cross-program			   273,884	 (273,884) 	 —	 —

					   Total revenue and support		 $408,396,293	 46,050,203	 454,446,496	 413,612,521

Expenses
	 Program:

			  Health			  $318,375,356	 —	 318,375,356	 349,226,880

			  Peace			   37,143,655	 —	 37,143,655	 35,492,107

			  Cross-program			   7,328,102	 —	 7,328,102	 807,977

	Fundraising			   13,687,064	 —	 13,687,064	 12,368,890

	General and administrative		  19,019,902	 —	 19,019,902	 14,448,410

					   Total expenses		 395,554,079	 —	 395,554,079	 412,344,264

					   Change in net assets		  12,842,214	 46,050,203	 58,892,417	 1,268,257

Net assets at beginning of year		  421,297,749	 713,117,507	 1,134,415,256	 1,133,146,999

Net assets at end of year		 $434,139,963	 759,167,710	 1,193,307,673	 1,134,415,256

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended August 31, 2023

						      Without donor	 With donor
						      restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Revenue and Support
	Contributions and grants:

	Operating			   $  37,336,091	 —	 37,336,091

	Programs:

		  Health			   —	 56,244,502	 56,244,502

		  Peace			   —	 19,930,381	 19,930,381

		  Cross-program			   —	 218,299	 218,299

	 In-kind gifts (note 9):

		  Health			   —	 265,344,619	 265,344,619

	Endowment			   —	 761,913	 761,913

					   Total contributions and grants		  37,336,091	 342,499,714	 379,835,805

	Endowment fund earnings		  13,668,196	 24,094,217	 37,762,413

	Appreciation of endowment investments, net		  (1,867,622) 	 (3,988,508) 	 (5,856,130)

	Facilities use income		  298,790	 —	 298,790

	 Interest and investment income		  1,429,387	 142,256	 1,571,643

	Net assets released from restrictions:

			  Health			   339,357,891	 (339,357,891) 	 —

			  Peace			   19,567,120	 (19,567,120) 	 —

			  Cross-program			   360,836	 (360,836) 	 —

					   Total revenue and support		  $410,150,689	 3,461,832	 413,612,521

Expenses
	 Program:

		  Health			   $349,226,880	 —	 349,226,880

		  Peace			   35,492,107	 —	 35,492,107

		  Cross-program			   807,977	 —	 807,977

	Fundraising			   12,368,890	 —	 12,368,890

	General and administrative		  14,448,410	 —	 14,448,410

					   Total expenses		  412,344,264	 —	 412,344,264

					   Change in net assets		  (2,193,575) 	 3,461,832	 1,268,257

Net assets at beginning of year		  423,491,324	 709,655,675	 1,133,146,999

Net assets at end of year		  $421,297,749	 713,117,507	 1,134,415,256

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended August 31, 2024 (with comparative totals for 2023)

		  Program expenses	 Supporting expenses

				    Cross-		  General and	 Total
		  Health	 Peace	 program	 Fundraising	 administrative	 2024	 2023

Salaries and benefits	 $  29,031,476	 13,110,782	 4,206,393	 5,704,486	 9,027,289	 61,080,426	 54,179,761

Consulting	 6,369,210	 8,794,687	 1,346,900	 660,397	 4,419,743	 21,590,937	 18,798,024

Communications	 3,376,792	 530,254	 30,020	 2,857,594	 321,344	 7,116,004	 7,951,658

Services		 4,376,046	 870,875	 275,378	 1,655,469	 962,703	 8,140,471	 5,965,726

Office and equipment	 10,423,547	 661,770	 422,606	 272,692	 1,117,384	 12,897,999	 14,153,049

Vehicles		 4,288,364	 586,787	 1,482	 322	 532	 4,877,487	 5,992,426

Travel/meetings	 19,244,068	 5,398,328	 745,188	 1,510,883	 747,831	 27,646,298	 26,957,623

Interventions (note 2(l))	 238,189,609	 339,884	 —	 —	 —	 238,529,493	 263,688,240

Other		  266,763	 100,297	 134,822	 439,265	 1,453,692	 2,394,839	 3,862,530

Grants		  2,131,483	 6,253,160	 131,000	 —	 —	 8,515,643	 8,304,073

				    317,697,358	 36,646,824	 7,293,789	 13,101,108	 18,050,518	 392,789,597	 409,853,110

Common area and  
  depreciation	 677,998	 496,831	 34,313	 585,956	 969,384	 2,764,482	 2,491,154

		  Total expenses	 $318,375,356	 37,143,655	 7,328,102	 13,687,064	 19,019,902	 395,554,079	 412,344,264

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended August 31, 2023
		  Program expenses	 Supporting expenses

				    Cross-		  General and
		  Health	 Peace	 program	 Fundraising	 administrative	 Total

Salaries and benefits	 $  27,381,133	 13,694,736	 268,277	 5,100,390	 7,735,225	 54,179,761

Consulting	 7,694,720	 7,760,526	 357,046	 503,182	 2,482,550	 18,798,024

Communications	 4,232,919	 686,234	 3,324	 2,781,626	 247,555	 7,951,658

Services		 2,950,443	 932,666	 5,273	 1,613,514	 463,830	 5,965,726

Office and equipment	 11,820,910	 1,115,033	 14,143	 229,015	 973,948	 14,153,049

Vehicles		 5,491,880	 499,301	 27	 459	 759	 5,992,426

Travel/meetings	 21,026,913	 4,360,217	 25,327	 1,167,200	 377,966	 26,957,623

Interventions (note 2(l))	 263,649,627	 38,613	 —	 —	 —	 263,688,240

Other		  1,499,418	 620,953	 3,640	 445,482	 1,293,037	 3,862,530

Grants		  2,867,953	 5,336,120	 100,000	 —	 —	 8,304,073

				    348,615,916	 35,044,399	 777,057	 11,840,868	 13,574,870	 409,853,110

Common area and  
  depreciation	 610,964	 447,708	 30,920	 528,022	 873,540	 2,491,154

		  Total expenses	 $349,226,880	 35,492,107	 807,977	 12,368,890	 14,448,410	 412,344,264

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Financial Statements

70



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023

		  2024	 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
	Change in net assets			   $  58,892,417	 1,268,257

	Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
	   provided by operating activities:

			  Depreciation				    780,017	 834,626

			  Appreciation of endowment investments, net			   (55,602,976) 	 5,845,650

			  Appreciation of non-endowment investments, net			   (100,103) 	 (23,554)

			  Endowment fund earnings not received in cash			   (7,816,876) 	 —

			  Donated artwork			   17,300	 (1,100)

			  Contributions restricted in perpetuity, net			   (9,734) 	 (761,913)

			�  Net change in inventory balances due to noncash  
  contributions and distributions			   3,010,549	 (1,944,128)

			  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

				   Accounts receivable			   3,152,599	 (7,811,238)

				   Contributions receivable, net of donor endowment			   (8,712,226) 	 (280,188)

				   Other assets			   106,016	 (368,279)

				�   Accounts payable and accrued expenses, deferred 
  revenue, and annuity obligations			   (411,326) 	 1,790,298

					    Net cash provided by operating activities			   (6,694,343) 	 (1,451,569)

Cash flows from investing activities
	 Purchase of property and equipment, net of related payables			   (1,001,813) 	 (900,259)

	Purchase of investments			   (531,504) 	 (672,656)

	Sale of investments			   999,272	 927,259

					    Net cash used in investing activities			   (534,045) 	 (645,656)

Cash flows from financing activities
	Contributions restricted in perpetuity, net			   9,734	 761,913

					    Net cash used in financing activities			   9,734	 761,913

					    Net change in cash and cash equivalents			   (7,218,654) 	 (1,335,312)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year			   74,117,222	 75,452,534

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year			   $  66,898,568	 74,117,222

Supplemental disclosures for cash flow information:

		  Noncash investing activity — purchases of property and equipment  
		    in accounts payable			   $                  —	 104,779

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND  
OTHER MATTERS

A.	 Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Center 
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles.

B.	 Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Center 
include the activity of its wholly owned subsidiary, The 
Carter Center Collaborative, Inc. (CCCI), an affiliated, 
tax-exempt not-for-profit corporation that supports the 
Center’s mission through receipt of in-kind goods and 
services. All significant intercompany transactions are 
eliminated on consolidation.

C.	 Basis of Presentation
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are 
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-im-
posed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Center 
and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that 
are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets subject to 
donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met either 
by actions of the Center and/or the passage of time.

D.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Center’s cash and cash equivalents represent liquid 
financial instruments with an original maturity of 
three months or less that are not invested as part of the 
investment assets. These amounts, carried at cost, approx-
imate fair value.

E.	 Contributions
Contributions received are recognized as revenue when 
underlying assets or a donor’s unconditional promise 
to give is received. Contributions are considered to be 
available for use without restriction unless specifically 
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are desig-
nated for future periods or restricted by the donor for 
specific purposes are reported as support that increases 
net assets with donor restrictions.

 
ORGANIZATION  
AND OPERATION

The Carter Center, Inc. (the Center), formerly known as 
Carter Presidential Library, Inc. and Carter Presidential 
Center, Inc., was organized on October 26, 1981, under the 
laws of the state of Georgia as a not-for-profit corporation 
to be operated exclusively for charitable and educational 
purposes.

The Center operates programmatically under two 
main action areas: Peace and Health. The Center also 
receives broad-based support deemed to be beneficial to all 
programs and categorized as Cross-program.

Initiatives in Peace include preventing and resolving 
conflict, protecting basic human rights, promoting rule of 
law, and monitoring elections in emerging democracies. 
The Health area strives to improve health in the United 
States and around the world. Initiatives include disease 
eradication and control and mental health reform. The 
Center operates field offices in various African, Asian, and 
Latin American countries, as needed, to fulfill its program-
matic objectives.

For the fiscal year ending Aug. 31, 2024, the board of 
trustees (the Board) of the Center consists of President 
Jimmy Carter, the president of Emory University, 10 
members appointed by Emory University’s board of 
trustees, and 11 members appointed by President Carter 
and those trustees not appointed by Emory University’s 
board of trustees (Carter Center class of the Center’s 
trustees). Additionally, Emory University’s board of trustees 
has the authority to approve amendments to the Center’s 
articles of incorporation and bylaws. Carter Center of 
Emory University (CCEU) (an affiliate of CCI) is a depart-
ment of Emory University that was established to assist 
with the operations of the Center’s programs. The financial 
data for CCEU is not included in these consolidated 
financial statements as it is considered part of the Emory 
University reporting entity.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Unconditional promises to give that are expected to 
be collected within one year are recorded at net realizable 
value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected 
to be collected in future years are recorded at the present 
value of their estimated future cash flows. Unconditional 
promises to give are discounted using interest rates 
approximating fair value at the date of the gift.

Contributions and grants are conditional if the donor 
agreement includes both a donor-imposed barrier that 
must be overcome and a right of return of funds (or a 
release of an obligation to transfer funds). Conditional 
contributions are recognized as revenue once the 
donor-imposed barrier is overcome (typically qualifying 
expenses being incurred) or when right of return of the 
contribution to the donor no longer exists, as specified in 
the terms and conditions of the donor agreement.

F.	 In-Kind Gifts
Contributed property and equipment is recorded at 
fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate 
how long the assets must be used, the contributions 
are recorded as support with donor restrictions. In the 
absence of such stipulations, contributions of prop-
erty and equipment are recorded as support without 
donor restrictions.

Donated materials and supplies, primarily medical 
supplies, are reflected in the consolidated statements of 
activities as contributions at their estimated fair values. 
Donated services are reflected as contributions if the 
following criteria are met: (1) the services received create 
or enhance nonfinancial assets or (2) the services require 
specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing 
those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if 
not provided by donation. Donated services are recog-
nized at fair value as the services are performed.

G.	Inventory
Inventory primarily consists of medication used by 
the Center to treat diseases that are the subject of the 
Center’s health programs. Inventory is initially recorded 
as an in-kind-donation at its fair value at the date of the 
donation. Inventory is valued using the first-in, first-out 
method. Values as determined by the donor and inde-
pendent third-party pricing information are utilized in 
management’s fair value estimate.

H.	 Investments
The Center makes the majority of its investments in a 
pooled investment fund (the Fund) managed and held 
in trust by Emory University. The Center’s investments 
also include assets invested for its charitable gift annuities 
and charitable remainder trusts. Investments in the 
Fund (note 5) are stated at fair value as determined by the 
manager, Emory University. Emory University’s pooled 
investments in securities and listed funds are valued using 
quoted prices in active markets, if available; otherwise, if 
the market is inactive, fair value is determined by Emory 
University in accordance with its valuation policies.

Investments in alternative investment fund structures 
held in the Fund are valued by Emory University using 
the net asset value (NAV) per share of the investment (or 
its equivalent), as a practical expedient, if (a) the under-
lying investment manager’s calculation of NAV is fair 
value based, and (b) Emory University does not currently 
have plans to sell the investment for an amount different 
from NAV.

All other investments held in charitable gift annuities 
and charitable remainder trusts are stated at fair value 
based on quoted market prices. Investment return, 
including net realized and unrealized gains or losses, is 
recognized when earned and reported in the consolidated 
statement of activities.

The values of the investments in the Fund determined 
by Emory University are evaluated by management of the 
Center, which has concluded that such values are reason-
able estimates of fair value at August 31, 2024 and 2023.

Investments are exposed to several risks, such as 
interest rate, currency, market, and credit risks. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is 
reasonably possible that changes in the values of invest-
ments will occur in the near term and that such changes 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the 
Center’s consolidated financial statements.

I.	 Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost at the 
date of acquisition or at fair value at the date of dona-
tion in the case of gifts. Depreciation is provided over 
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on a 
straight-line basis.
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J.	 Leases
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2016-02, Financial Accounting for Leases, together 
with its subsequent related amendments in 2018 and 
2019, collectively referred to as FASB Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 842, Leases (Topic 
842). The Center adopted Topic 842 as of September 1, 
2022 (“transition date”), using the modified retrospective 
approach and as a result did not adjust the comparative 
period financial information or make the disclosures for 
periods before the transition date. The Center elected 
the package of practical expedients to not reassess prior 
conclusions related to contracts containing leases, lease 
classification, lease term, and initial direct costs, as 
well as not to separate nonlease components from lease 
components and instead account for each as a single lease 
component for all classes of its assets.

As a result of adopting Topic 842, the Center 
recognized operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets and 
corresponding liabilities of $767,888 as of September 1, 
2022. The adoption of Topic 842 resulted in no mate-
rial impact to the Center’s statements of activities or 
cash flows.

The Center is a lessee in several noncancelable 
operating leases, primarily for office space and small 
equipment. The Center determines if an arrangement 
contains a lease at contract inception. If an arrangement 
is determined to contain a lease, the Center recognizes 
an ROU asset and lease liability at the lease commence-
ment date. The Center’s operating leases expire over the 
next four years. These leases generally contain renewal 
options for periods negotiable between the parties upon 
notice to renew. Because the Center is not reasonably 
certain to exercise these renewal options, the options 
are not considered in determining the lease term, and 
associated potential option payments are excluded from 
lease payments. The Center’s leases generally do not 
include termination options for either party to the lease 
or restrictive financial or other covenants. Payments 
due under the lease contracts include fixed payments 
plus variable payments on some of the office space 
leases. For office space leases, variable payments include 
payments for the Center’s proportionate share of the 
building’s property taxes, insurance, and common area 

maintenance. The Center has elected to discount its lease 
liabilities using its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease term for all of the Center’s leases includes 
the noncancelable period of the lease plus any additional 
periods covered by the Center’s option to extend (or 
not to terminate) the lease that the Center is reasonably 
certain to exercise. The Center has elected not to recog-
nize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with terms 
of 12 months or less.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the 
lease liability comprise fixed payments and variable lease 
payments. Variable lease payments associated with the 
Center’s leases are recognized when the event, activity, 
or circumstance in the lease agreement on which those 
payments are assessed occurs. Variable lease payments for 
operating leases are presented as operating expense in the 
Center’s consolidated statements of activities.

Topic 842 requires a lessee to discount its unpaid lease 
payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or 
if that rate cannot be readily determined, its incremental 
borrowing rate. Generally, the Center cannot determine 
the interest rate implicit in the lease because it does not 
have access to the lessor’s estimated residual value or 
the amount of the lessor’s deferred initial direct costs. 
Therefore, the Center uses the incremental borrowing 
rate as the discount rate for leases which is adjusted for 
lease term.

The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for lease payments made at or before the lease commence-
ment date, plus any initial direct costs incurred less any 
lease incentives received. For operating leases, the ROU 
asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease 
term at the carrying amount of the lease liability, plus 
initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) 
lease payments, less the unamortized balance of lease 
incentives received. Lease expense for lease payments is 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ROU assets for operating leases are periodically 
reduced by impairment losses. The Center uses the 
long-lived assets impairment guidance in ASC Subtopic 
360-10, Property, Plant, and Equipment — Overall, to deter-
mine whether an ROU asset is impaired, and if so, the 
amount of the impairment loss to recognize.

The Center monitors for events or changes in 
circumstances that require a reassessment of leases. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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When a reassessment results in the remeasurement of 
a lease liability, a corresponding adjustment is made to 
the carrying amount of the corresponding ROU asset 
unless doing so would reduce the carrying amount of the 
ROU asset to an amount less than zero. In that case, the 
amount of the adjustment that would result in a negative 
ROU asset balance is recorded in profit or loss.

K.	 Artwork
The Center has capitalized works of art and collectibles 
received since its inception at the estimated fair value at 
the date of acquisition. Works of art with service poten-
tial that diminishes very slowly over time, to the extent 
that its estimated useful life is extraordinarily long, are 
not subject to depreciation.

L.	 Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the Center’s various programs 
and supporting services have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, 
certain costs have been allocated among the programs 
and supporting services benefited. Intervention expenses 
included within the Center’s health program comprise 
the distribution of donated medications, primarily 
Mectizan and Zithromax, as well as filter cloth distri-
bution, epidemiological surveys, and health education 
training and material. Expenses attributable to more than 
one functional expense category and the basis for alloca-
tion are as follows:

Expense	 Allocation basis

Depreciation	 Square footage
IT department	� Estimates of time and costs of 

specific technology utilized

M.	Federal and Other Government Grants
The Center receives funding under grants and agree-
ments from the U.S. and other government agencies. 
These funds are generally considered nonreciprocal 
transactions and are subject to donor conditions and 
restrictions that are typically met by incurring qualifying 
expenses for a program. The Center is entitled to the 
funds once the conditions have been met.

For the years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023, the 
Center received £1,719,128 GBP ($2,140,742) and 

£0 GBP ($0), respectively, from the United Kingdom 
Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office 
(FCDO) in support of the Center’s Citizen Observer 
Engagement and Advocacy project in the DRC.

For the years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023, the 
Center received €0 Euros ($0) and €200,000 Euros 
($209,840), respectively, from Ireland’s Department of 
Foreign Affairs, Civil Society Fund to support Promoting 
and Protecting Women’s Right of Access to Information 
in West Africa.

For the years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023, 
the Center received €250,000 Euros ($262,980) and 
€0 Euros ($0), respectively, from Ireland’s Department 
of Foreign Affairs, Civil Society Fund to support the 
Advancing Participatory Rights of Women & Youth in 
Zambia project.

N.	Tax Status
The Center and CCCI have received determination 
letters from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) dated 
December 16, 1991, and March 22, 2007, respectively, 
each indicating recognition as an organization described 
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(the Code) whereby only unrelated business income, 
as defined by Section 512(a) of the Code, is subject to 
federal income tax.

The Center applies FASB ASC Topic 740, Income 
Taxes (ASC 740), which addresses the accounting for 
uncertainty in income tax positions. The Center regularly 
evaluates its tax positions and as of August 31, 2024 and 
2023, does not believe it has any material uncertain tax 
positions that require disclosure or adjustment to the 
consolidated financial statements.

O.	Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
requires management to make a number of estimates 
and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Significant items 
subject to such estimates and assumptions include the 
fair value of inventory; fair values of investments without 
readily determinable fair value; and obligations under 
split-interest agreements. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.
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INVENTORY

Inventory included Zithromax medication in the amount 
of $3,321,362 and $2,857,738 as of August 31, 2024 and 
2023, respectively. Inventory also included Mectizan medica-
tion as of August 31, 2024 and 2023, in the amount of $0 
and $3,474,173, respectively.

 
 
INVESTMENTS

The Center’s investments are presented in the accompa-
nying consolidated statements of financial position at their 
fair values.
		  Fair value
		  2024	 2023

Pooled investments held  
  at Emory University		  $1,104,676,178	 1,041,971,736
Cash and cash equivalents		  116,329	 151,616
Fixed-income securities:
	   Domestic mutual funds		 4,186,885	 3,321,592
	   Government and  
	   agency securities		  600,432	 373,772
Equities:
	   Domestic stocks		  7,386,912	 7,748,498
	   Domestic mutual funds		 92,710	 91,000
			   $1,117,059,446	 1,053,658,214

As of August 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, the Center’s 
investment in the pooled investment fund totaled 
$1,104,676,178 and $1,041,971,736, representing approx-
imately 10.32% and 10.46% of the pool at each of these 
dates. The composition of total pooled investments held at 
Emory University is as follows (in thousands):

P.	 Use of Estimates
In the preparation of the current year’s consolidated 
financial statements, certain adjustments have been made 
to the prior year’s consolidated financial statements 
to conform to the current year’s presentation. These 
adjustments are limited to the consolidated statement of 
cash flows and liquidity footnote, and had no effect on 
the previously reported assets, liabilities, or change in 
net assets.

 
CONTRIBUTIONS  
RECEIVABLE, NET

Contributions receivable consist of the following at 
August 31, 2024 and 2023:

		  2024	 2023

With donor restrictions:
	 Endowment		  $   199,323	 199,323
	 Health		  8,849,097	 225,508
	 Peace		  131,140	 29,286 
	 Cross-program		  43,017	 56,234
			   $9,222,577	 510,351

The anticipated receipts of these receivables are as follows at 
August 31, 2024 and 2023:

		  2024	 2023

Less than one year		  $3,529,648	 455,508
One to five years		  6,029,927	 60,000
More than five years		  —	 —
Less unamortized discount		  (336,998) 	 (5,157)
			   $9,222,577	 510,351

Contributions to be received after one year are discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate commensurate with the 
risks involved. Amortization of discounts is recorded 
as additional contribution revenue in accordance with 
donor-imposed restrictions on the contributions. In the 
opinion of the Center’s management, all contributions 
receivable recorded at August 31, 2024 and 2023, are 
deemed fully collectible.
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PROPERTY, PLANT,  
AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The components of property, plant, and equipment at 
August 31, 2024 and 2023, are as follows:

			   Estimated 
	 2024	 2023	 useful lives

Land	 $     636,732	 636,732	 N/A
Buildings	 17,580,412	 17,580,412	 30 years
Building improvements	 3,890,947	 3,451,877	 15 years
Grounds and land  
	 improvements	 489,027	 385,891	 10 years
Furniture and fixtures	 1,755,710	 1,481,341	 10 years
Office equipment	 832,072	 832,072	 5 years
Computer equipment	 683,841	 498,603	 3 years
		  25,868,741	 24,866,928
Less accumulated  
	 depreciation	 (20,658,032) 	 (19,878,015)
		  $  5,210,709	 4,988,913

Depreciation expense totaled $780,017 and $834,626 during 
2024 and 2023, respectively.

 
SPLIT-INTEREST  
AGREEMENTS

The Center is a beneficiary under several types of split- 
interest agreements, primarily charitable gift annuities. 
Under these agreements, the Center acts as trustee of assets 
received from donors and remits to the donor or other 
designee a fixed amount for a specified period of time, 
normally until the death of the donor or other designee. 
Assets related to charitable gift annuities are recorded at 
their fair values when received, and an annuity payment 
liability is recognized at the present value of future cash 
flows expected to be paid to the donor or other designee. 
At the time of the gift, the Center recognizes contribution 
revenue for the remainder interest in an amount equal to the 
difference between the fair value of the assets received and 
the annuity liability. Discount rates and actuarial assump-
tions used to determine the annuity liability are typically 
based on factors, such as applicable federal interest rates 
and life income beneficiary life expectancies, as determined 

		  2024	 2023

Short-term investments  
	 and cash equivalents		  $     252,804	 636,418
Public equity		  3,741,667	 3,461,058
Absolute return/fixed income		  2,159,103	 1,318,519
Private equity/venture capital		  3,719,590	 3,651,408
Real assets		  830,482	 845,881
Derivative instruments		  (898) 	 49,843
			   $10,702,748	 9,963,127

Based on Emory University’s investment policy statement, 
investments classified as public equity include global 
equity securities and commingled funds — equity, as well as 
alternative investments pursuing such strategies. Absolute 
return/fixed-income investments comprise fixed-income 
securities and commingled funds — fixed income, along with 
alternative investments pursuing similar credit or oppor-
tunistic strategies. Private equity/venture capital includes 
investments in the private markets, as well as investments in 
private securities. Real assets include investments in natural 
resources and real estate partnerships.

Emory University is subject to limitations and restrictions 
on its ability to redeem or sell certain of the investments 
included in its pooled investment fund. Such restrictions 
vary by investment type and range from required notice 
periods (generally 30 to 180 days after initial lockup periods) 
to specified terms at inception (generally 10 years).

The Center and Emory University entered into 
a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) during 
September 2020 that sets forth mutual expectations 
regarding the management by Emory University of the 
Center’s assets held in trust in the pooled investment fund. 
The MOU provides that the Center is permitted partial 
withdrawals of up to 10% per year (inclusive of regular 
spending payouts), with 30 days’ written notice prior to a 
calendar quarter or fiscal year end. A full withdrawal request 
by the Center requires at least one year’s written notice 
and is subject to a multiyear distribution schedule in line 
with the duration of the long-term investment portfolio, as 
agreed upon by both the Center and Emory University.
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to CCEU approximately 20% of the Center’s space under a 
lease for a term of 99 years, with a rental payment of $1 per 
year. A business agreement with the Center’s caterer has no 
annual rent; rather, the Center receives 5% to 10% of the 
tenant’s gross revenue, as defined in such agreement. For 
operating leases, the lease liability is measured at the present 
value of the unpaid lease payments at the lease commence-
ment date.

 
 
IN-KIND GIFTS

The components of in-kind gifts, donated goods, and 
services for the years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023, are 
as follows:

		  2024	 2023

Health:
	 Medication		  $234,849,720	 264,420,613
	 Other		  446,320	 924,006
			   $235,296,040	 265,344,619

Donations of medication were received primarily from 
two pharmaceutical companies for the years ended 
August 31, 2024 and 2023. These donations are subject 
to donor-imposed restrictions as to location of distribu-
tion and were used in the Center’s River Blindness and 
Trachoma programs in sub-Saharan Africa. Such donations 
are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of the gift. 
Estimates of fair value are based primarily on analyzing 
observable market data associated with branded, wholesale 
and generic pricing; geographic factors considering the U.S. 
as the most advantageous market; and fair value indicators 
provided by donors, if any.

All gifts in-kind are utilized in the year of receipt with 
the exception relating to the balance of medical inventory 
disclosed in note 4.

FAIR VALUE  
OF FINANCIAL  
INSTRUMENTS

The Center’s estimates of fair value for financial assets 
and liabilities are based on the framework established in 

by mortality tables published by the IRS. The changes in 
the value of these agreements are included in operating 
contributions and grants in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of activities.

Certain states have restrictions on investment allocations. 
Management of the Center believes it has complied with any 
known restrictions in states in which it has received chari-
table gifts subject to such restrictions.

The fair value of the assets related to split-interest 
agreements is included in investments in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of financial position and totaled 
$12,383,268 and $11,686,478 at August 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. The annuity liability related to these agreements 
is $6,142,709 and $6,249,963 at August 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. The net contribution revenue (loss) reported 
for split interest agreements as a component of contribu-
tions and grants revenue and support totaled $804,044 
and $306,971 for the years ended August 31, 2024 and 
2023, respectively.

 
 
LEASES

Operating lease cost included in the office and equipment 
line item on the accompanying consolidated statements 
of functional expenses were $1,190,941 and $1,544,091, 
respectively, for the years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023.

Maturities of lease liabilities under noncancelable leases 
as of August 31, 2024, are as follows:

			   Operating 
			   leases

2025			   $301,201
2026			   268,729
2027			   25,681
Thereafter			   24,296
		  Total undiscounted lease payments		  619,907
Less imputed interest			   (14,815)
		  Total lease liabilities			   $605,092
Weighted-average remaining lease  
	 term-operating leases		  2.2 years

Lessor
The Center leases space to various entities under noncancel-
able operating leases with various terms. The Center leases 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement. This framework 
is based on the inputs used in valuations and gives the 
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and 
requires observable inputs to be used in the valuations 
when available. The disclosure of fair value estimates in 
the hierarchy described below is based on whether the 
significant inputs into the valuation are observable. In deter-
mining the level of the hierarchy in which the estimate is 
disclosed, the highest priority is given to unadjusted quoted 
prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unob-
servable inputs that reflect the Center’s significant market 
assumptions. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted market 
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Valuations based on pricing inputs that are other 
than quoted prices in active markets, which are either 
directly or indirectly observable; examples include quoted 
prices in active markets of the underlying assets, quoted 
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in 
an inactive market, or valuations based on models where 
significant inputs are observable or can be corroborated by 
observable market data.
Level 3 — Valuations are derived from other valuation meth-
odologies, including pricing models, discounted cash flow 
models, and similar techniques. Level 3 valuations incor-
porate certain assumptions and projections that are not 
observable in the market and require significant professional 

judgment in determining the fair value assigned to such 
assets or liabilities.

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable 
market data when available. As required by ASC Topic 820, 
assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on 
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value 
measurements.

Contributions receivable for current year gifts are initially 
measured at fair value in the year the receivable is recorded 
based on the present value of future cash flows discounted 
at a rate commensurate with risks involved, which is an 
application of the income approach. At August 31, 2024 
and 2023, there were $8,901,729 and $280,188 current year 
gifts included in contributions receivable.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 
and deferred revenue approximates fair value because of 
the relative terms and short maturity of these financial 
instruments. The carrying value of annuity obligations 
approximates fair value and is based on the present value of 
the estimated future cash flows.

NAV was used as a practical expedient estimate of 
fair value relative to the Center’s interest in the Emory 
University pooled endowment fund. Investments that are 
valued using the practical expedient, as described above, 
are labeled as NAV and are not categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy. The Center does not hold any investments 
that would be categorized as Level 2 or 3 investments as of 
August 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Center’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2024:

	 Level 1	 NAV	 Total

Assets:
	 Cash and cash equivalents			   $67,014,897	 —	 67,014,897
	 Fixed-income securities:
		  Domestic mutual funds			   4,186,885	 —	 4,186,885
		  Government and agency securities			   600,432	 —	 600,432
	 Equities:
		  Domestic stocks			   7,386,912	 —	 7,386,912
		  Domestic mutual funds			   92,710	 —	 92,710
	 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund		  —	 1,104,676,178	 1,104,676,178
			   Total			   $79,281,836	 1,104,676,178	 1,183,958,014
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NET ASSETS

A. Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
As of August 31, 2024 and 2023, net assets without donor 
restrictions are as follows:

		  2024	 2023

Undesignated		  $  35,747,407	 46,078,889
Board-designated for:
	 Endowment investment,  
	   subject to spending policy 
	   and appropriation		  398,392,556	 375,218,860
			   $434,139,963	 421,297,749

Net assets without donor restrictions include funds inter-
nally designated for endowment investment and program 
funding. These amounts are classified as net assets without 
donor restrictions due to the lack of explicit donor stipu-
lations that restrict their use. Unrealized gains or losses on 
internally designated endowment funds are classified as 
changes in net assets without restrictions.

B. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions
As of August 31, 2024 and 2023, net assets with donor 
restrictions are available for the following purposes:

		  2024	 2023

Donor-restricted for specified purposes:
	   Health		  $  18,582,502	 13,123,730
	   Peace		  610,752	 1,083,808
	   Cross-program		  24,396,940	 23,890,162
			   43,590,194	 38,097,700
Donor-restricted endowments  
	� subject to spending policy and 

appropriation, to support  
the following purposes:

	   Health		  21,574,984	 20,365,281
	   Peace		  3,036,125	 2,884,735
	   Cross-program		  3,925,324	 3,748,662
	   General activities		  687,041,083	 648,021,129
			   715,577,516	 675,019,807
			   $759,167,710	 713,117,507

Of the donor-restricted endowment net assets noted above, 
$166 million and $166 million as of August 31, 2024 and 
2023, respectively, represent donor-restricted endowment 
corpus. The remaining $549.6 million and $509 million 

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Center’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2023:

	 Level 1	 NAV	 Total

Assets:
	 Cash and cash equivalents			   $74,268,838	 —	 74,268,838
	 Fixed-income securities:
		  Domestic mutual funds			   3,321,592	 —	 3,321,592
		  Government and agency securities			   373,772	 —	 373,772
	 Equities:
		  Domestic stocks			   7,748,498	 —	 7,748,498
		  Domestic mutual funds			   91,000	 —	 91,000
	 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund		  —	 1,041,971,736	 1,041,971,736
			   Total			   $85,803,700	 1,041,971,736	 1,127,775,436

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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as of August 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, represent 
appreciation and reinvested earnings related to the donor-re-
stricted corpus but for which the Center’s management and 
board have full discretion to use within the donor-stipulated 
purpose, if any, as noted above.

 
ENDOWMENT  
FUNDS

The Center’s endowment funds consist of individual 
donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated 
by the Board to function as endowments. The net assets 
associated with endowment funds, including those funds 
designated by the Board to function as endowment, are 
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions.

A. Interpretation of Relevant Law
The Center has interpreted the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), as 
adopted by the state of Georgia, as providing, among other 
things, expanded spending flexibility by allowing, subject 
to a standard of prudence, spending from an endowment 
without regard to the book value of the corpus of the fund. 
As a result of this interpretation, the Center classifies as net 
assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts 
donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subse-
quent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the 
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the 
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumula-
tion is added to the fund.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Center considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate 
or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

• �The duration and preservation of the fund

• �The purposes of the Center and the donor-restricted 
endowment fund

• �General economic conditions

• �The possible effect of inflation and deflation

• �The expected total return from income and the 
appreciation of investments

• �Other resources of the Center

• �The investment policies of the Center

The Center invests its endowment assets in a pooled 
investment fund managed by Emory University. The Board 
follows the investment return objectives and the spending 
policy, as directed and managed by Emory University’s 
board of trustees, as set forth in more detail below.

B. Return Objectives and Risk Parameters
The Center supports Emory University’s investment and 
spending policies, the objective of which is to provide a 
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by 
its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing 
power of the endowment assets. Under this investment 
policy, as approved by Emory University’s board of trustees, 
the endowment assets are invested within risk tolerances 
of Emory University to provide an expected total return in 
excess of spending and inflation over the long term.

C. Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives
To satisfy its long-term return objectives, the Center relies 
on Emory University’s total return strategy in which invest-
ment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation 
(realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and 
dividends). Emory University employs a diversified asset 
allocation strategy across public equity, absolute return/fixed 
income, private equity/venture capital, real assets, and deriv-
ative instruments to achieve its long-term return objectives 
within a prudent risk framework.

D. �Spending Policy and How the Investment 
Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

The Center follows Emory University’s total return endow-
ment spending policy that establishes the maximum amount 
of endowment investment return available to support 
current operating and capital needs. The Center considered 
the expected return on its endowment, including the effect 
of inflation in setting the annual appropriation amount. 
Accordingly, the Center expects the current spending 
policy to allow its endowment to maintain its purchasing 
power if projected growth rates are achieved. Additional 
real growth will be provided by new gifts and any excess 
investment return.
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Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2024:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds			   $                  —	 715,577,516	 715,577,516
Board-designated endowment funds			   398,392,556	 —	 398,392,556
		  Total funds			   $398,392,556	 715,577,516	 1,113,970,072

Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2023:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds			   $                  —	 675,019,807	 675,019,807
Board-designated endowment funds			   375,218,860	 —	 375,218,860
	 Total funds			   $375,218,860	 675,019,807	 1,050,238,667

There were no underwater endowment funds during the years ended August 31, 2024 or 2023.

Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2024, are as follows:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2023			   $375,218,860	 675,019,807	 1,050,238,667
Contributions			   301,819	 9,734	 311,553
Investment return:
	 Endowment fund earnings			   16,808,289	 29,826,218	 46,634,507
	 Appreciation of endowment investments, net		  20,109,802	 35,493,174	 55,602,976
		  Total investment return			   36,918,091	 65,319,392	 102,237,483
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure		  (14,046,214) 	 (24,771,417) 	 (38,817,631)
Endowment funds, August 31, 2024			   $398,392,556	 715,577,516	 1,113,970,072

Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2023, are as follows:

	 Without donor	 With donor
	 restrictions	 restrictions	 Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2022			   $377,024,986	 678,246,402	 1,055,271,388
Contributions			   61,496	 761,913	 823,409
Investment return:
	 Endowment fund earnings			   13,668,196	 24,094,217	 37,762,413
	 Appreciation of endowment investments, net		  (1,867,622) 	 (3,988,508) 	 (5,856,130)
		  Total investment return			   11,800,574	 20,105,709	 31,906,283
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure		  (13,668,196) 	 (24,094,217) 	 (37,762,413)
Endowment funds, August 31, 2023			   $375,218,860	 675,019,807	 1,050,238,667

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Emory University made unrestricted contributions to 
the Center of $821,250 and $805,075, respectively, for the 
years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023. In addition, CCEU 
made unrestricted contributions to CCI, primarily related to 
endowment earnings at CCEU, of $510,469 and $500,390 
for the years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

THE CARTER CENTER 
COLLABORATIVE,  
INC. (CCCI)

CCCI received donations of in-kind goods for the benefit 
of the Center totaling $234,849,720 and $264,420,613 for 
the years ended August 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, 
that are included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities. Expenses totaling $237,860,269 and 
$262,329,014 related to the use or grant of these donations 
are also included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of activities for the years ended August 31, 2024 
and 2023, respectively. Inventory related to these goods for 
CCCI totaled $3,321,362 and $6,331,911 as of August 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively, and is included in the accom-
panying consolidated statements of financial position.

 
COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES

Federal Financial Assistance
Federally funded programs are routinely subject to special 
audits that could result in claims against the resources of 
the Center. Management does not believe there will be any 
claims arising from such audits that could have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of the Center.

 
SUBSEQUENT  
EVENTS

The Center has evaluated subsequent events from the 
consolidated statement of financial position date through 
April 11, 2025, the date on which the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued, and determined 
that there are none requiring adjustment or disclosure in 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements and 
related footnotes.

LIQUIDITY AND  
AVAILABILITY OF  
FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Center’s financial assets available for general expen-
diture within one year of August 31, 2024 and 2023, are 
as follows:

		  2024	 2023

Total assets		 $1,218,751,032	 1,160,096,141
	 Less:
	� �  Net assets with donor  

 � restrictions for specified  
purpose, net of inventory		  (40,268,832) 	 (31,765,789)

	� �  Donor-restricted and  
 � board-designated 
endowment funds		  (1,113,970,072) 	(1,050,238,667)

	� �  Inventory		  (3,321,362) 	 (6,331,911)
	� �  Property, plant, and  

 � equipment		  (5,210,709) 	 (4,988,913)
	� �  Artwork		  (2,419,165) 	 (2,436,465)
	� �  Other assets		  (295,549) 	 (401,565)
	� �  Annuity obligations		  (6,142,709) 	 (6,249,963)
			  $    47,122,634	 57,682,868

The primary sources of liquidity for the Center are cash 
accounts at headquarters and in the field. The Center 
structures its financial assets to be available as its general 
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. 
In the event of unanticipated liquidity needs, the Center’s 
board of trustees may turn to the portion of the Center’s 
endowment classified as without donor restrictions 
for consideration.

 
RELATED-PARTY  
TRANSACTIONS

Emory University provides certain administrative func-
tions to the Center, including, but not limited to, payroll 
administration, investment management, information 
technology, and legal services. The Center paid Emory 
University $702,257 and $675,252 for the years ended 
August 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, for the provision 
of these services.
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In Niger, one girl smiles while the other hides from the 
camera. The Carter Center is working to eliminate the 
bacterial eye disease trachoma from the country.

Our Community
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The Carter Center Around the World

Caribbean and 
Central America
  4	Belize
  5	Costa Rica
  6	Cuba
  7	�Dominican 

Republic
  8	El Salvador
  9	Guatemala
10	Haiti
11	Honduras
12	Jamaica
13	Nicaragua
14	Panama

North America
1	Canada
2	Mexico
3	United States

Europe
26	Albania
27	�Bosnia and 

Herzegovina
28	Estonia
29	Romania

South America
15	Argentina
16	Bolivia
17	Brazil
18	Chile
19	Colombia
20	Ecuador
21	Guyana
22	Paraguay
23	Peru
24	Suriname
25	Venezuela

Since its founding in 
1982, The Carter Center 
has undertaken peace 
and health initiatives in 
more than 80 countries 
worldwide. These are 
the countries where 
the Center has had 
a presence, past and 
present.

Legend
n Peace Programs
n Health Programs
n �Peace and 

Health Programs
n No Activity

1

3

2 6

12 7
9

23 17

19

25

10
4

14
5

13

21
24

16

22

15

18

8

11

20

49

42

33

50

38

45
56

43
55
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Africa
30	Algeria
31	Angola
32	Benin
33	Burkina Faso
34	Burundi
35	Cameroon
36	�Central African 

Republic

Oceania
86	New Zealand

Asia
75	Bangladesh
76	China
77	India
78	Indonesia
79	Myanmar
80	Nepal
81	North Korea
82	Pakistan
83	Philippines
84	Sri Lanka
85	Timor-Leste

37	Chad
38	Cote d’Ivoire
39	�Democratic 

Republic of 
the Congo

40	Eritrea
41	Ethiopia
42	Ghana

43	Guinea
44	Kenya
45	Liberia
46	Libya
47	Madagascar
48	Malawi
49	Mali
50	Mauritania

51	Mozambique
52	Niger
53	Nigeria
54	Rwanda
55	Senegal
56	Sierra Leone
57	Somalia
58	South Africa

59	South Sudan
60	Sudan
61	Tanzania
62	Togo
63	Tunisia
64	Uganda
65	Zambia
66	Zimbabwe

Middle East
67	Egypt
68	�Israel and Palestine
69	Jordan
70	Lebanon
71	Qatar
72	Syria
73	United Arab Emirates
74	Yemen

67

72

27

69

26

68

74

28

76

81
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82

84
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85
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36
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Senior Staff

Interns and Graduate Assistants

Peace Programs
Barbara Smith, M.S. 
Vice President, Peace Programs

Elana Aquino, M.A. 
Director, Conflict Resolution 
Program

David Carroll, Ph.D. 
Director, Democracy Program

Susan Marx, MSt., M.A. 
Director, Human Rights Program

Leanne Webster, J.D., M.P.A. 
Director, Rule of Law Program

Cross-Program
P. Craig Withers Jr., 
M.H.A., M.B.A.
Vice President, Overseas 
Operations

Health Programs
Kashef Ijaz, M.D., M.P.H.
Vice President, Health Programs

Eve H. Byrd, D.N.P., M.P.H.
Director, Mental Health Program

Kelly Callahan, M.P.H.
Director, Trachoma Control 
Program

William H. Foege, 
M.D., M.P.H.
Senior Fellow, Health Policy

Gregory Noland, Ph.D., M.P.H.
Director, River Blindness, 
Lymphatic Filariasis, 
Schistosomiasis, and Malaria

Adam Weiss, M.P.H.
Director, Guinea Worm 
Eradication Program

Operations
Laynea Allen
Director; People, Operations, 
and Programs

Christopher D. Brown, CPA
Vice President, Finance; Treasurer

Paige Alexander
Chief Executive Officer

Beth M. Davis
Chief Operating Officer

Matthew De Galan
Vice President, Communications

Lauren L. Gay
Corporate Secretary

Nicole Kruse
Vice President, Development

Educational Programs
Zarie Riley, Ph.D.
Director, Educational Programs

The Carter Center sponsors 
a competitive internship 
program, bringing to Atlanta 
college students and recent 
graduates from universities 
around the world each 
semester. Interns and graduate 
assistants play a vital role in 
helping The Carter Center 
accomplish its peace and health 
initiatives, and interns serve 
in many capacities around the 
Center. In turn, The Carter 
Center provides a substantive 
learning experience that serves 
as a basis for interns to explore 
their career options and to 
develop professional skills. Over 
its history, The Carter Center 
has had 3,722 interns from 109 
countries and 659 universities 
who spoke 174 languages. Some of the recent Carter Center interns and the offices where they worked include 

(clockwise from top left) David Aguilar with the Latin America and Caribbean Focus, 
Marion Smart with the Human Rights Program, Rida Akbar with Trachoma Control 
Program, and Amanda Ngarambe Isaro with special health projects.
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Notable scientists and organizations come together in this Carter Center task force to evaluate 
the potential for eradicating or controlling infectious diseases. It monitors progress in disease 
eradication, reviews the status of selected diseases, and recommends opportunities for 
eradication or better control of diseases such as Guinea worm, river blindness, lymphatic 
filariasis, schistosomiasis, malaria, and measles.
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The Friends of the Inter-American Democratic Charter comprises former presidents, prime 
ministers, and cabinet ministers from the Western Hemisphere who seek to increase the visibility 
of the tenets of the charter and to prevent democratic tensions from erupting into crises.
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advance evidence-based behavioral health policy initiatives, 
and improve access to mental health promotion, substance 
abuse prevention, treatment, and supports for all. 

Advisory board members select fellows and serve as mentors 
who provide technical assistance and share professional 
contacts within their fields of expertise.
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Jeatrice Mubunga, 
a community drug 
distributor in Uganda’s 
Kasese district, walks 
door to door during the 
final mass administration 
of the drug that treats 
and prevents river 
blindness. The area is 
suspected of having 
halted transmission of the 
disease, a sign of success.
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